
 

8/12/2016 

OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA #929 
 

DATE:  August 16, 2016 
 
PLACE: Oak Park High School Presentation Room – G-9  
  899 N. Kanan Road, Oak Park, CA 91377 
 
TIME:  5:00 p.m. Closed Session – G9  

6:00 p.m. Open Session – G9 
 
The Mission of the Oak Park Unified School District is to provide students with a strong 
foundation for learning, which meets the challenge of the present and of the future through a 
balanced education, that includes academic achievement, personal growth and social 
responsibility. 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Allen Rosen, President 
Drew Hazelton, Vice President 

Derek Ross, Clerk 
Denise Helfstein, Member  

 Barbara Laifman, Member 
Meghan Cleary, Student Board Member 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                              Educating Compassionate and Creative Global Citizens 
 

ADMINISTRATION 
 

Dr. Anthony W. Knight, Superintendent 
Ragini Aggarwal, Executive Assistant 

Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business & Administrative Services 
Dr. Leslie Heilbron, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 

Dr. Jay Greenlinger, Director Curriculum and Instruction 
Enoch Kwok, Director, Educational Technology & Information Systems 

Susan Roberts, Director, Pupil Services 
Cliff Moore, Consultant 

 
COPY OF ENTIRE AGENDA ON WEB SITE  

www.opusd.org 

http://www.opusd.org


 

8/12/2016 

 
INDIVIDUALS WHO REQUIRE SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN A 
BOARD MEETING, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO AN AMERICAN SIGN 
LANGUAGE INTERPRETER, ACCESSIBLE SEATING OR DOCUMENTATION IN  
ACCESSIBLE FORMATS, SHOULD CONTACT THE SUPERINTENDENT’S OFFICE 72 
HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING TO ENABLE THE DISTRICT TO MAKE 
REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE ACCOMODATION AND 
ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING.   PHONE (818) 735-3206 OR FAX (818) 879-0372 or 
e-mail: raggarwal@opusd.org 
 
Welcome to a meeting of the Oak Park Unified School District Board of Education.  Routine 
items are placed under the Consent Calendar and are approved by a single vote of the Board.  
When the agenda is adopted, a member of the Board may pull an item from the Consent 
Calendar and transfer the item to an appropriate place on the agenda for discussion. 
 
The President of the Board shall inquire if there is anyone in the audience who desires to address 
the board with respect to any items appearing on the closed session agenda, regular session 
agenda, or on any issue within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Governing Board.  The 
speaker cards are available in the Board Room and must be completed and handed to Ragini 
Aggarwal, Executive Assistant, prior to the beginning of the meeting.  All comments for either 
agenda items or non-agenda items must be limited to three minutes or less.   
 
Your comments are greatly appreciated. However, the Board cannot enter into a formal 
discussion at this time, nor can a decision be made.  Matters warranting discussion will be placed 
on a future agenda.  The information on the speaker card is voluntary but will assist the Board 
President in conducting the meeting.  Thank you for your cooperation and compliance with these 
guidelines 
All Board Actions and Discussion are electronically recorded and maintained for thirty days.  

Interested parties may review the recording upon request. 
Agenda and supporting documents are available for review prior to the meeting at the District 

Office located at 5801 Conifer Street, Oak Park, CA 91377 
 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, September 20, 2016 

Closed Session at 5:00 p.m.           Open Session at 6:00 p.m. 
Oak Park High School, Presentation Room, G9 

 
AGENDA IS POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS IN OAK PARK: 

                 District Office, 5801 East Conifer St.   
Brookside Elementary School, 165 N. Satinwood Ave. 

Oak Hills Elementary School, 1010 N. Kanan Rd. 
Red Oak Elementary School, 4857 Rockfield St. 

Medea Creek Middle School, 1002 Double Tree Rd 
Oak Park High School, 899 N. Kanan Rd. 

Oak View High School, 5701 East Conifer St 
Oak Park Library, 899 N. Kanan Rd. 

Internet Home Page:  http://www.opusd.org/ 
 

http://www.opusd.org


 

8/12/2016 

OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING #929 

August 16, 2016 
 

CALL TO ORDER – Followed by Public Comments/5:00 p.m.   
CLOSED SESSION: 5:00 p.m.  
OPEN SESSION: 6:00 p.m. 
 
The Oak Park Unified School District Board of Education will meet in Regular Session at the Oak Park 
High School Presentation Room – G-9, Oak Park, California. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER: _______ p.m. 
  
II. PUBLIC SPEAKERS – CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 
 
III. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION ON THE 
FOLLOWING ITEMS: 

 
A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
 
B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT : Campus Supervisors, Clerical Sub, Custodian 1, 

Food Services Assistant 1 Subs, Instructional Assistants 1, Instructional Assistants 11 Special 
Ed, Instructional Assistant 11 Special Ed Subs, Instructional Assistants 111, Student Services 
Assistant 1, Student Workers, Elementary Speech Language Teacher, Instrumental Music 
Teacher, Elementary Teachers, School Psychologist, Preschool Special Ed Teacher, Long 
Term Guest Teachers, Director of Curriculum and Assistant  

 
C.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS:  
      Agency designated representatives: Leslie Heilbron and Martin Klauss 

        Employee organizations:  Oak Park Teachers Association and Oak Park Classified    
                   Association 

 
D. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR : Government Code Section 54957.6: 

Agency designated representative: Allen Rosen 
Unrepresented employee: Superintendent 

  
IV: CALL TO ORDER – RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION AT:  ________ p.m. 
 

A. ROLL CALL  
 

B. FLAG SALUTE 
 

C. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS TAKEN  
 

D. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
V. PUBLIC SPEAKERS:  SPEAKERS ON AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
VI. OPEN COMMUNICATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 

A. BOARD REPORTS/DISCUSSION/COMMUNICATIONS 
1. Remarks from Board Members 
2. Remarks from Student Board Member  



 

8/12/2016 

3. Remarks from Superintendent 
 

B. BUSINESS SESSION: 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Consent items shall be items of a routine nature or items for which no Board discussion is anticipated 

and for which the Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
 At the request of any member of the Board, any item on the Consent Agenda shall be removed and 

given individual consideration for action as a regular agenda item. 
 
a. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting June 15, 2016 and Special Board Retreat 

Meeting June 26, 2016 
b. Public Employee/Employment Changes 01CL23118-01CL23199 & 01CE07883-

01CE07944 
 c. Approve Purchase Orders – June 1 -  July 31, 2016  

Board Policy 3300 requires Board approval of Purchase Orders 
d. Approve Student Teaching Agreement with Grand Canyon University – June 22, 2016 –  

June 30, 2021 
Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

e. Approve Renewal Agreement with Ventura County Office of Education for 2016-17 
Escape Financial and Payroll/Personnel System Services  
Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

f. Approve 2016-17 Transportation Agreement with Tumbleweed Transportation 
Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

g. Authorization for Use of Cooperative Purchasing Contracts by the Student Nutrition 
Services Department During Fiscal Year 2016-17, Per PCC 20118 
Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

h. Approve Memorandum of Agreement with the County of Ventura for Watershed 
Friendly Garden at Oak Park High School 

       Board is asked to approve this Memorandum of Agreement with the County of Ventura 
i. Approve Notice of Completion, Project 15-08F, Maintenance Facility Improvements  

                    Board approval required for Notice of Completion 
j. Approve Disposal of Surplus Equipment  

Per provisions of Education Code 17546, the Board must approve disposal of obsolete and 
surplus equipment and property 

k. Approve Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints – July 2016 
       Education Code 35185 requires Board approval of each quarterly report regarding 
       complaints against the District by the public regarding textbooks and instructional materials,  
       teacher vacancy or misassignment or facility conditions 
l. Approve Overnight Trip for Oak Park High School Girls Volleyball Team – September 

9-10, 2016  
Board Policy 6153 requires Board approval for student overnight trips 

 
ACTION 

2. BUSINESS 
a. Ratify Consultant Agreement for Political Lobbying Services  
      Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 
b.   Approve Spending Plan for 2016-17 Education Protection Account Funds  

                   Proposition 30 requires Board approval for spending plan for Education Protection Account  
                   Funds 
             c.   Ratify Agreement for Construction Contract, Project 15-08C, Technology Facility    
                   Improvements from Measure C6 Bond Fund  

      Board approval required for purchases made from Measure C6 Bond Fund 



 

8/12/2016 

 
             d.   Approve Purchase of Technology Facility Furniture and Equipment, Project 15-08C  
                   from Measure C6 Bond Fund  

Board approval required for purchases made from Measure C6 Bond Fund 
             e.   Approve Notice of Completion, Project 15-08C, Technology Facility Improvements  

Board approval required for Notice of Completion 
             f.    Ratify Agreement for Construction Services for Project 16-02R, Gymnasium Restroom     
                   ADA Improvements at Oak Park High School  

Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 
             g.    Ratify Measure R Bond Fund Facilities Expenditure –Project 16-04R, Americans  
                    with Disability Act (ADA) Upgrades At Oak Hills Elementary School 

Board approval required for purchases made from Measure R Bond Fund 
h. Approve Acceptance of Donation 
       Board Policy 3290 requires Board approval for donations to the District 

             i.     Ratify Agreement for Construction Services for Project 16-06R, Parking Lot  
                    Resurfacing at Oak Park High School  

Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 
             j.     Ratify Agreement for Construction Services for Project 16-07F, Construction of School   
                    Garden at Medea Creek Middle School  

 Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 
k.    Ratify Agreement for Construction Services for Project 16-10F, Construction of  
       Kindergarten Outdoor Classroom at Brookside Elementary School   

 Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services  
l.     Approve Measure C6 Bond Fund Equipment Purchase – Project 16-11C, iPad Carts to   
       Support New TechLITEs and Technology Learning Coach    

 Board approval required for purchases made from Measure C6 Bond Fund 
 

            3.   HUMAN RESOURCES 
 a. Approve Authorization to Employ an Administrative Consultant 
                    Board approval required to employ an administrative consultant 
             b.    Approve 2016-2017 Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators 

       Commission on Teacher Credentialing requires certification of Board approval on 
                    Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators 
             c.    Approve the Job Description for Accounting Assistant III Position and Reclassifying  
                    the more Senior Accounting Assistant II to the New Position. 
                    Board approval required for reclassification and change of job description 
  
            4.  BOARD 

a     Approve California School Boards Association Membership Dues($7,532) and Education   
       Alliance Membership Dues ($1883) for 2016-2017 

Board approval required for membership dues 
              b.    Approve  Proposed Board Meeting Schedule for the 2016-2017 School Year  

Board approval required for Board meeting schedule for the 2016-2017 School Year 
c. Review and Amend 2016-2017 Moral Imperatives, Goals, and Action Plans 

Board will review amendments made by Leadership Team 
d.   Approve Certification of Signatures for 2015-16 School Year 

Education Codes 42632 and 42633 require annual Certification of Signatures 
e.    Approve Board Goals for 2016-2017 

Board approval for 2016-2017 Board Goals  
 f.    Approve Resolution #16-17 Nomination of Assembly Member Jacqui Irwin for  
        California School Boards Association 2016 Outstanding Legislator of the Year 

Board approval required for Board Resolutions  



 

8/12/2016 5

5. BOARD POLICIES 
             a.   Approve Amendment to Board Policy 2121 – Superintendent’s Contract – First 
                   Reading 

      Policy updated to clarify the conditions under which the Governing Board may meet in closed   
      session under the "labor exception" (Government Code 54957.6) of the Ralph M. Brown Act  
      to discuss superintendent contact, salary, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits. 
b. Approve Amendment to Board Bylaw 9321 – Closed Session Purposes and Agendas – 

First Reading 
Board Bylaw updated to clarify that the Board may not meet in closed session under the  
"personnel exception" (Government Code 54957) of the Ralph M. Brown Act to discuss or act 
upon any proposed change in compensation other than a reduction of compensation that 
results from the imposition of discipline. "Negotiations/Collective Bargaining" section 
revised to reflect that the Board may meet with the district's designated representatives in 
closed session under the "labor exception" (Government Code 54957.6) of the Ralph M. 
Brown Act to discuss salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe 
benefits to its represented and unrepresented employees, including the Superintendent. 

c. Approve Amendment to Board Bylaw 9222 – Resignation – First Reading  
           Board Bylaw updated to clarify the effective date of a resignation of a member of the board,  
  the need for the board to fill the vacancy by ordering an election or making a provisional  
                    appointment as appropriate, and the need for the resigning member to file a revised        
                    Statement of Economic Interest/Form 700. 

d. Approve Amendment to Board Bylaw 9270 – Conflict of Interest – First    
       Reading 

Board Bylaw reorganized and updated to reflect requirement to submit the conflict of interest 
code to the code reviewing body (i.e., county board of supervisors or Fair Political Practices 
Commission, as appropriate) by the deadline established by the code reviewing body, merge 
material on the "rule of necessity" into the section "Conflict of Interest under the Political 
Reform Act.” Exhibit A is being revised – Designated Positions to reflect current positions in 
the District.  

e. Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 1230 - School-
Connected Organizations- First Reading 
Board Policy and Administrative Regulation updated to clarify the relationship between the 
district and a school-connected organization, such as a booster club, parent-teacher 
organization, or other nonstudent organization. Policy adds material regarding the 
establishment of such organizations as separate legal entities subject to their own bylaws and 
rules, delegates the responsibility to approve organizations' fundraisers to the superintendent 
or designee, and reflects legal requirement that donations and participation in fundraising 
activities be voluntary. Regulation adds authority of the district to revoke an organization's 
authorization to conduct activities in the district when necessary, and adds rules designed to 
maintain the organization's status as a separate entity from the district based on 
recommendations in the Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team's guidebook 
updated in 2015. 
 

VII. INFORMATION ITEMS  
1. Reporting of Chronic Absenteeism Data 

 
VIII. OPEN DISCUSSION 

 
IX. ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business before this Board, the meeting is declared adjourned at ______ p.m 
 
   
    



 

MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING    6-15-16  #927 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER/MEETING PLACE 
The Board of Education President, Mr. Allen Rosen, called the regular meeting to order at 4:34 p.m. at 
Oak Park High School Presentation Room, G9, 899 N. Kanan Road, Oak Park. 
 
BOARD PRESENT 
Mr. Allen Rosen, President, Mr. Drew Hazelton, Vice President, Mr. Derek Ross, Clerk, Ms. Denise 
Helfstein, Member, and Ms. Barbara Laifman, Member 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 4:34 p.m.   
 
CALL TO ORDER/MEETING PLACE 
The Board of Education President, Mr. Allen Rosen, called the regular meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. at 
Oak Park High School Presentation Room, G9, 899 N. Kanan Road, Oak Park. 
 
BOARD PRESENT 
Mr. Allen Rosen, President, Mr. Drew Hazelton, Vice President, Mr. Derek Ross, Clerk, Ms. Denise 
Helfstein, Member, and Ms. Barbara Laifman Member.  
 
BOARD ABSENT 
None  
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Dr. Tony Knight, Superintendent, Mr. Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services, Dr. 
Leslie Heilbron, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, and Ms. Ragini Aggarwal, Executive 
Assistant 
  
FLAG SALUTE 
Cathy Lory led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
Dr. Knight reported that in closed session on May 17 and June 1st the Board took no action.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Barbara Laifman, the Board of Education adopted the agenda as 
presented except to move items B.1.b. and B.1.c. to after Consent Agenda. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, 
Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. 
 
PUBLIC SPEAKERS 
None  
 
PRESENTATIONS 
The Board presented certificates of recognition to the Oak Park Rocket Team.  



 

REPORT FROM BOARD MEMBERS  
 
Board Member Barbara Laifman wished everyone a very happy summer. Board Member Denise Helfstein 
complimented all the schools for their hard work on the graduations/culminations and she was honored to 
be a part of them. Denise attended the GATE DAC meeting, and a portion of the Senior Awards Night as 
well as the Gold Ribbon Schools Award Presentation in downtown LA. Board Member Derek Ross stated 
it was a pleasure to take part in all the graduations.  Board Member Drew Hazelton stated it was a great 
experience participating in graduations and he felt that all the principals did a wonderful job with their 
inspirational messages to the parents and students. Board Member Allen Rosen remarked that he enjoyed 
the graduations too.  
 
Superintendent Tony Knight reported that he attended the graduations, which were very emotional and he 
felt that all the investment the teachers and staff make with the students comes through in these 
ceremonies.  
 
B.1. CONSENT AGENDA 
On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education approved the 
Consent Agenda.  Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0.  
 

a. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting May 17, 2016 and Special Meeting June 1,         
      2016  
d. Approve Overnight Trip for Oak Park High School Advanced Peer Counseling Retreat 

– September 18-19, 2016 
e. Approve Renewal Agreement for 2016-17 Crossing Guard Services 
f. Approve Resolution #16-12, Appropriation and Budgeted Transfers for Fiscal year 2016-

2017 
g. Approve Resolution #16-13, Temporary Loans Between District Funds for Fiscal Year 

2016-2017 
h. Approve Resolution #16-14, Year End Budget and Interfund Transfers for Fiscal Year 

2015-2016 
i. Approve Resolution #16-15, Authority to Improve Compensation for Certain Categories of 

Employees After July 1, 2016 
j. Approve Student Teaching Agreement with California State University – Channel Islands – 

July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2019 
k. Approve Facility Use by Religious Organization – Chabad of Oak Park    
l. Approve California School Boards Association Membership Dues ($7,532) and Education 

Alliance Membership Dues ($1883) for 2016-2017   
 

ACTION 
B.1.b. Public Employee/Employment Changes 01CL23086-01CL23117 & 01CE07819-  
01CE07882  
       On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education  

approved Public Employee/Employment Changes 01CL23086-01CL23117 & 01CE07819 
01CE07882, except Mr. Allen Rosen recused himself from Item B.1.b. Motion carried Aye: 
Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Ross. No – 0.  

  
B.1.c. Approve Purchase Orders –May 1 - 31, 2016 

       On motion of Allen Rosen, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education approved  
                   the Purchase Orders May 1 – 31, 2016, except due to a remote interest as an employee of  
                   CSBA, Board Member Barbara Laifman recused herself from Item B.1.c, P17-00007 Gamut         



 

                   Online and P17-00008 CSBA Membership. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein,  
                   Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0.  

 
2. BUSINESS SERVICES 
 
a. Approve Resolution 16-16, Ordering a School Bond Election and Establishing 

Specifications of the Election Order 
On motion of Drew Hazelton, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education 
approved Resolution 16-16, Ordering a School Bond Election and Establishing Specifications 
of the Election Order. Motion carried Aye:  Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 
0. 

b. Approve 2016-2017 Employee Health Benefit Plans 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education approved 
2016-2017 Employee Health Benefit Plans. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, 
Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 

c. Approve 2016-2017 Local Control Accountability Plan 
On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education 
approved 2016-2017 Local Control Accountability Plan. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, 
Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 

d. Approve and Adopt 2016-2017 Oak Park Unified School District Annual Operating 
Budget   
On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Derek Ross, the Board of Education approved 
the adoption of the 2016-2017 Oak Park Unified School District Annual Operating Budget. 
Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 

e. Approve Measure C6 Bond Fund Equipment Purchase - Maintenance and Operations 
Vehicle  
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education approved 
the Measure C6 Bond Fund Equipment Purchase – Maintenance and Operations Vehicle. 
Motion carried Aye:  Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 

f. Approve Measure C6 Bond Fund Equipment Purchase – Multi-Surface Floor Cleaning 
Equipment  
On motion of Denise Helfstein, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education 
approved Measure C6 Bond Fund Equipment Purchase – Multi-Surface Floor Cleaning 
Equipment. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 

     
  3. HUMAN RESOURCES 

a. Approve Authorization to Re-establish the Administrative Position of Director 
Curriculum and Instruction 
On motion of Denise Helfstein, seconded by Derek Ross, the Board of Education approved 
the authorization to Re-establish the Administrative Position of Director Curriculum and 
Instruction. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 
 

4. PUPIL SERVICES  
a.    Approve Contract for Non-Public Placement and Services for Special Education 
       Student #010-15/16 - $4,314.24   

On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education approved 
Contract for Non-Public Placement and Services for Special Education Student #010-15/16 - 
$4,314.24. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 

 
  5. BOARD POLICIES 



 

a. Adopt and Approve New Board Policy 3515.7 – Firearms on School Grounds  
      Instruction – Second Reading 
      On motion of Denise Helfstein, seconded by Barbara Laifman, the Board of Education   
 approved the Policy 3515.7 Firearms on Schools Grounds Instruction choosing Option 1   
       as second and final Reading with a request to review the policy annually. Motion carried   
       Aye: Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen. No: Ross, Hazelton. 
b.   Review and Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation    
      6142.7  – Physical Education and Activity – First Reading 
      On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education approved the      

amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6142.7 Physical Education and       
Activity as First and Final Reading. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, 
Rosen, Ross. No: 0. 

c.   Review and Approve Amendment to Board Policy 6152 – Class Assignments – First   
 Reading 

      On motion of Denise Helfstein, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education  
                   approved the amendment to Board Policy 6152 Class Assignments as First and Final Reading       
                   with the proposed changes. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross.  
                   No: 0.  

d.   Adopt and Approve Board Policy 6164.2 – Guidance/Counseling Services – First     
      Reading 
      On motion of Denise Helfstein, seconded by Derek Ross, the Board of Education approved to  
      table the Board Policy 6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton,  
      Helfstein,Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No: 0.  
e.   Approve Amendment to Board Policy 5146 – Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students –   
      First Reading 
      On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education   
      approved amendment to Board Policy 5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students as First and   
      Final Reading. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No: 0. 
f.    Approve Amendment to Administrative Regulation 3514.2 – Integrated Pest   
      Management – First Reading 
      On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education    
      approved the amendment to Administrative Regulation 3514.2 Integrated Pest Management  
      as First and Final Reading with the proposed changes. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton,  
      Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No: 0. 

 
V.  OPEN DISCUSSION 
 
There being no further business before this Board, the Regular meeting is declared adjourned at 
7:57 p.m.     
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      President of the Board 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      Clerk or Secretary of the Board 
 



1 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL BOARD RETREAT MEETING     6-26-16 #928 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER/MEETING PLACE 
The Board of Education President, Mr Allen Rosen, called the special meeting to order at 8:45 a.m. at the 
home of Denise Helfstein, 6135 Bryndale Avenue, Oak Park, California. 
 
BOARD PRESENT 
Mr. Allen Rosen, President, Mr. Drew Hazelton, Vice President, Mr. Derek Ross, Clerk, Ms. Denise 
Helfstein, Member, and Ms. Barbara Laifman, Member. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Dr. Tony Knight, Superintendent 
 
PUBLIC SPEAKERS 
None 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 8:45 a.m.  
 
CALL TO ORDER/MEETING PLACE 
The Board of Education President, Mr. Allen Rosen, called the special meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. at the 
home of Denise Helfstein, 6135 Bryndale Avenue, Oak Park, California. 
 
BOARD PRESENT 
Mr. Allen Rosen, President, Mr. Drew Hazelton, Vice President, Mr. Derek Ross, Clerk, Ms. Denise 
Helfstein, Member, and Ms. Barbara Laifman, Member. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Dr. Tony Knight, Superintendent 
 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
Board President Allen Rosen reported the Board took no action in closed session this morning. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Board reviewed and amended the Board Goals for 2016-17. 
The Board reviewed and amended the Moral Imperatives and Goals for 2016-17.  
 
 
There being no further business before this Board, the Board adjourned the meeting at 12:30 p.m.  
 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      President of the Board 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      Clerk or Secretary of the Board 



AdmSvs/Board//B.1.c.1. PO Coversheet 08 16 16.doc 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.1.c. APPROVE PURCHASE ORDERS – JUNE 1 THROUGH JULY 

31, 2016 
CONSENT 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve the attached purchase orders issued for the period 

June 1 through July 31, 2016? 
 
BACKGROUND: Attached is the Purchase Order Report listing all purchase orders issued during 

the reporting period. All purchase orders have been approved by an 
administrator as a necessary expense and are budgeted for and within the 
budget authorization of the account. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the attached Purchase Order Report as submitted. 
 2. Do not approve the Purchase Order Report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



 
TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: ANTHONY W. KNIGHT Ed.D., SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: August 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:         B.1.d. APPROVE STUDENT TEACHER AGREEMENT WITH GRAND 

CANYON UNIVERSITY - JUNE 22, 2016 - JUNE 30, 2021 
 
 INFORMATION/CONSENT 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education enter into Student Teaching Agreement with 

Grand Canyon University, commencing June 22, 2016 until June 30, 2021? 
 
STATEMENT: Education Code section 11006 authorizes the Governing Board of any school 

district to enter into agreements with a state college/university or private 
college/university accredited by the State Board of Education as a teacher 
education institution, to provide supervised student teaching experience. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve Student Teaching Agreement with Grand Canyon University 

commencing June 22, 2016 until June 30, 20 Grand Canyon University 21 
and authorize the Superintendent to sign the agreement on behalf of the 
District. 

  
 2.   Do not approve Student Teaching Agreement with Grand Canyon 
                                                University. 
 
  
RECOMMENDATION:  Alternative #1 
 
                                                                                                        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
                                                                                                                 ______________________ 
 Anthony W. Knight Ed.D., 
 Superintendent 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Leslie Heilbron, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent, HR 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of ______________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep.         







AdmSvs/Board/B.1.e.1. VCOE Data Contract 08 16 16.doc 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.1.e. APPROVE RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH VENTURA COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION FOR 2016-17 ESCAPE FINANCIAL AND 
PAYROLL/PERSONNEL SYSTEM SERVICES 

 CONSENT 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve a renewal agreement with the Ventura County Office 

of Education (VCOE) to provide financial and payroll/personnel data 
processing services for the 2016-17 fiscal year? 

 
BACKGROUND: The District has historically contracted annually with VCOE to provide data 

processing services. The scope of these services currently includes the hosting 
and support of the Escape Financial and Payroll/Personnel Systems. The 
current contract with VCOE for these services expired June 30, 2016. The fee 
for services is calculated on the District’s prior year P-2 ADA, and the 
amount-per-ADA is increased by $0.34 from last school year. VCOE has 
proposed to renew the agreement for the 2016-17 fiscal year in the amount of 
$52,793.20 (2015-16 P-2 ADA [4474] x $11.80). A copy of the renewal 
agreement is attached for the Board’s review. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: The cost of the proposed services is included in the Business and 

Administrative Services departmental budget for 2016-17. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the renewal agreement with VCOE to provide financial and 

payroll/personnel data processing services for the 2016-17 fiscal year. 
 2. Do not approve the renewal. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted: 
 
   
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D 
 Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          



Ventura County Office of Education 
5189 Verdugo Way 

Camarillo, CA 93012 

iec£mfojy 
.en/kes 

AGREEMENT FOR E S C A P E FINANCIAL & PAYROLUPERSONNEL SYSTEM 

This agreement is made between the Oak Park Unified School District of Ventura County, hereinafter referred to as "District," 
and the Ventura County Office of Education, hereinafter referred to as "VCOE " 

It is Hereby Agreed between the Parties as Follows: 

1. Time Period 
VCOE agrees to furnish the District services in processing and reporting for the fiscal year July 1, 2016 through June 
30, 2017 and thereafter on a yearly basis unless written notice to the contrary is received by VCOE prior to the fifteenth 
of January of any year in which the services are rendered. 

2. Services Provided 
VCOE shall provide services and transactions available in the Escape Financial & Payroll/Personnel System. 

3. Exclusions 
Software support does not include: 
A. Programming required because of changes in computer equipment or configuration. 
B. Problems resulting from equipment failure. 
C. Unauthorized alterations to the programs. 

4. Charges 
Charges will be determined by multiplying the District's prior year P-2 ADA as of June 1 of the prior fiscal year by an 
ADA factor from the following table. 

P-2 ADA Per ADA Factor 

0-999 $42.16 

1000-4999 $11.80 

5000-9999 $9.32 

10000-19999 $8.61 

20000+ $7.82 

All reports printed at VCOE will be charged at $.0800 per page. 

5. Payment Schedule 
The District agrees that the ADA based fees shall be paid in a single installment to be billed in December. 

Approved this, . day of , 20 

School District Authorized Representative 

Approved this. . day of . , , 2 0 , 

VCOE Authorized Representative 

mklauss
Typewritten Text
16th

mklauss
Typewritten Text
August

mklauss
Typewritten Text
16

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text



AdmSvs/Board/B.1.f.1.Transportation Agreement Tumbleweed 2016-17 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.1.f. APPROVE 2016-17 TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT WITH 

TUMBLEWEED TRANSPORTATION 
CONSENT 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education approve an agreement with Tumbleweed 

Transportation for student transportation during the 2016-17 school year? 
 
BACKGROUND: Since the 2009-10 school year, the District has contracted with Tumbleweed 

Transportation, a professional, licensed transportation contractor, to provide 
transportation services for required for Special Education students and other 
student transportation needs. The contractor has proposed a 5% increase in the 
contract rates, citing rise in the minimum wage both on January 1 of this year 
and again on July 1, as well as the new requirement to provide paid sick leave 
for hourly employees.  The cost of services provided in 2015-16 was $78,949. 

 
After a thorough review, the District staff has determined that these services 
will continue to be required in the new school year. Accordingly, staff is 
recommending the renewal of this agreement as the most cost-effective 
delivery of this mandatory transportation service.  The cost for this service is 
included in the District’s 2016-17 general fund operating budget. A copy of the 
proposed renewal contract is attached for the Board’s review. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the agreement with Tumbleweed Transportation for Special 

Education and other student transportation services for the 2016-17 school 
year. 

 2. Do not approve the agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Susan Roberts, Director, Pupil Services 
 Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted: 
 
   
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D 
 Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          

















AdmSvs/Board/B.1.g.1. Piggyback Authorization SNS Dept 2016-17 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.1.g. AUTHORIZATION FOR USE OF COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 

CONTRACTS BY THE STUDENT NUTRITION SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT DURING FISCAL YEAR 2016-17, PER PCC 20118 

 CONSENT 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board authorize the Student Nutrition Services department to use 

cooperative purchasing (piggyback) contracts during fiscal year 2016-17, as 
permitted by Public Contract Code (PCC) 20118? 

 
BACKGROUND: Throughout each school year, it is necessary for the Student Nutrition Services 

department to contract with vendors for the purchase of food and other related 
supplies.  As bidding and preparing contracts is quite time consuming, it is 
common practice among school districts to allow “piggybacking” on one 
another’s contracts that have been bid in conformance with the requirements of 
PCC 20111-20118. This allows districts to save time in bid preparation while 
ensuring competitive pricing. As specific Board approval is required in order to 
use the piggyback provision, and in order to conform to the PCC bidding 
requirements, staff is recommending the Board’s authorization to utilize the 
following piggybackable contracts during fiscal year 2016-17: 
 
• Sunrise Produce (Oxnard Union High School District, Bid #545, Produce Products) 
• The Berry Man (Oxnard Union High School District, Bid #545, Produce Products) 
• P&R (Oxnard School District, RFP, Paper and Plastic Products Distributor) 
• Sysco (Ventura Unified, Bid #FNS1-17, Food and Grocery Products) 
• Jordano's (Hueneme Unified, Bid #FN 15-16-01, Non Commodity Food Items) 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 1. Authorize the Student Nutrition Services department to use the listed piggyback 
contracts during fiscal year 2016-17, as permitted by PCC 20118 

2. Do not approve the listed piggyback contracts. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Carole Ly, Director, Student Nutrition Services 
 Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          



AdmSvs/Board//B.1.h.1. MOA Watershed Friendly Garden VC-OPHS 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.1.h. APPROVE MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY 

OF VENTURA FOR WATERSHED FRIENDLY GARDEN AT OAK 
PARK HIGH SCHOOL 

CONSENT 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve the Memorandum of Agreement with the County of 

Ventura for Watershed Friendly Garden at Oak Park High School? 
 
BACKGROUND: In May 2014, the State Water Resources Control Board announced that 

County’s application for the Proposition 84 Storm Water Grant Program 
(SWGP) funding for the Oak Park Green Streets Urban Retrofit Project was 
successful and would be funded. The County and Oak Park Unified School 
District (OPUSD) have committed to collaboratively implement Watershed 
Friendly Garden (WFG) program, to be placed on the Oak Park High School 
(OPHS) campus in a 1,200 square foot area located off the OPHS parking lot, 
immediately to the north of Room R16. Under the terms of the attached 
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), the County will design and construct the 
OPHS WFG project, develop an Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Plan, and 
offer O&M training for OPHS staff and other interested parties.  OPUSD will 
allow access to the project site to the County’s staff, contractors, and 
consultants during implementation. OPUSD will also supply irrigation, 
participate in development and review of O&M Plan, attend training provided 
by the County, and conduct O&M activities for the lifetime of the project, 
estimated to be at least twenty years. No cost reimbursement for OPUSD’s 
services will be provided by the grant. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the attached Memorandum of Agreement with the County of 

Ventura for Watershed Friendly Garden at Oak Park High School. 
 2. Do not approve the Memorandum of Agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN COUNTY OF VENTURA AND OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

FOR ACTIVITIES RELATED TO 
IMPLEMENTATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE WATERSHED FRIENDLY GARDEN 

AT OAK PARK HIGH SCHOOL 
 
 

This Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA”) is made this 26th day of September, 2016, and 
entered into by and between the County of Ventura (hereinafter referred to as “County”) 
and the Oak Park Unified School District (hereinafter referred to as “OPUSD”). 
 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the County and OPUSD agreed to collaborate on the performance of certain 
tasks that were included in the grant PROJECT; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) announced in 
May 2014 that County’s application for the Proposition 84 Storm Water Grant Program 
(SWGP) funding for the Oak Park Green Streets Urban Retrofit Project was successful and 
that the grant PROJECT would be funded; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County signed the Grant Agreement with the State Water Board on August 
1, 2014 initiating the grant process; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and OPUSD committed to collaboratively implement Watershed 
Friendly Garden program included in the County’s grant PROJECT funded by the 
Proposition 84 SWGP; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the County and OPUSD desire to enter into this MOA in order to 
memorialize the tasks each organization is to perform in order to successfully complete the 
grant funded PROJECT as approved by the State Water Board. 
  



Memorandum of Agreement 
OPHS Watershed Friendly Garden Project 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 

ARTICLE 1 
DEFINITIONS 

 
1.1 AUTHORIZED AUTHORITY shall mean the individual authorized by each PARTY 

to sign this MOA. 
 

1.2 PARTY shall mean the County or OPUSD. 
 
1.3 PARTIES shall mean the County and OPUSD. 

 
1.4 PROJECT shall mean Watershed Friendly Garden. 

 
1.5 PROPERTY shall mean Oak Park Unified School District (OPUSD) property located 

at 899 Kanan Road in Oak Park, California (Assessor Parcel Number 800-0-400-
14), which is commonly referred to as the Oak Park High School (OPHS) campus. 
 

1.6 PROJECT SITE shall mean the approximate 1,200 square foot landscaped area 
located at the OPHS parking lot; for PROJECT site map refer to Attachment A. 
 

 
ARTICLE 2 

PURPOSE, TERM, TERMINATION and AMENDMENTS 
 

2.1 The purpose of the MOA is to establish a working agreement between the PARTIES 
with regard to successfully completing the Proposition 84 SWGP funded PROJECT. 

 
2.2 The term of this MOA shall commence on the day and date written above and shall 

be effective for the useful life of the PROJECT as defined by the Grant Agreement, 
estimated at twenty (20) years after completion of the PROJECT. 

 
2.3 Any substantive amendment, modification, extension, or variation of terms of the 

MOA shall be in writing and shall be effective only upon written approval by the 
AUTHORIZED AUTHORITIES of both PARTIES. 

 
 



Memorandum of Agreement 
OPHS Watershed Friendly Garden Project 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

ARTICLE 3 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 

 
3.1 As approved by the State Water Board, the County shall act as grantee and shall, 

as an eligible grant recipient, enter into the grant agreement with the State Water 
Board to implement the approved PROJECT and to administer grant requirements. 

 
3.2 In accordance with the agreement between the PARTIES, the County and OPUSD 

commit to the following: 
 
3.3 The County will:  

A) Design and construct the OPHS WFG PROJECT at the PROPERTY as proposed 
in the PROJECT conceptual design dated July 2016 and in accordance with the 
State Water Board’s Grant Agreement for PROJECT implementation. 

B) Provide all grant administrative functions and implementation of the PROJECT. 
C) Develop Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Plan for the OPHS WFG PROJECT. 
D) Develop and offer 2-hr O&M training for OPHS staff and other interested parties. 

 
3.4  The OPUSD will: 

A) Allow access to the PROPERTY to the County staff and County’s contractors and 
consultants during PROJECT implementation and any PROJECT-related 
activities. 

B) Supply water and applicable appurtenances for plant irrigation. 
C) Participate in development and review of PROJECT O&M Plan. 
D) Attend OPHS WFG O&M training provided by the County. 
E) Provide assistance for distribution of PROJECT educational brochures such as 

posting and distribution of PROJECT flyers at the OPHS. 
F) Conduct O&M activities for the lifetime of the PROJECT, estimated to be at least 

twenty (20) years after PROJECT is completed, in accordance with approved 
O&M Plan. O&M activities include, but are not limited, to watering, planting, 
seeding, landscape upkeep, mulch replacement and trash and litter removal 
within the PROJECT area. 

G) No cost reimbursement for OPUSD’s services will be provided. 
 

ARTICLE 4 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
4.1 APPROVAL BY PARTIES:   This MOA and any amendments thereto shall not be 
binding on the PARTIES unless approved by their AUTHORIZED AUTHORITY. 
 



Memorandum of Agreement 
OPHS Watershed Friendly Garden Project 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 
4.2 COMPLETE AGREEMENT:   This MOA constitutes the entire agreement between 
the PARTIES and the County with respect to the subject matter of this MOA.  No prior oral 
or written understandings or agreements between the PARTIES with respect to the subject 
matter of this MOA are incorporated herein and any such understandings or agreements 
are entirely superseded by this MOA. 
 
4.3 AMENDMENTS:   This MOA may not be amended without a written amendment 
approved by the PARTIES, as evidenced by the signature of their AUTHORIZED 
AUTHORITY. 
 
4.4 INTERPRETATION:   This MOA shall be interpreted and construed reasonably and 
neither for nor against any of the PARTIES, regardless of the degree to which any of the 
PARTIES participated in its drafting. 

 
4.5 SEVERABILITY:   If any term, provision, covenant, or condition of this MOA is 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the 
rest of the MOA shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired 
or invalidated. 

 
4.6 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS:   The PARTIES agree that they are, and at all 
times shall be, independent contractors of, and not the agent of the other. 

 
4.7 GOVERNING LAW:   This MOA shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California. 

 
4.8 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:   By entering into this MOA no PARTY is deemed to 
be transferring any intellectual property rights, including but not limited to proprietary 
information, patents and trademarks.  Each PARTY shall respect the intellectual property 
rights of the others, and shall not disclose any confidential information without prior written 
consent of the PARTY that has developed the confidential information. 
 
4.9 NOTICES:   All notices or correspondence under this MOA shall be given to the 
following addresses and shall be deemed delivered on the date of actual delivery or on the 
third business day after the date of mailing. 
 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT: 
 Anthony W. Knight  
 Superintendent, Oak Park Unified School District  

5801 East Conifer Street 
Oak Park, CA 91377 

 
COUNTY OF VENTURA: 
 Jeff Pratt 
 Director, Ventura County Public Works Agency 
 800 South Victoria Avenue 
 Ventura, CA 93009-1600 
 



Memorandum of Agreement 
OPHS Watershed Friendly Garden Project 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES have executed this MOA on the dates indicated 
below. 
 

OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  

_________________________________________  
By:  Anthony W. Knight, Superintendent  
       Oak Park Unified School District 

Date __________________ 

  
 

COUNTY OF VENTURA  

_________________________________________  
By: Jeff Pratt, Director  
      Ventura County Public Works Agency 

Date __________________ 



Attachment A 
Project Site Location Map 

 

 

Watershed Friendly 
Garden Site Location 



AdmSvs\Board\B.1.i.1. Notice of Completion Proj 15-08F Maintenance Facilities 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.1.i. APPROVE NOTICE OF COMPLETION, PROJECT 15-08F, 

MAINTENANCE FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 
 CONSENT 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve a notice of completion for Project 15-08F, 

Maintenance Facility Improvements? 
 
BACKGROUND: Approved in the District’s 2015-16 Adopted Budget, the District entered into 

multiple contracts with construction contractors for Project 15-08F, 
Maintenance Facility Improvements.  The district solicited proposals from 
contractors on the District’s list of contractors approved under the California 
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA), and awarded 
contracts to the following contractors: 

 
Contractor Trade Amount 
Mod Space, Inc. Modular Building/Installation $ 62,666 
Taft Electric Company Main Electrical System/Circuits $ 8,935 
MM Mechanical, Inc. Main Plumbing System Upgrade $ 13,286 
Pacificom, Inc. Data System Installation $ 5,906 
 Total $ 90,793 

 
 The work under these contracts are now complete, and the District’s staff and 

construction manager, Balfour Beatty Construction, has inspected the finished 
project and is satisfied that it has been completed in compliance with contract 
specifications.  It is recommended that the Board approve a Notice of 
Completion accepting the finished project. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the Notice of Completion for Project 15-08F, Maintenance Facility 

Improvements, contracted with the contractors identified above. 
 2. Do not approve the Notice of Completion. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted: 
 
   
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 _____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          



AdmSvs\Board\B.1.i.1. Notice of Completion Proj 15-08F Maintenance Facilities 08 16 16.docx 

 
 

 
Notice of Completion 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Oak Park Unified School District, a school district in Ventura County, is the 
owner in fee of the following described and real property, to-wit: 
 
Description:  District Administrative Office, 5801 Conifer Street, Oak Park, CA 91377  

 
That on or about August 14, 2015 the said Oak Park Unified School District of Ventura County entered into 
a contract with Mod Space, Inc. of Fontana, California, Taft Electric Co. of Ventura, California, MM 
Mechanical, Inc. of Carpinteria, California, and Pacificom, Inc. of Camarillo, California, for Project 15-
08F, Maintenance Facility Improvements, on certain real property hereinbefore described: that said 
building and improvements were actually completed on August 16, 2016: that the address of said Oak Park 
Unified School District is 5801 Conifer Street, Oak Park, CA 91377, Ventura County, California. 
 

OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
By Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D., Superintendent, Secretary to the 
Oak Park Unified School District Board of Trustees 

 
Anthony W. Knight, being first duly sworn, deposes and says: that he is secretary of the Board of Trustees 
of the Oak Park Unified School District, a school district of Ventura County, California: that he therefore 
verifies the foregoing Notice of Completion on behalf of said Oak Park Unified School District: that the 
Oak Park Unified School District of Ventura County, California is owner of the property described in the 
foregoing notice: that he has read the foregoing notice and knows the contents thereof: that he has personal 
knowledge of the facts therein stated: that the same are true. 
 

       
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D., Superintendent  

 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who 
signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of 
that document. 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA Oak Park Unified School District 
COUNTY OF VENTURA 
 
On ____________________________________________ before me, Shannan Kaesberg, Notary Public, 
personally appeared Anthony W. Knight, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the 
instrument the person(s), or entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
Signature ________________________________  (SEAL) 



AdmSvs/Board/B.1.j.1. Disposal of Surplus Equipment 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.1.j. APPROVE DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT 
 CONSENT 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve the disposal of two surplus and obsolete district vehicles, 

per the provisions of Education Code Section 17546? 
 
BACKGROUND: As authorized by the Board-approved Measure C6 Technology and Equipment 

Plan, the Business Operations department recently purchased two new 
maintenance trucks, replacing a 1992 Dodge pickup truck and a 2003 Ford 150 
van. The 1992 pickup and the 2003 van each need extensive repairs.  The new 
vehicle dealership declined to accept the two vehicles as trade-in, stating the 
vehicle are too old, had no value, and would cost more to repair than it is worth.  

 
The District has received an offer of $500 for the used truck and $500.00 for the 
used van from private individuals. Sales of this type require specific Board action 
and staff is requesting authorization to accept the offers. Education Code Section 
17546 provides that if the Board, by unanimous vote of those members present, 
finds that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value 
$2,500, it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by any employee of the 
district empowered to do so. Accordingly, staff recommends that the Board 
declare the 1992 Dodge pickup truck (VIN 2FTHF25H6NCA39929), and the 
2003 Ford 150 van (VIN 1FMRE11WO3HB44165), as surplus and obsolete 
equipment, and authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business and 
Administrative Services, to sell the vehicles to private individuals in the amount of 
$500 each. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Declare the 1992 Dodge pickup truck (VIN 2FTHF25H6NCA39929) and the 

2003 Ford 150 van (VIN 1FMRE11WO3HB44165) as surplus and obsolete 
surplus, and authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business and 
Administrative Services, to sell the vehicles to private individuals in the 
amount of $500 each. 

 2. Do not authorize the sale of surplus property. 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
  
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          



TO:  BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM:              DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE:              August 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT          B.1.k. APPROVE QUARTERLY REPORT ON WILLIAMS UNIFORM 
                           COMPLAINTS – July 2016 
___ ______________________________________   Consent    
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education Approve the Quarterly Williams Uniform 

Complaints-July 2016? 
 
BACKGROUND: As a result of a lawsuit filed against the State of California, the State Legislature 

passed several bills that codified the negotiated settlement to the suit.  One of the 
many requirements of this legislation is for school districts to establish a uniform 
complaint process to allow parents or member of the public to register written 
complaints regarding textbook/instructional materials sufficiency, teacher 
vacancy or missassignment, and hazardous conditions of school facilities.   

 
 Education Code 35186 requires the Superintendent or designee report 

summarized data on the nature and resolution of all Williams Uniform 
Complaints on a quarterly basis to the Board of Education and the County Office 
of Education.  The report shall include the number of complaints by general 
subject area with the number of resolved and unresolved complaints.  These 
summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly basis at a regularly scheduled 
Board meeting. 

 
ALTERNATIVES:  1.   Approve the Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints –July 2016 

2. Do not approve the Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints – 
July 2016 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Alternative #1.  
 
RATIONALE: It is the policy of the district to comply with federal and state laws and 

regulations governing education programs or activities which receive state or 
federal funding.   

 
      Respectfully submitted, 
  

     ______________________________________ 
      Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D.  

Superintendent 
 
 
 
Board Action:  On motion of _______________, seconded by______________, the Board of Education: 
 
 
VOTE:            AYES     NOES     ABSTAIN   ABSENT 
Hazelton  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Helfstein  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Laifman  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Rosen   ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Ross   ____     ____         ____        ____ 
Student Rep.  ____        ____         ____         ____ 



Revised 1/15/2008 
 

Quarterly Report on Williams and Valenzuela Uniform Complaints 
For Districts With Grades 10-12 Offering CAHSEE Intensive Instruction and Services 

[Education Code Section 35186] 
Fiscal year 2015-2016 

 
District:    Oak Park Unified School District  
 
Person completing this form: Dr. Jay Greenlinger 
 
Title:               Director Curriculum and Instruction  
 
Quarterly Report Submission Date:    q  October 2015 (7/1/15 to 9/30/15)  
(check one)          q  January 2016 (10/1/15 to 12/31/15) 
           q  April 2016  (1/1/16 to 3/31/16)  

      x  July 2016  (4/1/16 to 6/30/16) 
 
Date for information to be reported publicly at governing board meeting:  August 16, 2016 
Please check the box that applies: 
 

x No complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quarter 
indicated above. 

q Complaints were filed with schools in the district during the quarter indicated 
above.  The following chart summarizes the nature and resolution of these 
complaints. 

 

General Subject 
Area 

Total # of 
Complaints # Resolved # Unresolved 

Textbooks and 
Instructional 

Materials 
0   

Teacher Vacancy or 
Misassignment 0   

Facilities Conditions 0   

CAHSEE Intensive 
Instruction and 

Services 
0   

Totals 0   

 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D.                                        _____________________________           
Name of District Superintendent                              Signature of District Superintendent  



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: Dr. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:     B.1.l. APPROVE REQUEST FOR OVERNIGHT TRIP FOR OAK PARK HIGH 
                                 SCHOOL GIRLS’ VOLLEYBALL TEAM TO SAN LUIS OBISPO – SEPT.  
                                 9-10, 2016 
                             CONSENT  
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve an overnight trip for Oak Park High School girls’ volleyball team? 
 
BACKGROUND: Principal, Kevin Buchanan, requests approval for this tournament scheduled for Sept. 9-10, 

2016 in San Luis Obispo, CA. Approximately 12 athletes, head coach and 2 OPHS parent 
mom volunteers will travel by district approved drivers in district vehicles. They will 
depart on Friday Sept. 9th and return the evening of Sept. 10th. They will stay at the 
Embassy Suites-San Luis Obispo. Athletes will pay approximately between $75-$100 to 
cover the cost of meals, transportation and hotel. Accept this as certification that the 
Principal has reviewed and verified that all the required components of the approved Field 
Trip Planning Guide/Checklist have been met. 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.  Approve field trip as presented. 
   2.  Do not approve field trip as presented. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative #1. 
 
   
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 



AdmSvs/Board//B.2.a.1.Ratify Lobbying Consultant Agreement 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.a. RATIFY CONSULTANT AGREEMENT FOR POLITICAL 

LOBBYING SERVICES  
ACTION 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board ratify a consultant agreement for political lobbying services 

with the firm of Gonzalez, Quintana, Hunter & Cruz to assist the District in 
promoting the passage of SB 1432, which would extend the sunset and repeal 
dates for District of Choice (DOC) program? 

 
BACKGROUND: Absent any action by the State Legislature, the current DOC program 

authorized by Education Code sunsets in June 2017. Earlier this year, State 
senator Bob Huff introduced Senate Bill 1432, which if passed, would extend 
the sunset and repeal dates for DOC program to July 1, 2022.  While SB 1432 
was approved by the Senate on a 38-1 vote, it is facing vigorous opposition in 
the Assembly. The Assembly Education and Appropriations committees must 
both take action on the bill by June 30, 2016. Given the urgency of the 
approaching deadline, and the importance of the program to OPUSD, both 
financially and programmatically, it is in the District’s best interest obtain the 
assistance of a qualified political lobbying firm in supporting the passage of 
SB 1432. To that end, the District has entered into the attached consultant 
agreement for political lobbying services with the Sacramento firm of 
Gonzalez, Quintana, Hunter & Cruz, for the period June 21, 2016 through 
September 30, 2016.  Staff is actively seeking to build a coalition of other 
DOC districts to share the monthly fee of $4,000. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Ratify the consultant agreement for political lobbying services with the 

firm of Gonzalez, Quintana, Hunter & Cruz, per the attached agreement. 
 2. Do not ratify the consultant agreement for political lobbying services. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Alternate No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         







AdmSvs/Board/B.2.b.1. EPA Plan 2016-17 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:     B.2.b. APPROVE SPENDING PLAN FOR 2016-17 EDUCATION 

PROTECTION ACCOUNT FUNDS 
 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board review and discuss the proposed spending plan for the 2016-17 

Education Protection Account funds as required by Proposition 30? 
 
BACKGROUND: In November 2012, California voters approved Proposition 30, which 

established the Education Protection Account (EPA).  All temporary tax 
revenues collected from Proposition 30 over the next 7 years for income tax 
and 4 years for sales tax, are collected into the Education Protection Account 
and distributed to K-12 and Higher Education.  There are several requirements 
for local spending determination, disclosure, and reporting on the use of the 
EPA funds.  The governing board must determine the use of the EPA funds in 
an open session of a public meeting.  The EPA funds must be accounted for 
separately and not used for administrative costs. Additionally, Districts are 
required to annually report on their website an accounting of the EPA funds 
received and how those funds were spent. 

 
The proposed OPUSD spending plan for the 2016-17 Education Protection 
Account is attached for the Board’s information and review. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the proposed 2016-17 EPA Spending Plan as presented. 

2. After discussion, direct the Administration to make specified revisions to 
the proposed 2016-17 EPA Spending Plan. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Barbara Dickerson, Director, Fiscal Services 
 Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          



mklauss
Typewritten Text
- Resource 1400, Education Protection Act

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text
(56.3 FTE)

mklauss
Typewritten Text
(56.3 FTE)

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.c.1. Proj 15-08C Tech Office Construction 08 16 16.doc 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.c. RATIFY AGREEMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS, 

PROJECT 15-08C, TECHNOLOGY FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 
FROM MEASURE C6 BOND FUND 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board ratify agreements for construction contracts for Project 15-

08F, Technology Facility Improvements, and re-designate the project as 15-
08C, and authorize the use of the Measure C6 bond fund for this project? 

 
BACKGROUND: Approved in the District’s 2015-16 Adopted Budget, the District entered into 

multiple contracts with construction contractors for Project 15-08F, 
Technology Facility Improvements.  The district solicited proposals from 
contractors on the District’s list of contractors approved under the California 
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA), and awarded 
contracts to the following contractors: 

 
Contractor Trade Amount 
Omega Construction Principal Construction $ 62,228 
Taft Electric Company Main Electrical System/Circuits $ 15,230 
Thousand Oaks Electric Office Electrical Rewire/Installation $ 16,725 
Pacificom, Inc. Data System Installation $ 17,358 
Premier Carpet, Inc. Anti-Static Flooring Installation  11,486 
 Total $ 123,027 

 
Original paired with the Maintenance Facility Improvements project, funded 
from one-time General Fund discretionary funding, it is appropriate to fund 
this project from the Measure C6 bond fund. Bond Measure C6 specifically 
provides for “…up-to-date educational technology...including networking 
equipment…and the District program offices, etc.”  Accordingly, staff is 
requesting that the Board ratify the contracts as listed above, re-designate the 
project as Project 15-08C, Technology Facility Improvements, and authorize 
that the related expenditures to be charged to the Measure C6 bond fund. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Ratify the contracts as listed above, re-designate the project as Project 15-

08C, Technology Facility Improvements, and authorize the related 
expenditures to be charged to the Measure C6 bond fund. 

2. Do not ratify the agreements. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 



BOARD MEETING, AUGUST 16, 2016 
Subject: Ratify Agreements for Construction Contracts, Project 15-08C 
Technology Facility Improvements, From Measure C6 Bond Fund 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

AdmSvs/Board/B.2.c.1. Proj 15-08C Tech Office Construction 08 16 16.doc 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.d.1. Proj 15-08C Tech Office Equipment and Furniture 08 16 16.doc 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.d. APPROVE PURCHASE OF TECHNOLOGY FACILITY FURNITURE AND 

EQUIPMENT, PROJECT 15-08C FROM MEASURE C6 BOND FUND 
ACTION 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve the purchase of technology facility furniture and 

equipment in connection with Project 15-08C, Maintenance Facility 
Improvements, and authorize the use of the Measure C6 bond fund for this 
purchase? 

 
BACKGROUND: Approved in the District’s 2015-16 Adopted Budget, the District entered into 

contracts for Project 15-08C, Technology Facility Improvements.  In addition 
to the construction of the facilities, it was also necessary to upgrade and/or 
replace various equipment associated with the successful operation of the 
Technology Department and its support of the District’s schools and 
educational program. To that end, the District entered into contracts with the 
following vendors for the acquisition of necessary equipment and furniture: 

 
Vendor Equipment/Furniture Amount 
Southwest School Supply Task Chairs $ 1,917 
BizClicks Office Tech Workstations $ 6,964 
 Total $ 8,881 

 
It is appropriate to fund this project from the Measure C6 bond fund. Bond 
Measure C6 specifically provides for “…up-to-date educational 
technology...including networking equipment…and the District program 
offices, etc.”  Accordingly, staff is requesting that the Board approve the 
equipment and furniture purchases specified above, to be charged to the 
Measure C6 bond fund, in connection with Project 15-08C, Technology 
Facility Improvements, 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the purchase of technology facility furniture and equipment in 

connection with Project 15-08C, Maintenance Facility Improvements, and 
authorize the use of the Measure C6 bond fund for this purchase. 

2. Do not approve use of the Measure C6 bond fund for this purchase. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 



BOARD MEETING, AUGUST 16, 2016 
Subject: Approve Purchase of Technology Facility Furniture and Equipment 
From Measure C6 Bond Fund, for Project 15-08C 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

AdmSvs/Board/B.2.d.1. Proj 15-08C Tech Office Equipment and Furniture 08 16 16.doc 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



AdmSvs\Board\B.2.e.1. Notice of Completion Proj 15-08C Technology Facilities 08 16 16.doc 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.e. APPROVE NOTICE OF COMPLETION, PROJECT 15-08C, 

TECHNOLOGY FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 
 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve a notice of completion for Project 15-08C, 

Maintenance Facility Improvements? 
 
BACKGROUND: Approved in the District’s 2015-16 Adopted Budget, the District entered into 

multiple contracts with construction contractors for Technology Facility 
Improvements.  The district solicited proposals from contractors on the District’s 
list of contractors approved under the California Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Act (CUPCCAA), and awarded contracts to the following contractors: 

 
Contractor Trade Amount 
Omega Construction Principal Construction $ 62,228 
Taft Electric Company Main Electrical System/Circuits $ 15,230 
Thousand Oaks Electric Office Electrical Rewire/Installation $ 16,725 
Pacificom, Inc. Data System Installation $ 17,358 
Premier Carpet, Inc. Anti-Static Flooring Installation  11,486 
 Total $ 123,027 

 
 The work under these contracts are now complete, and the District’s staff and 

construction manager, Balfour Beatty Construction, has inspected the finished 
project and is satisfied that it has been completed in compliance with contract 
specifications.  It is recommended that the Board approve a Notice of 
Completion accepting the finished project. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the Notice of Completion for Project 15-08C, Technology Facility 

Improvements, contracted with the contractors identified above. 
 2. Do not approve the Notice of Completion. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted: 
 
   
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 _____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          



AdmSvs\Board\B.2.e.1. Notice of Completion Proj 15-08C Technology Facilities 08 16 16.doc 

 
 
 

Notice of Completion 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Oak Park Unified School District, a school district in Ventura County, is the 
owner in fee of the following described and real property, to-wit: 
 
Description:  District Administrative Office, 5801 Conifer Street, Oak Park, CA 91377  

 
That on or about August 14, 2015 the said Oak Park Unified School District of Ventura County entered into 
a contract with Omega Construction of Northridge, California, Taft Electric Co. of Ventura, California, 
Pacificom, Inc. of Camarillo, California, Thousand Oaks Electric Co., of Newbury Park, California, and 
Premier Carpet Inc., of Chatsworth, California, for Project 15-08C, Technology Facility Improvements, on 
certain real property hereinbefore described: that said building and improvements were actually completed 
on August 16, 2016: that the address of said Oak Park Unified School District is 5801 Conifer Street, Oak 
Park, CA 91377, Ventura County, California. 
 

OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
By Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D., Superintendent, Secretary to the 
Oak Park Unified School District Board of Trustees 

 
Anthony W. Knight, being first duly sworn, deposes and says: that he is secretary of the Board of Trustees 
of the Oak Park Unified School District, a school district of Ventura County, California: that he therefore 
verifies the foregoing Notice of Completion on behalf of said Oak Park Unified School District: that the 
Oak Park Unified School District of Ventura County, California is owner of the property described in the 
foregoing notice: that he has read the foregoing notice and knows the contents thereof: that he has personal 
knowledge of the facts therein stated: that the same are true. 
 

       
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D., Superintendent  

 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who 
signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of 
that document. 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA Oak Park Unified School District 
COUNTY OF VENTURA 
 
On ____________________________________________ before me, Shannan Kaesberg, Notary Public, 
personally appeared Anthony W. Knight, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the 
instrument the person(s), or entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
Signature ________________________________  (SEAL) 



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.f.1. Ratify Construction Contract Proj 16-02R ADA Upgrades OPHS Gym 08 16 16.doc 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.f. RATIFY AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 

PROJECT 16-02R, GYMNASIUM RESTROOM ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS AT OAK PARK HIGH SCHOOL 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board ratify an agreement for construction services for Project 16-

02R, Gymnasium Restroom Americans With Disability Act (ADA) 
improvements at Oak Park High School? 

 
BACKGROUND: In 2014, the Board of Education authorized Project 14-08F for the installation 

of new bleachers in the Oak Park High School gymnasium, made possible by a 
generous donation from Agoura Youth Basketball Association. Actual 
construction was not approved by the Division of the State Architect (DSA) 
until early 2016. In January, 2016, prior to the project’s approval, DSA 
increased its requirements for ADA access compliance, resulting in the 
immediate need for additional construction improvements to the OPHS gym 
foyer restrooms as a condition of proceeding with this project. Proposals were 
solicited from contractors on the District’s list of contractors approved under the 
California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA). Two 
contractors responded with bids, but the low bidder was unable to obtain the 
required bonds and its bid was rejected as non-responsive.  Consequently, a 
contract for this work was awarded to the following contractor: 
 
Contractor Trade Amount 
Omega Construction, Inc. Restroom ADA Modification $ 81,192 
 
It is appropriate to fund this additional work for ADA compliance from the 
Measure R bond fund. Bond Measure R specifically provides for 
“…improvements required to comply…with requirements of the Americans 
With Disability Act (ADA).”  Accordingly, staff is requesting that the Board 
ratify the contract as listed above, and re-designate the ADA portion of the 
project as Project 16-02R, Gymnasium Restroom ADA Improvements at Oak 
Park High School, and authorize that the related expenditures to be charged to 
the Measure R bond fund. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Ratify the contract with Omega Construction, Inc., in the amount of 

$81,182, re-designate the project as Project 16-02R, Gymnasium Restroom 
ADA improvements at Oak Park High School, and authorize the related 
expenditures to be charged to the Measure R bond fund. 

 2. Do not ratify the contracts. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 



BOARD MEETING, AUGUST 16, 2016 
Subject: Ratify Agreement for Construction Services for Project 16-02R, 
Gymnasium Restroom ADA Improvements at Oak Park High School 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

AdmSvs/Board/B.2.f.1. Ratify Construction Contract Proj 16-02R ADA Upgrades OPHS Gym 08 16 16.doc 

 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.g.1. Ratify Construction Contracts Proj 16-04R ADA Upgrades OHES 08 16 16.doc 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.g. RATIFY AGREEMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 

PROJECT 16-04R, AMERICANS WITH DISABILITY ACT (ADA) 
UPGRADES AT OAK HILLS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board ratify agreements for construction services for Project 16-04R, 

Americans With Disability Act (ADA) upgrades at Oak Hills Elementary School? 
 
BACKGROUND: In October 2015, the Board of Education authorized the installation of one 

Division of the State Architect (DSA) approved classroom at Oak Hills 
Elementary (Project 15-15F) in order to comply with Education Code 17292 
and Senate Bill 324.  Subsequently, in January 2016, DSA increased its 
requirements for ADA access compliance, resulting in the immediate need for 
additional construction improvements to the OHES restrooms and parking lot. 
Proposals were solicited from contractors on the District’s list of contractors 
approved under the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act 
(CUPCCAA), and contracts were awarded to the following contractors: 
 
Contractor Trade Amount 
Apex General Contractors Restroom ADA Modification $ 68,204 
Stumbaugh & Associates Restroom ADA Fixtures $ 5,194 
Hughes General Contractors Parking Lot ADA Modification $ 31,878 
 Total $ 105,276 
 
It is appropriate to fund this additional work for ADA compliance from the 
Measure R bond fund. Bond Measure R specifically provides for 
“…improvements required to comply…with requirements of the Americans 
With Disability Act (ADA).”  Accordingly, staff is requesting that the Board 
ratify the contracts as listed above, and re-designate the ADA portion of the 
project as Project 16-04R, ADA Upgrades at Oak Hills Elementary School, 
and authorize that the related expenditures to be charged to the Measure R 
bond fund. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Ratify the contracts as listed above, re-designate the project as Project 16-

04R, ADA Upgrades at Oak Hills Elementary School, and authorize the related 
expenditures to be charged to the Measure R bond fund. 

 2. Do not ratify the contracts. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 



BOARD MEETING, AUGUST 16, 2016 
Subject: Ratify Agreements For Construction Services For Project 16-04R, 
ADA Upgrades At Oak Hills Elementary School 
Page 2 of 2 
 

AdmSvs/Board/B.2.g.1. Ratify Construction Contracts Proj 16-04R ADA Upgrades OHES 08 16 16.doc 

 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



TO:                 MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
  
FROM:           DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
  
DATE:            AUGUST 16, 2016 
  
SUBJECT:      B.2.h.  APPROVE ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS 
                                                                                                                                                                                                ACTION  
ISSUE:                      Shall the Board acknowledge and accept donations made to the Oak Park Unified 

School District? 
  
BACKGROUND:    The following donations have been made to the District: 
  
 Site/Program       Gift/Donor                            Amount 
 Oak Park High Rocket Team     The Boeing Company           $6,000 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Accept the donations with thanks. 
  
                                                                                          Respectfully submitted, 
 
  ______________________________________ 

                                                                             Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
                                                                                          Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.i. Ratify Construction Contract Proj 16-06R OPHS Parking Lot 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.i. RATIFY AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 

PROJECT 16-06R, PARKING LOT RESURFACING AT OAK 
PARK HIGH SCHOOL 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board ratify an agreement with Quality Paving Company for construction 

services in connection with Project 16-06R, Parking Lot Resurfacing at Oak Park 
High School? 

 
BACKGROUND: In order to expedite the resurfacing and restriping of the parking lots at Oak Park 

High School before school begins on August 9, 2016, it has been necessary to 
engage construction services to complete this project, identified as Project 16-06R, 
Parking Lot Resurfacing at Oak Park High School.  Proposals were solicited from 
contractors on the District’s list of contractors approved under the California 
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA), two contractors 
responded with proposals, but only one, Quality Paving Company, was responsive 
to the bid specifications. Accordingly, a contract was awarded as follows:  

 
 COMPANY SCOPE OF WORK AMOUNT 
 Quality Paving Company Parking Lot Resurfacing  $ 81,110 
 

It is appropriate to fund this project from the Measure R bond fund. Bond language 
in Measure R specifically provides for “Upgrade...parking and vehicle 
access…including parking areas, pickup/drop-off, ingress/egress, etc.”  
Accordingly, staff is requesting that the Board ratify the contract listed above, and 
authorize that the related expenditures to be charged to the Measure R bond fund. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Ratify the agreement for construction services with Quality Paving Company, 

in the amount of $81,110, for Project 16-06R, Parking Lot Resurfacing at Oak 
Park High School as recommended above. 

 2. Do not ratify the agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.j.1. Ratify Construction Contracts Proj 16-07F MCMS Garden 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION  
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT  
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.j. RATIFY AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 

PROJECT 16-07F, CONSTRUCTION OF SCHOOL GARDEN AT 
MEDEA CREEK MIDDLE SCHOOL 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board ratify an agreement with Landscape Development, Inc. for 

construction services for Project 16-07F, Construction of School Garden at 
Medea Creek Middle School? 

 
BACKGROUND: It has long been a Board goal to establish school gardens at every school site. In 

2016-17, this has also been the goal of Medea Creek Middle School (MCMS) 
and its Parent-Faculty Club (PFC).  A budget of $100,000 was established for an 
MCMS garden, funded by a combination MCMS PFC donations and one-time 
discretionary funds, and included in the 2016-17 Local Control Accountability 
Plan (LCAP).  Project drawings were approved by the site in June 2016, and 
proposals were solicited from twelve contractors on the District’s list of companies 
approved under the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act 
(CUPCCAA). Three contractors responded with proposals, but only the following 
two were fully responsive to the bid specifications: 

 
 COMPANY SCOPE OF WORK AMOUNT 
 Landscape Development, Inc. Project Construction/Landscape  $  98,844 
 Hughes General Engineering Project Construction/Landscape  $126,680 
 

Accordingly, a contract was awarded to Landscape Development, Inc., and 
construction began in July 2016.  It is anticipated that the project will be completed 
by the opening of school on August 9, 2016. 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 1. Ratify the agreement for construction services with Landscape Development, 
Inc., in the amount of $98,844, for Project 16-07F, Construction of School 
Garden at Medea Creek Middle School. 

 2. Do not ratify the agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.k.1. Ratify Construction Contracts Proj 16-10F BES Outdoor Classroom 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  B.2.k. RATIFY AGREEMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 

PROJECT 16-10F, CONSTRUCTION OF KINDERGARTEN OUTDOOR 
CLASSROOM AT BROOKSIDE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board ratify agreements for construction services for Project 16-10F, 

Construction of Kindergarten Outdoor Classroom at Brookside Elementary 
School? 

 
BACKGROUND: The District’s 2015-16 and 2016-17 Local Control Accountability Plans 

(LCAP) call for the construction of an outdoor classroom in the Brookside 
Elementary School (BES) kindergarten yard as a priority project, to be funded 
from multiple sources. Those sources include $50,000 in 2015-16 one-time 
General Fund discretionary funding, $50,000 from the BES Parent-Teacher 
Association (PTA), $13,000 from BES site discretionary funding, as well as 
funds from both the Measure C6 and Measure R Bond Funds. 

 
The Board authorized a contract for landscape architectural services for this 
project with Brodersen Associates in May, 2016. Project drawings were 
approved by the site in June 2016, and proposals were solicited and contracts 
were awarded to contractors on the District’s list of companies approved under the 
California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA). 
Work on this project began in late June 2016. The following is a recap of the 
subject contracts, including recommended funding sources for each portion of 
work: 

 
 CONTRACTOR SCOPE OF WORK  AMOUNT FUNDING SOURCE 
 Brodersen & Associates Landscape Architect $ 17,350 Gen Fund One-Time 
 Hughes General Engineering Site Work/Hardscape $ 112,130 Measure R 
 Hughes General Engineering Landscape Portion $ 32,370 Gen Fund One-Time 
 Landscape Structures Playground Equipment $ 50,000 BES PTA 
 Landscape Structures Playground Equipment $ 40,851 Measure C6 
 Boething Treeland Shade Trees – 5 Sycamore $ 13,694 BES Site Funds 
 Fence Factory Perimeter Fencing $ 16,000 Measure R 
 Total Project Cost  $ 282,665  
 

Staff respectfully requests that the Board ratify the subject contracts, and authorize 
the use of the funding sources identified above. The one-time General Fund 
discretionary funding, BES PTA donation, and BES site discretionary funds 
are unrestricted funds, set aside specifically for this project. As permitted by 
Public Contract Code (PCC) 20118, the instructional playground equipment 
was purchased from Landscape Structures, utilizing the piggyback provision of 
California Multiple Award Schedule Contract 4-10-78-0057A.  It is requested 
that the Board authorize the use of this contract for the equipment purchase.  It 
is appropriate to fund a portion of this purchase from the Measure C6 bond fund, 
which specifically provides for purchases to “Replace playground equipment as 
needed to meet current safety standards.”  Accordingly, staff is requesting that the 
Board authorize that $40,851 of the instructional playground equipment 
expenditures be charged to the Measure C6 bond fund. It is also appropriate to 



BOARD MEETING, AUGUST 16, 2016 
Subject: Ratify Agreements for Construction Services for 
Project 16-10F, Construction of Kindergarten Outdoor Classroom 
At Brookside Elementary School 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

AdmSvs/Board/B.2.k.1. Ratify Construction Contracts Proj 16-10F BES Outdoor Classroom 08 16 16.docx 

fund the site and hardscape work performed by Hughes General Engineering, and 
the fence installation performed by Fence Factory from the Measure R bond fund. 
Bond language in Measure R specifically provides for “Upgrade, repair, replace, 
modify, or construct site improvements, paths, sidewalks, and 
walkways...landscaping improvements, irrigation and drainage, etc.”  Accordingly, 
staff is requesting that the Board authorize that $128,130 of the related 
expenditures to be charged to the Measure R bond fund. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Ratify the agreements for construction and landscape services with Hughes 

General Engineering, in the amount of $144,500, Fence Factory, in the 
amount of $16,000, and Boething Treeland, in the amount of $13,694, for 
Project 16-10F, Construction of Kindergarten Outdoor Classroom at 
Brookside Elementary School. 

2. Ratify the agreement with Landscape Structures, in the amount of $90,85, 
for instructional playground equipment, and authorize the use of CMAS 
Contract 4-10-78-0057A for this purchase. 

3. Authorize the expenditure of Measure C6 bond funds, in the amount of 
$40,851, for the purchase of instructional playground equipment for this 
project. 

4. Authorize the expenditure of Measure R bond funds, in the amount of 
$128,130, for the construction, site work, hardscape, drainage improvements 
and fencing related to this project. 

5. Do not ratify the contracts or authorize the funding sources. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Alternative Nos. 1 through 4. 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.l.1. Measure C6 Tech PurchaseTechLite and Tech Learning Coach  iPad Carts 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.l. APPROVE MEASURE C6 BOND FUND EQUIPMENT PURCHASE –

PROJECT 16-11C, iPAD CARTS TO SUPPORT NEW TECHLITES AND 
TECHNOLOGY LEARNING COACH 

ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve Measure C6 bond fund equipment purchases to support 

student instruction and staff development efforts of the District’s TechLITEs 
and new Technology Learning Coach as specified in the approved District 
Technology Plan? 

 
BACKGROUND: As outlined in the 2016-19 Technology Plan adopted by the Board at its meeting 

on April 19, 2016, the purchase of 140 iPad (Air2/64Gb) is required to furnish 
additional iPad carts for the new TechLITEs and the newly approved 
Technology Learning Coach who have come on board for the 2016-17 school 
year. TechLITEs are provided devices to provide a 1-to-1 teaching 
environment. It is recommended that Board authorize the purchase of 140 iPad 
(Air2/64Gb), in the amount of $73,100, and 20 carts for charging/storing the 
devices, in the amount of $24,705.  It is proposed that the funding for this 
purchase be provided by C6 bond funds and is part of the budgeted amount for 
2016-17 mobile device expansion that was projected in the adopted 2016-19 
Technology Plan, and the 5-year technology/C6 spending plan coming to the 
Board at its meeting in September 2016. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the purchase of 140 iPad (Air2/64Gb), in the amount of $73,100, 

and 20 carts for charging/storing the devices, in the amount of $24,705, to 
be funded from Measure C6. 

2. Do not approve the equipment purchase. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Enoch Kwok, Director, Educational Technology and Information Services 

Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
   
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          



/Board/B.3.a.1. Board Cover Sheet for Consultant Agreement- 2016-17.doc 

 
 
 
 
TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.3.a. APPROVE AUTHORIZATION TO EMPLOY AN ADMINISTRATIVE 

CONSULTANT 
 ACTION 
 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board authorize the employment of an administrative consultant? 
 
BACKGROUND: Prior to the significant reduction in funding for schools that began in 2008, the 

district’s personnel and educational programs were supported with a full-time 
Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources and a full-time Director of 
Curriculum and Instruction.   Seven years ago, as drastic budget cuts impacted 
local school budgets, the Superintendent and the Assistant Superintendent of 
Human Resources absorbed the responsibilities for curriculum and instruction.  
During this same time period the district added and expanded a number of 
programs, including the implementation of the Common Core Standards, related 
new assessment protocols and the state-mandated LCAP.   Additionally, the 
District of Choice program was expanded and required increased time and 
resources from the district office staff.  For the past six years a part-time 
administrative consultant has been hired to help fill the need for additional 
support.  While this has been helpful the necessity of reinstating the position of 
Director of Curriculum and Instruction has been a priority.  Recently the board did 
reinstate the position and a director has been hired. The recommendation from 
staff is to continue the part-time consultant position for one more year to provide 
oversight of the District of Choice program and to help transition areas of 
responsibility to current and new staff members. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.  Approve the authorization to employ an administrative consultant. 
                                          2.    Do not approve the authorization to employ an administrative consultant. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Leslie Heilbron, Ed.D. Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          
 
 



   

 
 

Oak Park Unified School District 
Human Resources Department 

5801 East Conifer Street, Oak Park, CA 91377 
 
 
 
 

Employment Agreement 
Between Clifford Moore and the Oak Park Unified School District 

For Administrative Consulting Services 
 
This employment Agreement between Clifford Moore, retired administrator, and the Oak Park 
Unified School District is required to support the educational services throughout the district 
during the 2016-2017 school year.  This agreement will renew the services provided by Mr. 
Moore to the district during the 2015-2016 school year under the conditions outlined below.   
 
Mr. Moore has agreed to continue to provide services to the District for the 2016-2017 school 
year in support of the administrative functions in the Human Resources and the Educational 
Services departments.  Under this agreement Mr. Moore will receive a daily per diem rate of 
$375 and continuing family health benefits coverage in PPO Plan 3B.   Health benefits coverage 
will be effective for Mr. Moore and his dependents through September 30, 2017. 
 
Mr. Moore will develop with the Superintendent a calendar of scheduled work days that will best 
support the District’s mission and goals.  Based on the needs of the District this work schedule 
will include a minimum of 100 days and a maximum of 110 days of support throughout the year 
in the areas assigned by the Superintendent.  In the event of budget cutbacks, it is acknowledged 
that the work year may be subject to a reduction in days and the consultant will work with the 
Superintendent to reduce days as may be necessary.     
 
Mr. Moore shall be deemed an employee of the District serving under a temporary contract for 
purposes of employment and health benefits.  Contracted days will be submitted monthly to the 
business department on a soft time card and monitored by the Superintendent’s Office.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clifford E. Moore, Consultant 
 
 
 

  
Date 

 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D., 
Superintendent  

  
Date 

 



Personnel/Board Agenda-Personnel 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.3.b. APPROVE 2016/2017 DECLARATION OF NEED FOR FULLY QUALIFIED 

EDUCATORS – POTENTIAL NEED FOR USE OF EMERGENCY 
CREDENTIALS  

 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education approve the Declaration of Need For Fully Qualified 

Educators form CL-500 for the 2016/2017 denoting our potential need for use of 
emergency credentials? 

 
BACKGROUND: In compliance with the new California requirement to submit annual declaration of 

need in anticipation of need for emergency credentialed staff, the Commission on 
Teacher Credentialing now requires each Board of Education to approve in public 
session, a declaration of anticipated needs in terms of staffing vacancies where 
emergency credentials may be needed.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.  Approve the accompanying form CL-500 denoting a revision for our potential 

need for the use of emergency credentials. 
 2.  Do not approve this Declaration of Need. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative #1 
 
RATIONALE: While we rarely have need to use other than a fully credentialed teacher, the 

“declaration of need” process allows us the option to retain the services of a partially 
credentialed teacher in hard to fill teaching areas, if needed. 

 
 Respectfully submitted, 
  
 
 ___________________________ 
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D.  
 Superintendent 
 
Prepared by: 
Leslie Heilbron, Ed.D.  
Assistant Superintendent, HR 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of ______________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep.         
 



DECLARATION OF NEED FOR FULLY QUALIFIED EDUCATORS 

FOR SERVICE IN A SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 adopted
 form

Enclose a copy of the board agenda item
 remain

FOR SERVICE IN A COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, STATE AGENCY OR NONPUBLIC SCHOOL OR AGENCY 

  o  t

e

Enclose a copy of the public announcement



                                                                                                                      

AREAS OF ANTICIPATED NEED FOR FULLY QUALIFIED EDUCATORS 

 must be 

LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS
ent its ts



EFFORTS TO RECRUIT CERTIFIED PERSONNEL 

EFFORTS TO CERTIFY, ASSIGN, AND DEVELOP FULLY QUALIFIED PERSONNEL 

 



AdmSvs/Board/B.3.c.1. Reclassification - Accounting Assistant II 08 16 16.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 

  SUBJECT:       B.3.c. APPROVE JOB DESCRIPTION AND RECLASSIFICATION 
FOR ACCOUNTING ASSISTANT III POSITION 

 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve the job description for Accounting Assistant III 

position and reclassify the more senior Accounting Assistant II employee to the 
new position? 

 
BACKGROUND: There are currently two employees in the Business Office holding the position of 

Accounting Assistant II, with the primary responsibility for the payroll, accounts 
payable, and accounts receivable functions. Over the last five years, state and 
federal regulations have increased both the quantity and complexity of the work 
of this department.  The more senior of the two Accounting Assistant II 
employees has assumed an advanced lead level in the research and development 
of practices for implementing current tax, pension, benefit, and other laws and 
regulations affecting payroll administration.  These include FMLA, CFRA, the 
new California sick leave law (AB 1522, amended by AB 304), the Affordable 
Care Act, and the new reporting requirements for both STRS and PERS.  The 
required work exceeds that outlined in the job description for Accounting 
Assistant II, and staff is recommending establishment of an Accounting 
Assistant III position and reclassifying the employee to that position.   

 
The revised job description for Accounting Assistant III is attached.  If approved 
by the Board, the plan is to reclassify the more senior of the two current 
Accounting Assistant II employees to the position of Accounting Assistant III at 
Range 23 on the classified salary schedule effective September 1, 2016.  The 
current year budget implications for this reclassification are approximately 
$4,200 including salary and salary generated benefits. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the job description for Accounting Assistant III position and 

reclassifying the more senior Accounting Assistant II to the new position.   
 2. Do not approve the job description for Accounting Assistant III. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative 1. 
 
Prepared by: Leslie Heilbron, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

                                                                                                                 Anthony W. Knight,  E.d.D. 
                                                                          Superintendent 

  



BOARD MEETING, AUGUST 16, 2016 
Approve Job Description and Reclassification 
For Accounting Assistant III Position  
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

AdmSvs/Board/B.3.c.1. Reclassification - Accounting Assistant II 08 16 16.docx 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep.         



Personnel/Job Descriptions/Accounting Assistant III 08.16.16 

OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

CLASS TITLE: ACCOUNTING ASSISTANT III 
 
DEFINITION 
This is a twelve (12) month per year, eight (8) hour per day position 
Salary Range: 23 on Classified Salary Schedule (CC/CH) 
 
Under direction of the Director of Fiscal Services, independently perform a variety of complex tasks at an 
advanced lead level in support of District business office operations, including payroll, accounts payable, 
and purchasing. Researches applicable federal, state and local laws, including Family Medical Leave Act 
(FMLA - a Federal law), the California Family Rights Act (CFRA – a state law), and must be able to 
integrated these rules and regulations into the bargaining unit’s leave requirements as specified in the 
contracts.  Analyzes fiscal data and ensures financial records for accuracy.   
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 
The Accounting Assistant III classification is the most experienced level classification in the Accounting 
Assistant series.  Incumbents serve as a resource to provide coordination and assistance at peak work 
times. They exercise responsibility for the accurate and timely performance of technical and specialized 
functions and support activities. Employees in this classification receive limited supervision within a 
broad framework of policies and procedures; they provide training and work direction to departmental 
staff and trouble-shoot problems in payroll, accounts payable, purchasing, accounting, food services, and 
employee benefits. The Accounting Assistant II classification is the mid-level classification in the 
Accounting Assistant series.  Incumbents perform a variety of complex accounting clerical duties 
independently in support of District purchasing and other business office operations.  The Accounting 
Assistant I classification is the entry-level classification in the Accounting Assistant series.  Incumbents 
perform a variety of routine and responsible accounting clerical duties in support of District payroll, 
accounts payable/receivable, purchasing and other business office operations. 
 
EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 
Ensures regulatory compliance of payroll system to all applicable guidelines, policies and procedures. 
Researches current tax, pension, benefit, and other laws and regulations affecting payroll administration, 
including FMLA, CFRA, the new California sick leave law (AB 1522, amended by AB 304), the 
Affordable Care Act, and the new reporting requirements for both STRS and PERS.  Participate in 
training and development of assigned staff; assist in planning and organizing department functions and 
providing work coordination of assigned staff.   
 
Consult, advise and resolve problems in payroll, accounting, food service, employee benefits, and 
purchasing; serve as liaison between Department and District personnel, governmental agencies regarding 
related activities and operations; answer questions, interpreting procedures and/or application of District 
policies.  
 
Accurately prepare and input payroll information in financial computer system to assure employee 
paychecks are accurate and issued according to scheduled payroll deadlines; audit employee time sheets 
to assure completeness and accuracy; compute vacation and sick leave allowances and overtime earnings; 
prepare and input accounts payable financial records in financial computer system; process documents 
such as invoices, purchase orders and warrants; audit invoices for correct extensions; assist District 
personnel with purchasing needs including mailing purchase orders to vendors, notification of price 
changes, or researching files to locate particular purchase orders; prepare and maintain a variety of 
financial records, files, logs and reports and make arithmetic calculations; provide a variety of 
information and assistance to District administrators and personnel, vendors, and others regarding payroll 



CLASS TITLE: ACCOUNTING ASSISTANT III 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

Personnel/Job Descriptions/Accounting Assistant III 

and fringe benefits, accounts payable and receivable, purchasing transactions, and District fiscal policies; 
assure compliance with State laws and legal requirements related to the payroll, purchasing, and accounts 
payable/receivable functions; maintain updated and accurate outside service contracts; enter cash received 
into cash receipts journal; operate office machines including computer terminal, calculator, and copiers; 
perform a variety of clerical duties including answering phones, word processing, filing and duplicating; 
open, sort and distribute department mail; perform related duties as assigned. 
 
EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS 
Knowledge of: Accounting, auditing and finance principles, practices and procedures; financial and 
statistical record keeping and controls; applicable legal and District guidelines which affect work; modern 
office practices, procedures and equipment; well-developed math skills to perform complex accounting 
and statistical computations; interpersonal skills including tact, patience and courtesy. 
 
Ability to: Perform a variety of complex and responsible accounting and clerical duties independently in 
support of District purchasing and business office operations; assure compliance with a variety of rules, 
regulations and established procedures; perform a variety of clerical duties including answering phones, 
word processing, filing and duplicating; communicate and work effectively with others to explain detailed 
information and work with staff in advisory capacity; perform arithmetic computations quickly and 
accurately; operate office machines. 
 
Education and Experience: Requires Associates Degree in accounting or finance or equivalent, plus four 
years of relevant and progressively responsible experience in governmental accounting, payroll or closely 
related field.  Alternatively, additional applicable experience may be substituted on the basis of two years 
of experience for one year of college.  Alternatively, additional applicable college courses may be 
substituted for experience on the basis of two years of education for one year of experience. 
 
WORKING CONDITIONS 
District Office environment; subject to frequent interruptions, demanding time lines and contact with 
District employees and the public. 



 
TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:     B.4.a. APPROVE CALIFORNIA SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 

MEMBERSHIP DUES ($7,532) AND EDUCATION LEGAL 
ALLIANCE MEMBERSHIP DUES ($1,883) FOR 2016-2017 

           Action  
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education approve California School Boards 

Association Membership Due and Education Legal Alliance Membership 
Dues for 2016-2017? 

 
STATEMENT: The Oak Park Unified School District has been a member of the California 

School Boards Association for many years.  As an additional part of 
membership in CSBA, OPUSD is a member in the Education Legal 
Alliance at an additional cost.  The cost of CSBA membership has 
increased $262 and Education Legal Alliance Membership Dues has 
increased $68 from last year.   

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve California School Boards Association Membership and 

Education Legal Alliance Membership Dues for 2016-2017. 
 2. Approve only the California School Boards Association Membership 

for 2016-2017. 
3. Do not approve California School Boards Association Education Legal 

Alliance Membership Dues for 2016-2017. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: At the Board’s discretion 
  
  
  Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
  ______________________ 
  Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
  Superintendent 
 
Board Action:  On motion of __________, seconded by_________, the Board of Education: 
 

 
VOTE:                AYES      NOES      ABSTAIN    ABSENT 
Hazelton               _____     _____       _____          _____ 
Helfstein               _____     _____       _____          _____ 
Laifman                _____     _____       _____          _____ 
Rosen                   _____     _____       _____          _____ 
Ross                      _____     _____       _____          _____ 
Student Member   _____     _____       _____          _____ 
 
 







TO:  BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.4.b. APPROVE PROPOSED BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE FOR THE 

2016-2017 SCHOOL YEAR 
           ACTION  
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve the proposed Board Meeting 

schedule for the 2016-17 School Year. 
 

BACKGROUND: The Board approved the 2016 meeting schedule through December 2016 
at the December 8, 2015 Board Meeting.  For planning purposes, the 
meetings for the entire 2016-2017 school year need to be scheduled.  The 
Board has not approved the dates listed below beginning with January 
2017 and we are asking the Board to consider the recommended dates at 
this time: 

 
   August 16, 2016 Single Regular Meeting in August 
   September 20, 2016 Single Regular Meeting in September 
   October 18, 2016 Single Regular Meeting in October 
   November 15, 2016 Single Regular Meeting in November 
   *December 6, 2016 Annual Organizational Meeting 
   (Falls within 15 days after 1st Friday) 
   January 17, 2017 Single Regular Meeting in January 
   February 21, 2017 Single Regular Meeting in February 
   March 21, 2017 Single Regular Meeting in March 
   April 18, 2017 Single Regular Meeting in April 
   May 16, 2017  Single Regular Meeting in May 
   **May 31, 2017 Budget Study Session Meeting 
   ***June 21, 2017 Single Regular Meeting in June 
   TBD   Board Retreat 
   
   *     First Tuesday of the month 
                         **   Fifth Wednesday of the Month 
   *** Third Wednesday of the Month 
 
 
     Respectfully submitted: 
 
     ____________________________ 
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
Board Action:  On motion of __________, seconded by _________, the Board of Education: 
VOTE:            AYES     NOES     ABSTAIN   ABSENT 
Hazelton  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Helfstein  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Laifman  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Rosen   ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Ross   ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Student Rep  ____        ____         ____         ____ 



TO:  BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:     B.4.c REVIEW, AMEND, AND APPROVE 2016-2017 MORAL 

IMPERATIVES, GOALS AND ACTION PLANS 
___ ______________________________________                 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education review, amend and approve the 2016-2017 

Moral Imperatives, Goals and Action Plans?   
 
BACKGROUND: On June 26, 2016 at the Board Retreat, the Board of Education began the 

process of reviewing and amending the 2016-2017 Moral Imperatives and 
Goals.  The Leadership Team reviewed and amended this document at 
their Retreat on July 28, 2016.  Staff has been visiting school sites to get 
their input as well.  At this time, the Board will review those changes.   

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the amended 2016-2017 Moral Imperatives, Goals and 

Action Plans. 
 2. Do not approve the amended 2016-2017 Moral Imperatives, Goals and 

Action Plans.  
 

RECOMMENDATION:  At Board’s discretion. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 

Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
Board Action:  On motion of ________, seconded by__________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE:            AYES     NOES     ABSTAIN   ABSENT 
Hazelton  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Helfstein  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Laifman  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Rosen   ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Ross   ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Student Rep  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

1 

 

We believe that every Student 
 
Will Learn and Exceed California State Standards 

● By offering learning	  opportunities	  that are	  as	  authentic	  as	  possible,	  and	  personally meaningful and readies them for the 21st century 
● By providing programs that emphasize creativity	  and	  participation	  in	  the	  Arts 
● By providing this in	  a	  safe,	  stable,	  balanced	  and	  nurturing	  environment 

Will Reach Their Individual Potential 
● By empowering Students	  to explore, create, discover	  and reflect 
● By encouraging students to become	  independent	  lifelong	  learners,	  thinkers	  and	  producers 
● By ensuring the well-being of the whole child including	  nutrition,	  physical	  fitness,	  stress	  management	  and mental health  

Will Become a Compassionate and Creative Global Citizen 
● By recognizing, celebrating and embracing diversity, inclusiveness and personal beliefs 
● By fostering character	  development,	  acceptance,	  ethical	  and	  compassionate	  behavior,	  social	  responsibility,	  community	  service	  and	  global	  

stewardship 
 
We	  believe: 
 

● Every	  student	  can	  learn,	  will	  reach	  their	  individual	  potential	  and	  will	  meet	  or	  exceed	  the	  New	  California	  Standards.	   
● The	  learning	  experience	  will	  include	  time	  for	  thoughtful	  reflection	  so	  that	  students	  learn	  to	  value	  and	  take	  pride	  in	  their	  work	  and	  understand	  

the	  processes	  by	  which	  they	  learn	  most	  effectively. 
● Learning	  opportunities	  should	  be	  as	  authentic	  as	  possible	  and	  personally	  meaningful.	  	  Students	  need	  to	  explore,	  create	  and	  discover. 
● Every	  student	  should	  be	  encouraged	  to	  become	  independent	  lifelong	  learners,	  thinkers	  and	  producers	  and	  stay	  true	  to	  themselves. 
● Each	  student’s	  natural	  joy	  of	  learning	  needs	  to	  be	  developed	  in	  a	  safe,	  stable,	  balanced	  and	  nurturing	  psychological	  and	  social	  environment. 
● All	  students	  should	  receive	  instruction	  that	  is	  differentiated.	  	  Learning	  experiences	  should	  emphasize	  depth,	  complexity,	  and	  novelty. 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

2 

 

● All	  students	  should	  participate	  in	  programs	  that	  foster	  character	  development,	  acceptance	  ethical	  and	  compassionate	  behavior,	  social	  
responsibility,	  community	  service	  and	  global	  stewardship,	  and	  exhibit	  the	  developed	  skills	  in	  all	  arenas	  and	  modes	  of	  interaction,	  including	  
cyberspace. 

● We	  recognize	  and	  celebrate	  diversity	  and	  understand	  it	  is	  our	  obligation	  to	  prepare	  our	  students	  with	  the	  appropriate	  tools	  and	  skills	  to	  live	  
in	  a	  global	  society. 

● Technology	  is	  one	  of	  the	  tools	  to	  enhance	  the	  learning	  experience	  and	  should	  become	  an	  internalized	  method	  of	  learning	  and	  expression,	  but	  
should	  not	  be	  emphasized	  to	  the	  exclusion	  of	  cursive	  handwriting,	  reading	  books,	  painting,	  drawing,	  and	  constructing	  with	  authentic	  
materials. 

● All	  aspects	  of	  student	  wellness	  are	  of	  paramount	  importance.	  	  This	  includes	  child	  nutrition,	  physical	  fitness,	  stress	  reduction	  and	  mental	  
health	  and	  well-‐being. 
 

GOALS ACTION	  PLANS/MEASURABLE	  OUTCOMES 
1a.	  Ensure	  continued	  success	  with	  the	  Common	  Core/New	  California	  
Standards,	  Prepare	  for	  the	  new	  state	  accountability	  standards	  including	  
continued	  communication	  to	  parents	  regarding	  the	  meaning	  of	  common	  core	  
state	  standards,	  SBAC	  testing	  and	  scores.	   

● Develop	  a	  plan	  that	  includes	  material	  acquisition,	  Support	  the	  
implementation	  of	  math	  instructional	  materials,	  professional	  
development,	  and	  technology	  integration.	   

● Evaluate	  ELA	  materials	  for	  K-‐5	  to	  determine	  the	  best	  model	  for	  
literacy	  instruction.	   

● Expand	  the	  ongoing	  use	  of	  Reader’s	  and	  Writer’s	  Workshop	  in	  K-‐5	  
classroom	  through	  coaching	  support	  and	  professional	  development.	  

● Provide	  aide	  support	  and	  smaller	  class	  sizes	  for	  students	  in	  the	  ELA	  
Support	  Core	  classes	  at	  MCMS.	  

● Support	  the	  transition	  to	  digital	  materials	  for	  ELA	  at	  OPHS.	  
● Develop	  a	  comprehensive	  math	  instruction	  plan	  for	  OPIS/OVHS.	  
● Explore	  implementation	  of	  Next	  Generation	  Science	  Standards. 
● Use	  a	  Science	  Articulation	  Team	  to	  evaluate	  materials,	  identify	  

professional	  development	  needs,	  and	  create	  a	  comprehensive	  NGSS	  
scope	  and	  sequence.	  

● Explore	  opportunities	  for	  articulation	  between	  and	  among	  schools,	  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

3 

 

grade	  levels,	  and	  departments.	  
● Transition	  from	  STAR	  assessments	  to	  Smarter	  Balance	   
● Provide	  staff	  development	  in	  using	  tool-‐,	  such	  as	  EADMS	  and	  

FastBridge-‐	  to	  create	  and	  administer	  standards-‐aligned	  formative	  
assessments. 

● Help	  define	  the	  role	  of	  Continue	  to	  communicate	  with	  parents	  in	  
about	  the	  implementation	  of	  the	  New	  California	  Standards. 

● Begin	  to	  discuss	  the	  creation	  of	  a	  cumulative	  digital	  learning	  portfolio	  
for	  all	  students	  K-‐12.	  

● Evaluate	  Math	  materials	  for	  Middle	  and	  High	  School	  at	  OPIS.	  
1b.	  Continue	  our	  emphasis	  on	  differentiated	  instruction	  so	  that	  all	  of	  our	  
students	  experience	  a	  challenging	  learning	  environment	  through	  depth,	  
complexity,	  and	  real	  world	  applications,	  so	  that	  they	  can	  find	  and	  pursue	  their	  
passion 

● Provide	  more	  specialized	  professional	  development	  for	  teachers	  and	  
staff. 

● Provide	  professional	  development	  that	  balances	  teacher	  choice	  with	  
common	  instructional	  practices	  in	  order	  to	  offer	  a	  more	  cohesive	  
program	  across	  schools,	  department,	  and	  grade	  levels.	  	  

● Embed	  this	  emphasis	  into	  all	  teacher	  goal	  setting	  and	  evaluation	  
processes 

● All	  instructional	  staff	  should	  have	  goals	  related	  to	  this. 
● Provide	  more	  opportunities	  and	  time	  for	  staff	  to	  share	  with	  one	  

another	  best	  practices	  and	  expertise	  across	  all	  areas,	  such	  as	  visiting	  
each	  other’s	  classrooms,	  conducting	  workshops	  and	  e-‐learning,	  and	  
the	  Demonstration	  Day	  at	  MCMS.	   

● Release	  teachers	  to	  observe	  each	  other	  to	  hone	  expertise	  in	  this	  
area. 

● Implement	  -‐with	  fidelity-‐	  a	  CTE	  program	  that	  allows	  student	  to	  
pursue	  their	  passions	  and	  interests	  in	  meaningful	  ways,	  including	  
internships,	  community	  resources,	  field	  trips,	  and	  authentic	  
experiences.	  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

4 

 

● Explore	  internships	  for	  our	  students	  at	  the	  secondary	  level. 
● Bring	  in	  outside	  and	  community	  resources. 
● Design	  new	  or	  additional	  field	  experiences	  for	  students	  at	  all	  levels. 
● Expand	  student	  interns	  for	  Technology	  Department 
● Establish	  a	  new	  intensive	  OVHS	  career	  exploration	  program	  for	  all	  

11th	  graders. 
● Expand	  STEAM	  night	  program	  and	  career	  exploration	  opportunities. 
● Expand	  Odyssey	  of	  the	  Mind	  program	  K-‐8	  and	  look	  for	  alternatives	  to	  

the	  I2I	  program. 
● Communicate	  and	  publicize	  the	  GATE	  program	  to	  show	  how	  

differentiated	  instruction	  is	  embedded	  into	  our	  instructional	  
program.	  

● Ensure	  students	  are	  made	  aware	  of	  a	  variety	  of	  resources,	  including	  	  
financial,	  for	  college	  and	  career	  decision-‐making	  

● Encourage	  more	  students	  to	  opt	  for	  4-‐year	  colleges	  upon	  graduation	  
from	  high	  school	  and	  ensure	  proper	  guidance	  throughout	  a	  student’s	  
academic	  career	  if	  this	  is	  their	  chosen	  path.	  	  If	  a	  4-‐year	  college	  is	  
their	  chosen	  path,	  then	  during	  annual	  counselor	  meetings,	  review	  
progress	  towards	  UC	  a-‐g/Cal	  State	  requirements.	  	  

● Explore	  ways	  to	  implement	  CP	  courses	  at	  OVHS.	  
● Explore	  individual	  aspects	  of	  the	  AVID	  program	  for	  applicability	  	  to	  

identified	  Oak	  Park	  students.	  
● The	  National	  Clearing	  House	  program	  will	  be	  used	  to	  track	  post-‐

secondary	  school	  data.	  	  
	  	   

1c.	  Ensure	  that	  there	  is	  a	  smooth	  transition	  in	  math	  between	  elementary	  and	  
middle	  school,	  and	  middle	  and	  high	  school	  inclusive	  of	  all	  students	  at	  all	  
levels,	  including	  a	  focus	  on	  benchmarks	  for	  transition	  to	  the	  next	  level. 

● Math	  articulation	  committee	  (K-‐12)	  will	  focus	  this	  year	  on	  transitions	  
from	  grades	  5	  to	  6	  and	  8	  to	  9.	   

● Set	  new	  math	  benchmarks	  for	  elementary	  level	  as	  part	  of	  the	  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

5 

 

textbook	  pilot	  of	  Go	  Math. 
● A	  committee	  will	  be	  formed	  to	  look	  at	  new	  materials	  for	  grades	  DK-‐

12.	   
● Strengthen	  intervention	  program	  at	  secondary	  level. 
● Use	  digital	  tools,	  such	  as	  Use	  EADMS	  to	  create	  multiple	  measures	  for	  

Math	  diagnostics. 
● Use	  EADMS	  to	  create	  standards	  aligned	  benchmark	  assessments 
● High	  School	  will	  convert	  to	  using	  iXL	  for	  math	  intervention	  program. 

1d.	  Help	  our	  students	  find	  and	  pursue	  their	  passion.	    
1d.	  STEAM	  instruction	  will	  have	  an	  overreaching	  plan	  with	  emphasis	  at	  all	  
levels	  on	  experiential	  learning	  and	  will	  support	  the	  NGSS	  to	  serve	  as	  a	  
foundation	  for	  academic	  success.	   

● Expand	  I2I	  and	  look	  at	  other	  programs	  and	  competitions	  to	  involve	  
more	  students	  and	  teachers. 

● Find	  ways	  to	  integrate	  marine	  science	  into	  the	  existing	  program	  and	  
provide	  more	  opportunities	  for	  students	  to	  learn	  about	  and	  
participate	  in	  protecting	  the	  ocean	  environment. 

● Offer	  environmental,	  computer	  robotics	  and	  rocketry	  electives	  at	  
MCMS.	  Continue	  to	  support	  participation	  in	  robotics,	  rocketry	  and	  
solar	  boat	  teams	  at	  OPHS.	   

● Continue	  to	  offer	  Introductory	  &	  AP	  Computer	  Programming	  at	  
OPHS. 

● Integrate	  Science	  Specialist	  in	  STEAM	  instruction	  at	  all	  grade	  levels.	   
● Begin	  implementation	  and	  training	  for	  the	  Next	  Generation	  Science	  

Standards	  at	  all	  levels. 
● Examine	  a	  sustainable	  agricultural	  science	  program,	  K-‐12. 
● Continue	  to	  expand	  and	  develop	  Career	  Pathways	  through	  VC	  

Innovates	  consortium. 
● Expand	  STEAM	  Night,	  Science	  Nights	  at	  the	  schools,	  garden	  program	  

and	  other	  such	  experiences. 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

6 

 

 
1e.	  Continue	  to	  define,	  communicate	  and	  enhance	  GATE	  program. ● Support	  the	  Odyssey	  of	  the	  Mind	  program	  at	  the	  K-‐8	  levels. 

● Encourage	  more	  professional	  development	  for	  staff	  and	  offerings	  for	  
parents	  that	  include	  Critical	  Thinking	  Instructional	  methodologies,	  
strategies,	  and	  approaches,	  at	  residential	  summer	  programs	  at	  the	  
national	  centers	  and	  Local	  and	  National	  Gate	  conferences	  and	  
workshops. 

● Continue	  to	  articulate	  and	  expand	  the	  enrichment	  opportunities	  
available	  to	  students	  at	  all	  of	  the	  schools.	  	   

● Ensure	  that	  the	  three	  pillars	  of	  a	  quality	  GATE	  program	  are	  in	  place	  
at	  all	  levels:	  	  Differentiation,	  Acceleration,	  and	  Enrichment.	  	   

● Encourage	  expanded	  parent	  participation	  on	  GATE	  DAC. 
● Encourage	  or	  incentivize	  teachers	  to	  complete	  District	  level	  GATE	  

certification. 	   
● Review the process for GATE certification and any incentives for 

achieving this. 
● Better	  communicate	  the	  OPUSD	  GATE	  program	  to	  parents	  and	  staff	  

including	  showcasing	  best	  practices	  in	  teaching	  and	  learning.	   
1f.	  Intervention	  programs	  will	  be	  available	  to	  students	  in	  reading,	  writing	  and	  
mathematics	  at	  all	  levels.	   

● Explore	  new	  models	  for	  math	  intervention	  program	  at	  grades	  7	  and	  
8	  at	  MCMS.	  	   

● OPHS	  will	  continue	  efforts	  	  to	  design	  and	  implement	  math	  
placement	  and	  intervention	  procedures	  to	  increase	  the	  percentage	  
of	  students	  enrolled	  in	  higher	  level	  math	  classes	  and	  instead	  provide	  
earlier	  intervention	  for	  those	  not	  meeting	  graduation	  requirements	  
to	  allow	  concurrent	  progress	  in	  all	  areas. 

● Pilot	  a	  systematic	  response	  to	  intervention	  program	  at	  the	  
elementary	  level	  that	  targets	  individual	  skills	  deficits. 

● Increase	  EADMS	  implementation	  to	  include	  diagnostic	  formative	  and	  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

7 

 

summative	  Standards	  -‐based	  assessments	  across	  scope	  and	  
sequence	  of	  OPHS	  Math	  curriculum. 

● Research	  Pilot	  a	  new	  literacy	  intervention	  program	  	  (“Support	  Core”	  
in	  grades	  6,	  7	  and	  8)	  at	  MCMS. 

● Expand	  of	  Pilot	  FAST	  BRIDGE	  assessment	  tool	  (literacy	  and	  math)	  to	  
include	  	  MCMS	  and	  ES’s 

● Continue	  the	  Math	  Skills	  Computer-‐Adaptive	  Learning	  Lab	  to	  
facilitate	  student	  acceleration	  through	  Math	  scope	  &	  sequence. 

● OPIS	  is	  reviewing	  a	  math	  program	  that	  will	  implement	  new	  California	  
Math	  Standards	  and	  continuing	  Khan	  Academy	  access. 

1g.	  The	  district	  shall	  embrace	  global	  stewardship	  and	  integrate	  environmental	  
awareness	  throughout	  the	  curriculum	  at	  all	  levels. 

● EEAC	  will	  plan	  events	  and	  areas	  of	  focus	  throughout	  the	  school	  year. 
● Create	  learning	  opportunities	  about	  renewables. 
● Help	  students	  make	  the	  connection	  between	  food	  and	  the	  

environment,	  hunger,	  food	  insecurity	  and	  poverty	  locally,	  nationally,	  
and	  globally. 

● Recycling	  programs	  will	  be	  expanded	  at	  all	  levels	  to	  include	  food	  
waste	  composting,	  100%	  recycling	  of	  paper	  and	  other	  items	  to	  take	  
us	  toward	  Zero	  Waste.	  	   

● Science	  enrichment	  programs	  will	  emphasize	  environmental	  science. 
● Energy	  conservation	  will	  be	  monitored	  and	  quantified.	  Students	  will	  

learn	  about	  new	  renewable	  energy	  projects. 
● Students	  will	  learn	  about	  water	  and	  water	  conservation	  and	  develop	  

and	  participate	  in	  projects	  to	  save	  water	  at	  each	  school	  site. 
● Training	  for	  Environmental	  Education	  Initiative	  will	  begin	  through	  

the	  District	  Science	  Specialist. 
● Promote	  awareness	  of	  animal	  welfare	  issues	  and	  help	  students	  

develop	  compassion	  for	  people,	  animals,	  and	  the	  diversity	  of	  life	  on	  
earth. 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

8 

 

● Implement	  the	  Integrated	  Pest	  Management	  programs	  at	  all	  school	  
sites.	  

● Integrate	  content	  standards	  into	  school	  garden	  instructional	  
activities.	  

1h.	  	  Ensure	  that	  STEAM	  instruction	  includes	  a	  robust	  arts	  program,	  including	  
performing,	  instrumental,	  media,	  technical	  and	  visual	  art	  forms,	  and	  
emphasizes	  individual	  creativity	  and	  self-‐expression.	   

● Continue	  restructuring	  &	  coordinating	  the	  elementary	  art	  and	  music	  
programs. 

● Continue	  to	  promote	  and	  develop	  instrumental	  	  music	  program	  at	  
OPHS	  to	  include	  a	  marching	  band	  color	  guard	  and	  strings	  orchestra. 

● Prepare	  for	  the	  development	  of	  an	  orchestral	  program	  at	  the	  high	  
school.	   

● Work	  with	  Friends	  of	  Oak	  Park	  Schools	  to	  develop	  more	  enriching	  
visual	  arts	  programs	  at	  the	  elementary	  schools. 

● Implement	  Animation	  elective	  at	  MCMS	  
● Encourage	  arts	  integration	  across	  the	  curriculum	  at	  K-‐8	  
● Explore	  finding	  sources	  of	  funds	  to	  fully	  support	  regular	  instruction	  

and	  integration	  of	  the	  visual	  arts	  in	  the	  elementary	  schools.	  
● Continue	  and	  expand	  the	  STEAM	  career	  night	  at	  MEDEA	  and	  other	  

career	  exploration	  across	  grades	  K-‐8.	  
 

1i.	  Continue	  the	  district	  wide	  emphasis	  on	  wellness	  and	  balance,	  and	  the	  
development	  of	  new	  strategies	  to	  reduce	  stress	  and	  a	  plan	  to	  monitor	  the	  
ongoing	  impact.	  	  	  	  Innovate	  in	  the	  area	  of	  thought	  leadership	  (?)	  on	  the	  subject	  
and	  drive	  a	  common	  vision	  throughout	  all	  levels	  of	  the	  district.	  Update	  the	  
high	  school	  Health	  program	  so	  that	  it	  is	  in	  line	  with	  this	  (and	  other)	  goals.	  
(Action	  Item?) 
 

● Student	  nutrition	  program	  will	  continue	  to	  improve	  food	  quality	  and	  
serve	  more	  natural	  and	  organic	  food	  and	  plant-‐based	  menu	  items. 

● Student	  Nutrition	  staff	  to	  provide	  pilot	  lessons	  at	  the	  elementary	  
level	  to	  help	  students	  make	  connections	  between	  physical	  fitness,	  
health	  and	  science	  curriculum	  and	  nutrition.	  	  

● Evaluate	  and	  potentially	  adjust	  the	  existing	  high	  school	  Health	  
program	  to	  ensure	  it	  is	  in-‐line	  with	  District	  goals.	  

● Provide	  concise	  and	  consistent	  communication	  and	  implementation	  
of	  the	  Wellness	  Policy	  across	  all	  sites.	  	  Provide	  support	  to	  parent	  and	  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

9 

 

student	  groups	  to	  help	  them	  understand	  and	  interpret	  the	  wellness	  
policy	  and	  legal	  restrictions	  for	  serving	  food. 

● Develop	  a	  sustainable	  agriculture	  program	  K-‐12. 
● Uniformity	  and	  balance	  of	  the	  student	  workload	  will	  continue	  to	  be	  

reviewed,	  particularly	  as	  it	  relates	  to	  the	  quantity	  and	  quality	  of	  
assigned	  homework	  and	  projects.	  Balance	  the	  educational	  benefit	  of	  
homework	  	  with	  the	  time	  spent	  completing	  it. 

● Support	  EEAC	  theme	  for	  this	  year:	  Making	  Peace	  with	  the	  Natural	  
World.	  	  California	  Wild	  and	  Food	  Waste. 

● Continue	  to	  monitor	  student	  stress	  levels,	  attendance,	  and	  overall	  
balance	  through	  the	  Healthy	  Kids	  survey	  and	  Safe	  Kids	  Task	  Force. 

● Provide	  more	  opportunities	  for	  Girls’	  Empowerment	  Counseling	  
group	  at	  OVHS/OPIS.	  

● Expand	  counseling	  group	  opportunities	  from	  Ventura	  County	  
Behavioral	  Health	  at	  OPIS/OVHS.	  	  

● Challenge	  Success	  Committees	  will	  continue	  to	  develop	  and	  
implement	  process	  and	  programs	  to	  reduce	  student	  stress.	   

● Incorporate	  Implement	  the	  action	  items	  relating	  to	  student	  stress	  
Challenge	  Success	  recommendations	  into	  as	  written	  in	  the	  high	  
school	  WASC	  action	  plan. 

● Promote	  and	  monitor	  the	  use	  of	  stress	  reduction	  strategies	  at	  all	  
levels	  and	  including	  parents,	  staff	  and	  students.	  

● Continue	  implementing	  TUPE	  (Tobacco	  Use	  Prevention	  Education)	  in	  
Grades	  6-‐12	  and	  include	  the	  dangers	  of	  e-‐cigarettes	  and	  marijuana.	   

1j.	  Refine	  our	  physical	  education	  and	  athletic	  programs	  to	  ensure	  they	  
emphasize	  and	  develop	  leadership,	  teamwork,	  diversity,	  and	  individual	  
athletic	  potential,	  and	  life-‐long	  physical	  fitness.	  Investigate	  the	  potential	  of	  an	  
off-‐site	  aquatics	  program. 

● Support	  the	  new	  elementary	  physical	  education	  program	  that	  will	  
include	  wellness	  and	  nutrition	  education	  in	  addition	  to	  teaching	  
students	  about	  being	  physically	  active	  for	  life. 

● Make	  connections	  between	  health	  nutrition	  education	  provided	  by	  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

10 

 

classroom	  teachers	  and	  the	  food	  services	  program.	  
● Coordinate	  elementary	  health	  education	  instruction	  between	  the	  

classroom	  teachers	  and	  physical	  education	  teachers.	  
● Expand	  athletic	  opportunities	  for	  students	  by	  adding	  additional	  

sports	  &	  levels	  to	  programs	  already	  in	  place.	   
● Develop	  positive	  leadership	  skills	  in	  athletics. 
● Continue	  to	  require	  the	  National	  Federation	  of	  State	  High	  School	  

Associations,	  Fundamentals	  of	  Coaching	  course	  for	  new	  coaches.	  	   
● Continue	  administrative	  oversight	  of	  team	  sports	  and	  coaches	  and	  

follow	  a	  CIF	  Code	  of	  Ethics	  for	  coaches. 
● More	  flexibility	  will	  be	  available	  in	  terms	  of	  P.E.	  credit	  for	  in	  school	  

and	  out	  of	  school	  athletics. 
● Ensure	  that	  athletic	  participation	  is	  linked	  to	  safety	  and	  positive	  well	  

being	  for	  life. 
 

1k.	  Continue	  to	  offer	  special	  education	  programs	  that	  will	  provide	  the	  best	  
possible	  outcomes	  in	  terms	  of	  meeting	  the	  specific	  needs	  of	  each	  child. 

● Continue	  specialized	  staff	  development	  for	  special	  education	  
teachers	  with	  an	  emphasis	  on	  evidence-‐based	  practicess,	  including	  
increasing	  the	  number	  of	  teachers	  who	  have	  earned	  the	  Autism	  
Authorization. 

● Offer	  staff	  development	  opportunities	  for	  general	  education	  
teachers	  to	  ensure	  successful	  access	  to	  the	  curriculum	  for	  students	  
with	  learning	  differences.in	  specialized	  instructional	  strategies	  for	  
learners	  with	  disabilities. 

● Continue	  Expand	  targeted	  professional	  development	  for	  
instructional	  aides	  to	  include	  district-‐level	  and	  county-‐level	  trainings. 

● Continue	  Increase	  articulation	  between	  sites	  for	  transitioning	  
students. 

● addresses	  the	  supports	  available	  as	  students	  transition	  from	  one	  site	  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

11 

 

to	  another. 
● Continue	  to	  pProvide	  general	  education	  teachers	  with	  additional	  

professional	  development	  for	  pre-‐referral	  interventions	  for	  at-‐risk	  
students. 

● Continue	  district-‐wide	  coordination	  of	  aide	  assignments	  to	  best	  
serve	  students. 

● Structured	  social	  skills	  groups	  across	  school	  sites. 
● Increase	  support	  to	  students	  receiving	  behavioral	  and	  emotional	  

support	  services	  and	  ensure	  earliest	  possible	  intervention. 
1l.	  Counseling	  programs	  at	  all	  levels	  will	  be	  supported	  in	  order	  to	  meet	  the	  
social	  and	  emotional	  needs,	  academic	  and	  career	  counseling	  of	  all	  students,	  
as	  well	  as	  parent	  education.	   

● Anti-‐bullying	  programs	  will	  be	  implemented	  at	  all	  school	  sites. 
● Anti-‐bullying	  strategies	  and	  programs	  will	  be	  embedded	  in	  the	  

program	  at	  each	  school.	  	  Stronger	  anti-‐bullying	  programs	  at	  
elementary	  schools	  and	  middle	  school,	  such	  as	  the	  Peaceful	  
Playground	  project. 

● Continue	  MCMS-‐WEB	  (Where	  Everyone	  Belongs)	  6th	  grade	  transition	  
and	  cross	  grade	  mentoring,	  implementing	  Peer	  Leadership	  Uniting	  
Students.	   

● Promote	  programs,	  and	  workshops,	  and	  experiences	  for	  students	  
and	  staff	  that	  teach	  acceptance,	  empathy,	  and	  appreciation,	  and	  
respect	  for	  differences. 

● Ensure	  values	  transfer	  to	  after	  school	  programs	  that	  OPUSD	  children	  
attend,	  such	  as	  Rancho	  Simi	  AM/PM,	  PTA	  after	  school	  programs,	  etc. 

● Expand	  counseling	  programs	  as	  much	  as	  possible	  to	  improve	  the	  
counselor:	  student	  ratio	  at	  all	  levels. 

● ExpandContinue	  our	  relationship	  with	  the	  ADL	  No	  Place	  for	  Hate	  
program	  at	  the	  secondary	  schools	  

● Establish	  a	  committee	  to	  develop	  an	  Honor	  Code	  across	  the	  district 
● Define	  Refine	  the	  role	  of	  the	  new	  counselor	  of	  special	  programs	  at	  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

12 

 

OPHS 
● Implement	  a	  parent	  education	  component	  that	  is	  responsive	  to	  the	  

needs	  of	  parents	  in	  supporting	  their	  child’s	  learning	  and	  social-‐
emotional	  development,.	  Including	  stress	  management	  and	  mental	  
health	  

● Consider	  feasibility	  of	  stress-‐management	  supports,	  programs,	  
workshops,	  etc.	  for	  staff	  

1m.	  Develop	  programs	  that	  celebrate	  and	  encourage	  diversity,	  self-‐respect,	  
and	  recognition	  of	  each	  student’s	  role	  in	  the	  local	  and	  global	  community.	  
Research	  the	  options	  for	  an	  on-‐line	  citizenship	  curriculum. 

● Support	  the	  International	  Gala/International	  Day	  merger	  and	  other	  
programs	  that	  celebrate	  the	  cultural	  diversity	  of	  our	  students	  at	  all	  
levels. 

● Develop	  a	  Continue	  Community	  Service	  program	  that	  recognizes	  
students	  for	  their	  meaningful	  efforts	  that	  demonstrate	  compassion	  
for	  people,	  animals,	  and	  the	  environment	  with	  a	  focus	  on	  
appropriate	  forums	  and	  nomination	  process	  at	  each	  school	  site. 

● Look	  at	  programs	  that	  promoteContinue	  integrating	  	  digital	  
citizenship	  skills	  and	  practices	  as	  part	  of	  the	  K-‐12	  student	  technology	  
standards	  at	  all	  levels	  (moved	  from	  1m)	  

 
1n.	  Develop	  	  Implement	  K-‐12	  Student	  technology	  standards	  ,ensure	  they	  are	  
implemented	  consistently	  and	  are	  aligned	  with	  curricular	  goals. 

● Provide	  in-‐classroom	  support	  to	  assist	  teachers	  in	  transforming	  
learning	  and	  collaboration	  through	  technology	  by	  leveraging	  
TechTOSAs,	  Technology	  Learning	  Coach	  (TLC),	  and	  TechLITEs 

● Tech	  TOSAs	  and	  TLC	  	  meet	  regularly	  with	  grade	  level,	  subject	  area	  
teams	  and	  individuals	  to	  develop	  	  and	  implement	  Develop	  and	  pilot	  
K-‐12	  	  student	  technology	  standards	  aligned	  lessons	  	  that	  combine	  
digital	  citizenship,	  New	  California	  Standards,	  and	  Next	  Generation	  
Science	  Standards	  ensuring	  they	  align	  with	  the	  district	  curricular	  
goals	  and	  meet	  statutory	  requirements. 

● Provide	  adequate	  support	  to	  meet	  all	  	  Smarter	  Balanced	  assessments	  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

13 

 

requirements 
o Infrastructure	  -‐	  deploy	  robust	  network	  and	  adequate	  

number	  of	  computing	  devices	  
o Teacher	  Prep	  -‐	  training	  in	  various	  modules	  that	  teachers	  will	  

administer,	  begin	  using	  EADMS	  to	  facilitate	  formative	  and	  
summative	  assessment	  of	  student	  content	  mastery	  

o Student	  Prep	  -‐	  prepare	  by	  using	  CAASPP	  practice	  test	  and	  
EADMS	  item	  	  

● Expand	  deployment	  	  of	  Begin	  piloting	  1-‐to-‐1	  mobile	  devices	  beyond	  
TechLite	  	  certain	  	  classrooms	  around	  the	  district	  into	  High	  School	  
Science	  and	  High	  School	  and	  Middle	  School	  Language	  Arts. 

● Utilize	  Technology	  Committee	  to	  in	  developing	  monitor	  progress	  of	  
technology	  	  implementation	  plans	  and	  develop	  a	  strategy	  for	  
deploying	  a	  sustainable	  1-‐to-‐1	  mobile	  computing	  initiative 

● Explore	  different	  models	  of	  integration	  utilizing	  a	  variety	  of	  device	  
types	  in	  the	  same	  teaching	  environment	  to	  support	  the	  creation	  and	  
implementation	  of	  novel	  and	  student-‐centered	  teaching	  and	  
learning. 

 
1q.	  Ensure	  the	  use	  of	  technology	  aligns	  with	  curricular	  goals	  that	  the	  
integration	  of	  technology	  is	  paced	  appropriate,	  and	  that	  the	  efficacy	  of	  the	  
TOSAs	  are	  monitored. 

● Review	  and	  update	  the	  Technology	  Plan	  annually	  as	  it	  applies	  to	  
funding	  and	  implementation	  of	  programs. 

● Involve	  the	  Technology	  Committee	  and	  the	  Tech	  TOSAs	  in	  
developing	  the	  implementation	  plans. 

● Development	  of	  grade	  by	  grade	  technology	  standards	  that	  combine	  
technology,	  digital	  citizenship,	  New	  California	  Standards,	  and	  Next	  
Generation	  Science	  Standards	  ensuring	  they	  align	  with	  the	  district	  
curricular	  goals. 

● Begin	  piloting	  1-‐to-‐1	  mobile	  devices	  in	  certain	  classrooms	  around	  the	  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 TEACHING AND LEARNING 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

14 

 

district	  (TechLITEs).	  
● Explore	  different	  models	  of	  integration	  utilizing	  a	  variety	  of	  device	  

types	  in	  the	  same	  teaching	  environment. 
1r.	  1o.	  Create	  an	  environment	  where	  the	  potential	  of	  each	  child	  can	  be	  
realized,	  and	  that	  promotes	  life-‐long	  learning	  and	  habituates	  socially	  
responsible	  actions.	  	  Ensures	  that	  every	  student	  reaches	  their	  individual	  
potential. 

● Continue	  to	  recognize	  students	  for	  a	  variety	  of	  achievements	  at	  all	  
levels.	  	  For	  example,	  posting	  student	  success	  on	  district	  social	  media,	  
and	  recognition	  in	  video	  announcements	  and	  student	  newspapers.	  	  
teachers	  choose	  a	  few	  students	  for	  recognition	  at	  a	  monthly	  school	  
assembly	  and	  achievement. 

● Recognize	  students	  with	  service	  seal/recognition	  district	  wide. 
● Pursue	  the	  idea	  of	  an	  annual	  scholarship	  offered	  by	  Friends	  of	  Oak	  

Park	  Schools.	   
● Teaching	  and	  modeling	  socially	  responsible	  habits	  by	  recycling	  in	  each	  

classroom	  district	  wide,	  sorting	  food	  waste	  for	  composting	  and	  
recycling	  in	  lunch	  areas	  at	  each	  site	  district	  wide.	  

1p.	  Explore	  the	  district’s	  responsibilities	  and	  compliance	  with	  Title	  IX. ● Provide	  opportunities	  for	  professional	  development	  activities	  for	  
administrators	  and	  key	  staff	  to	  ensure	  equal	  access	  to	  activities	  and	  
programs	  for	  boys	  and	  girls 

● Consider	  expanding	  California	  Healthy	  Kids	  Survey	  to	  include	  
questions	  regarding	  Title	  IX	  

● Apply	  resources	  at	  OPHS	  	  to	  assess	  compliance	  in	  the	  areas	  of	  
participation,	  facilities	  and	  benefits	  

● Continue	  monthly	  Title	  IX	  leadership	  committee	  meetings	  
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 ORGANIZATION AND SHARED LEADERSHIP 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 

1 

 

 
We believe that success depends on  
 
The support of our teachers, administrators and staff 

● By	  empowering	  teachers	  to	  be	  leaders,	  and	  continue	  to	  find	  ways	  to	  support	  their	  efforts 
● By	  ensuring	  that	  everyone	  in	  the	  organization	  accepts	  personal	  responsibility	  and	  will	  be	  held	  accountable	  for	  student	  success 
● By	  hiring	  and	  retaining	  a	  diverse,	  talented	  workforce,	  continuing	  to	  provide	  opportunities	  for	  professional	  development,	  and	  providing	  

support	  for	  the	  effective	  use	  of	  technology 
● By	  fostering	  a	  work	  environment	  where	  the	  skills,	  expertise,	  commitment,	  and	  morale	  of	  the	  teachers,	  administration,	  counselors	  and	  

support	  staff	  is	  supported	  and	  recognized 
The cooperation of the broader Oak Park community 

● By	  engaging	  students,	  parents	  and	  the	  community	  as	  key	  participants	  and	  full	  partners	  in	  our	  mission 
● By	  working	  together	  with	  our	  teachers’	  and	  classified	  associations	  to	  ensure	  positive	  morale,	  to	  solve	  problems	  jointly,	  and	  to	  model	  a	  

professional	  collaborative	  working	  relationship 
Self-reflection and a desire to improve 

● By	  embracing	  new	  ideas,	  trying	  new	  things,	  and	  looking	  for	  ways	  to	  enhance	  our	  effectiveness 
● By	  learning	  from	  our	  mistakes	  and	  implementing	  continuous	  improvement 

 
 

GOALS ACTIONS	  PLANS/MEASURABLE	  OUTCOMES 
2a.	  Empower	  teachers	  as	  leaders	  at	  the	  school	  and	  district	  levels	  and	  
continue	  to	  find	  ways	  to	  enhance	  teacher	  leadership	  throughout	  the	  
District	  through	  collaboration,	  shared	  decision	  making,	  accountability	  
and	  equity.	  through	  collaboration,	  shared	  decision	  making,	  accountability	  
and	  equity 

● Engage	  teachers	  in	  committees	  such	  as	  math	  articulation,	  
writing,	  WASC,	  WASC	  Action	  Plan,	  EEAC,	  GATE	  DAC,	  Curriculum	  
Council,	  Common	  Core,	  LCAP,	  OPII	  (Oak	  Park	  Inquiry	  Institute),	  
and	  more	  others. 

● Continue	  to	  participate	  in	  Ventura	  County	  Teacher	  Leadership	  
Academy	   

● Encourage	  more	  teachers	  to	  pursue	  administrative	  pathways. 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 ORGANIZATION AND SHARED LEADERSHIP 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 

2 

 

● Continue	  to	  train	  coaches	  and	  implement	  the	  OPII.	  	  Develop	  a	  
core	  of	  Common	  Core/New	  California	  Standards	  ‘Coaches’	  to	  
support	  teachers	  in	  implementation	  of	  CTI	  (UCLA	  Critical	  
Thinking	  Institute)	  at	  all	  levels	  and	  subject	  areas. 

● Implement	  a	  new	  department	  chairperson	  model	  at	  OPHS	  to	  
both	  recognize	  their	  responsibilities	  and	  foster	  greater	  
collaboration.	  This	  model	  will	  be	  explored	  at	  other	  levels	  and	  
schools.	  	  	  

2b.	  Teachers,	  parents,	  administrators,	  and	  students	  need	  to	  be	  fully	  
invested	  in	  the	  decision	  making	  process.	  Ensure	  decisions	  that	  impact	  
student	  learning	  and	  organizational	  change	  are	  timely	  communicated	  
with	  school	  site	  staff,	  and	  administration	  and	  school	  office	  staff. 

● Continue	  to	  honor	  the	  School	  Site	  Council	  model	  by	  engaging	  
them	  in	  the	  change	  process,	  hearing	  reports	  at	  school	  board	  
meetings,	  and	  working	  closely	  with	  school	  leaders.	  	   

● District	  level	  committee	  meetings	  will	  be	  summarized	  and	  
shared	  with	  staff.	  	  	  

● Articulate	  moral	  imperatives,	  goals,	  and	  action	  plans	  vision	  and	  
solicit	  input	  at	  staff	  meetings.	  	   

● District	  level	  administrators	  will	  participate	  in	  school	  staff	  
meetings	  throughout	  the	  year.	  	  	  

● Support	  the	  PTO	  Council	  and	  use	  it	  as	  a	  working	  group	  to	  assist	  
with	  LCAP,	  decision-‐making,	  ideas,	  innovations,	  etc.	   

● Continue	  community	  stakeholder	  meetings	  for	  parents	  and	  
community	  members	  to	  discuss	  education	  changes	  that	  impact	  
student	  learning,	  on	  topics	  such	  as	  NGSS.	  	   

2c.	  Principals	  shall	  work	  together,	  support	  each	  other,	  and	  share	  
innovations. 

● Principals	  will	  work	  as	  a	  part	  of	  the	  Leadership	  Team	  on	  problem	  
solving	  and	  ways	  to	  further	  our	  moral	  imperatives,	  goals,	  and	  
action	  plans.	   

● Find	  ways	  to	  share	  successful	  programs	  amongst	  school	  sites,	  
such	  as	  visiting	  IQBL	  classrooms	  at	  MCMS.	  classrooms	  that	  are	  
successfully	  implementing	  Common	  Core,	  Inquiry	  Based	  
Learning,	  and	  technology	  applications.	   



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 ORGANIZATION AND SHARED LEADERSHIP 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 

3 

 

2d.	  Professional	  development	  will	  be	  matched	  to	  organizational	  goals	  
and	  will	  emphasize	  choice,	  relevancy,	  and	  district	  vision.	  	  Participants	  
shall	  be	  encouraged	  to	  share	  their	  new	  learning. 

● Continue	  to	  provide	  quality	  research	  based	  professional	  
development	   

● Share	  with	  one	  another	  best	  practices	  and	  expertise	  across	  all	  
areas,	  such	  as	  visiting	  each	  other’s	  classrooms,	  conducting	  
workshops	  and	  use	  of	  e-‐learning. 

● Encourage	  and	  support	  more	  teacher	  and	  administrator	  training	  
in	  the	  Reading	  and	  Writing	  Projects.	  	  	  

2e.	  Continue	  positive	  collaborative	  relationship	  with	  employee	  
associations. 

● Use	  a	  collaborative	  process	  to	  focus	  on	  solving	  issues	  and	  finding	  
innovations	  to	  better	  the	  quality	  of	  education,	  enhance	  
employee	  morale,	  and	  make	  Oak	  Park	  a	  great	  place	  to	  work.	  	   

2f.	  Administrators	  at	  the	  school	  and	  district	  level	  should	  be	  engaged	  with	  
the	  students	  in	  the	  learning	  process,	  including	  classroom	  observations	  to	  
assess	  successful	  implementation	  of	  the	  new	  California	  standards. 

● Encourage	  administrators	  to	  find	  ways	  to	  work	  with	  students	  on	  
a	  regular	  basis.	  Some	  ideas	  are	  through	  school	  gardens,	  
enrichment	  activities,	  club	  sponsorships,	  etc.	   

● Develop	  strategies	  to	  support	  administrators’	  ability	  to	  be	  more	  
engaged	  in	  classrooms	  at	  their	  school	  and	  across	  the	  District.	  	  	  

2g.	  Develop	  branding,	  marketing,	  social	  media	  and	  advocacy	  plans.	  	   ● Continue	  a	  quarterly	  newsletter	  that	  is	  mailed	  out	  on	  a	  regular	  
basis	  to	  the	  community	  at	  large,	  placing	  special	  emphasis	  on	  
student	  experiences	  for	  all	  communications.	  	   

● Continue	  to	  work	  with	  Friends	  of	  Oak	  Park	  Schools,	  our	  
Education	  Foundation,	  and	  look	  for	  other	  potential	  partnership	  
opportunities. 

● Use	  social	  media	  to	  engage	  the	  community. 
● Revise	  the	  District	  brochure	  to	  reflect	  practices,	  programs,	  and	  

offerings.	  	  	  
2h.	  Continue	  and	  expand	  our	  community	  outreach	  program. ● Continue	  a	  community	  outreach	  committee	  and	  find	  new	  ways	  

to	  engage	  our	  community	  in	  the	  schools	  and	  ways	  for	  our	  
schools	  to	  serve	  the	  community	  in	  areas	  beyond	  as	  part	  of	  our	  
core	  mission.	  of	  providing	  a	  world-‐class	  education.	   

● Engage	  other	  potential	  partners	  in	  the	  outreach	  effort. 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 ORGANIZATION AND SHARED LEADERSHIP 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 

4 

 

2i.	  Ensure	  that	  the	  moral	  imperatives,	  LCAP,	  goals	  and	  associated	  action	  
plan	  are	  presented	  to	  and	  understood	  by	  all	  levels	  of	  the	  organization	  
and	  foster	  a	  decision	  making	  process	  whereby	  all	  decisions	  are	  weighed	  
against	  the	  current	  goals.	  	   

● Embed	  these	  moral	  imperatives,	  goals,	  and	  action	  plans	  into	  the	  
core	  work	  that	  we	  do	  each	  day.	   

● District	  administration	  will	  improve	  the	  process	  of	  communicate	  
developing	  and	  communicating	  our	  moral	  imperatives,	  goals	  and	  
action	  plans	  with	  school	  sites	  and	  solicit	  feedback	  so	  that	  they	  
are	  truly	  shared	  and	  owned	  by	  everyone.	   

2j.	  Develop	  an	  attainable	  plan	  for	  paper	  use	  reduction	  and	  drive	  a	  
transition	  towards	  this	  plan’s	  goals	  Keep	  a	  paper-‐free	  environment	  to	  the	  
extent	  practical. 
 

● Principals	  will	  emphasize	  the	  use	  of	  digital	  technologies	  over	  
paper	  whenever	  possible	  or	  appropriate.	   

● The	  Board	  and	  Leadership	  Team	  will	  continue	  to	  model	  this	  
process. 

● Encourage	  migration	  to	  Google	  Classrooms. 
● Raise	  consciousness	  about	  paper	  use	  throughout	  the	  district. 
● Develop	  Continue	  to	  implement	  and	  expand	  a	  paperless	  

registration	  process	  to	  the	  extent	  possible. 
2k.	  Assess	  district	  short	  term	  and	  long	  term	  needs	  to	  complement	  and	  
support	  educational	  and	  student	  achievement	  goals,	  including	  STEAM	  
and	  use	  of	  technology.	  Incorporate	  the	  Needs	  Assessment	  Plan	  into	  an	  
ongoing	  Master	  Plan. 
 

● Include	  components	  in	  new	  Facility	  Master	  Plan	  by	  including	  
relevant	  staff	  in	  Needs	  Assessment	  Committee	  discussion. 

● Should	  the	  bond	  measure	  be	  successful,	  develop	  a	  new	  
collaborative	  model	  for	  implementation	  of	  the	  plan.	  

2l.	  Support	  and	  assist	  the	  High	  Schools	  in	  implementing	  
recommendations	  from	  their	  WASC	  action	  plans,	  and	  apply	  district-‐wide	  
to	  the	  extent	  appropriate. 

● Provide	  District	  level	  support	  in	  curriculum	  and	  instruction,	  
human	  resources,	  technology,	  and	  in	  any	  other	  areas	  of	  need.	  

● Share	  successes	  and	  challenges	  across	  the	  District.	  
 

 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 FINANCE, BUDGET AND FACILITIES 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

1 

 

 
We believe that in order to deliver on this promise we must 
 
Ensure the safety of our Students, Staff and Faculty 
● By	  maintaining	  an	  environment	  that	  maximizes	  the	  safety	  and	  security	  of	  all	  those	  within	  the	  facilities	  and	  on	  the	  grounds 

Ensure that our resources and goals are connected 
● By	  maintaining	  a	  balanced	  budget	  that	  supports	  our	  moral	  imperatives	  and	  LCAP	  and	  reflects	  our	  mission 
● By	  operating	  with	  efficiency,	  effectiveness,	  integrity	  and	  transparency 

 
 

GOALS ACTION	  PLAN/MEASURABLE	  OUTCOMES 
3a.	  To	  provide	  safe,	  clean,	  and	  high	  quality	  facilities	  that	  support	  the	  
instructional	  program,	  including	  an	  ongoing	  deferred	  maintenance	  program 

● Focus	  on	  this	  goal	  as	  the	  Facility	  Master	  Plan	  projects	  are	  re-‐
examined	  (see	  3e).	   

● Establish	  an	  ongoing	  10	  year	  Facility	  Capital	  Improvement	  Master	  
Plan,	  building	  off	  of	  the	  existing	  Measure	  R	  Master	  Plan,	  and	  identify	  
potential	  funding	  sources	  for	  implementation. 

● Establish	  an	  ongoing	  5	  Year	  Facility	  Deferred	  Maintenance	  program,	  
and	  identify	  potential	  funding	  sources	  for	  implementation. 

● Implement	  an	  Integrated	  Pest	  Management	  (IPM)	  program,	  
providing	  natural	  alternatives	  to	  pesticides,	  herbicides,	  and	  
rodenticides,	  consistent	  with	  BP/AR	  3514.2.	   

● Take	  greater	  responsibility	  for	  the	  health	  of	  the	  creeks	  in	  the	  
community. 

● Enhance	  the	  landscape	  at	  the	  schools	  and	  ensure	  that	  weeds	  are	  
eradicated,	  turf	  and	  plants	  are	  watered	  and	  maintained,	  and	  the	  
general	  appearance	  of	  the	  schools	  is	  pleasing	  to	  the	  community. 

● Continue	  to	  provide	  training	  for	  campus	  supervisors.	  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 FINANCE, BUDGET AND FACILITIES 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

2 

 

● Expand	  installation	  of	  electronic	  surveillance	  cameras	  at	  all	  sites.	  
● Verify	  the	  effectiveness	  of	  the	  ID	  badge	  system	  for	  visitors.	  
● Provide	  prompt	  and	  efficient	  communication	  to	  school	  sites,	  

students,	  families,	  and	  community,	  as	  appropriate.	  
 

3b.	  Continue	  to	  evaluate	  and	  explore	  options	  to	  create	  greater	  efficiency	  and	  
maximize	  resources. 

● Continue	  to	  look	  for	  ways	  to	  save	  energy,	  water,	  gas,	  and	  paper,	  
especially	  when	  looking	  at	  Measure	  R	  upgrades	  and	  all	  future	  needs.	   

● Develop	  a	  plan	  to	  utilize	  Prop.	  39	  funds	  to	  reduce	  our	  carbon	  
footprint 

● Continue	  to	  explore	  solar	  power	  options	  and	  energy	  storage. 
3c.	  Ensure	  employee	  total	  compensation	  is	  always	  a	  priority	  in	  the	  budgeting	  
process,	  as	  part	  of	  the	  effort	  to	  provide	  the	  highest	  quality	  education	  to	  all	  
students. 

● Work	  with	  employee	  associations	  on	  common	  goals	  such	  as	  to	  
maintain	  reasonable	  class	  sizes,	  provide	  quality	  health	  benefits	  to	  
employees	  and	  ensure	  total	  compensation	  is	  competitive.	   

3d.	  Maintain	  fiscal	  responsibility	  and	  transparency	  throughout	  the	  district	  and	  
to	  the	  community	  at	  large. 

● Use	  our	  resources	  fully	  toward	  our	  core	  mission:	  To	  educate	  our	  
students	  and	  maintain	  our	  employees	  while	  maintaining	  solvency. 

● Continue	  meetings	  with	  parents	  and	  staff	  regarding	  the	  budget	  and	  
our	  financial	  situation.	   

● Continue	  LCAP	  committee.	  
● Continue	  LCAP	  community	  survey.	  
● Provide	  a	  summary	  of	  the	  LCAP	  for	  the	  community.	  

3e.	  Provide	  an	  annual	  updated	  spending	  plan	  and	  a	  long-‐term	  needs	  
assessment	  plan,	  and	  initiate	  proactive	  efforts	  in	  regard	  to	  communicating	  
with	  and	  bringing	  into	  the	  conversation	  the	  Oak	  Park	  community.	   

● Consult	  with	  the	  schools	  and	  the	  district	  Needs	  Assessment	  
Committee	  to	  revise	  the	  Master	  Plan	  and	  provide	  costing	  and	  
prioritization	  of	  projects	  based	  on	  the	  available	  funds. 

● Develop	  a	  plan	  for	  conclusion	  of	  Measure	  R	  and	  Measure	  C6	  funds	  
and	  post	  Measure	  R	  and	  C6,	  and/or	  ongoing	  maintenance. 

● Develop	  a	  plan	  for	  sustainable	  funding	  for	  ongoing	  technology	  
acquisition	  and	  refresh.	  	  

 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2016-2017 FINANCE, BUDGET AND FACILITIES 

MORAL IMPERATIVES 
 

3 

 

3f.	  Provide	  safe	  learning	  environment	  at	  all	  of	  our	  schools ● Moved	  the	  actions	  plans	  under	  3a	  	  
3f.	  	  Improve	  Disaster	  Preparedness	  to	  maximize	  safety	  of	  all	  those	  within	  
facilities	  and	  on	  the	  grounds	  in	  the	  event	  of	  a	  disaster,	  including	  planning	  for	  
and	  executing	  a	  district-‐wide	  emergency	  drill. 

● Continue	  to	  review	  disaster	  preparedness	  plan	  and	  equipment	  at	  all	  
sites. 

● Continue	  disaster	  preparedness	  training	  for	  staff.	  
● Design	  Board	  of	  Education	  plan	  for	  emergencies/disasters. 
● Develop	  a	  common	  safety	  plan	  for	  all	  schools. 
● Create	  a	  webpage	  content	  specific	  to	  school	  disaster	  policies	  and	  

distribute	  that	  information	  to	  parents	  via	  e-‐mail. 
● Centralize	  the	  oversight	  of	  disaster	  preparation	  at	  the	  school	  sites. 
● Test	  text	  Alert	  system	  from	  School	  Messenger.	  
● Conduct	  unannounced	  random	  tests	  at	  the	  schools	  to	  test	  various	  

emergency	  procedures	  
● Communicate	  about	  disaster	  preparedness	  to	  families	  
● Emergency	  radios	  
● Third	  party	  assessment	  

3g.	  Develop	  an	  LACP	  that	  encompasses	  input	  from	  all	  district	  constituents	  and	  
ensures	  that	  our	  use	  of	  funds	  is	  in	  alignment	  with	  community	  priorities. 

● Moved	  the	  actions	  plans	  under	  3d 

 



 

TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:     B.4.d. APPROVE ANNUAL CERTIFICATION OF SIGNATURES 

FOR 2016-2017  
           Consent  
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education approve the annual Certification of 

Signatures for the 2016-2017? 
 
STATEMENT: The school district must annually file a Certification of Signatures at the 

beginning of each fiscal year as required by the Ventura County Schools 
Business and Advisory Services Office and in accordance with provisions 
of Education Code.  These authorizations will be valid through December 
6, 2016, unless revisions to staff responsibilities are made during the 
school year or new members are elected or appointed to the Board. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve Certification of Signatures for 2016-2017. 

2. Do not approve Certification of Signatures for 2016-2017 as 
submitted. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative #1. 
  
RATIONALE: Education Code mandates that we certify these authorizations annually at 

the beginning of each fiscal year or after any reorganization or staff 
change. 

  
 
 
  Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
  ______________________ 
  Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
  Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
Board Action:  On motion of________, seconded by ________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          
 









TO:  BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.4.e.   APPROVE 2016-2017 BOARD GOALS 
          ACTION  
 
ISSUE:  Shall the Board approve 2016-2017 Board Goals? 
 
BACKGROUND: The Board held a Board Retreat on July 26, 2016 and reviewed and 

revised the Board Goals from 2015-2016 to create new Goals for 2016-17.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the 2016-17 Board Goals. 

2. Do not approve the 2016-17 Board Goals 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Alternative #1 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
Board Action:  On motion of ___________, seconded by ___________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE:            AYES     NOES     ABSTAIN   ABSENT 
Hazelton  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Helfstein  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Laifman  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Rosen   ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Ross   ____        ____         ____         ____ 
Student Rep  ____        ____         ____         ____ 
 
 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
GOALS 

2016-2017 
 

1. The Board will provide a monthly report of Board meetings, developed by the Board 
President and/or Superintendent, and given to the School Newsletters, posted on social 
media and posted on the District web site. The Superintendent will draft the monthly 
report and the Board President will review and embellish, if desired. 

 
2. The Board will ensure the engagement of the learning community in the development and 

communication of the District’s Moral Imperatives and Goals.  
 

3. The Board will review the governance handbook every other year, in odd years. 
 

4. The Board will conduct a Board self-evaluation every other year, in even years. 
	  

5. The Board will regularly honor students, staff and parents at monthly Board meetings. 
 
	  



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUEPRINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.4.f. RESOLUTION #16-17 NOMINATION OF ASSEMBLY MEMBER       
                                  JACQUI IRWIN FOR CALIFORNIA SCHOOL BOARDS  
                                  ASSOCIATION LEGISLATOR OF THE YEAR 
               ACTION  
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve Resolution #16-17 Nomination of 

Assembly Member Jacqui Irwin for California School Boards Association 
Legislator of the Year? 

 
BACKGROUND: Jacqui Irwin has been a steadfast supporter of education in California.  She 

has consistently supported more funding for our schools, while holding 
schools accountable for quality. She is a true advocate for public schools.  
Assemblymember Irwin has been a supporter of the District of Choice bill, 
SB 1432 and has been instrumental in moving the bill along through the 
legislative process.  This legislation is an important aspect of school 
choice in California and is allowing over 10,000 students statewide to 
expand educational opportunities.    

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve Resolution #16-17 Nomination of Assembly Member Jacqui 

Irwin for California School Boards Association Legislator of the Year. 
2. Do not approve Resolution #16-17 Nomination of Assembly Member 

Jacqui Irwin for California School Boards Association Legislator of 
the Year. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Alternative #1 
 
    Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
    _____________________________________ 

   Anthony W. Knight 
    Superintendent 
 
Board Action: On motion of ___________, seconded by ____________, the Board of Education: 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION # 16-17 

 
 

NOMINATION OF ASSEMBLY MEMBER JACQUI IRWIN AS 
CALIFORNIA SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION 2016 OUTSTANDING 

LEGISLATOR OF THE YEAR 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, Assembly Member Jacqui Irwin has consistently demonstrated significant 
commitment and legislative contributions to public education; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, Assembly Member Jacqui Irwin has consistently demonstrated legislative 
leadership on behalf of public education including supporting the statewide District of Choice 
program, which allows over 10,000 students statewide to expand their educational opportunities 
within the public school system; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, Assembly Member Jacqui Irwin recognizes and support local governance for 
schools; and  
 
 
WHEREAS, Assembly Member Jacqui Irwin has been active on local school issues of concern, 
including supporting state budgets that have restored funding cut from public schools during the 
recession; regulalrly visits schools and talks to students, teachers, and parents, and 
 
WHEREAS, Assembly Member Jacqui Irwin is a member of the California Legislature at the 
time of nomination; now, therefore 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oak Park Unified School District Board of Education endorses the 
nomination of Assembly Member Jacqui Irwin as California School Boards Association 2016 
Outstanding Legislator of the Year. 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPED this 16th day of August, 2016. 
 
 
  AYES________ 
 
  NOES________ 
 
  ABSTAIN________ 
  
  ABSENT_________ 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Clerk of the Governing Board 

Oak Park Unified School District 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16. 2016 
 
SUBJECT:     B.5.a. APPROVE AMENDMENT TO BOARD POLICY 2121 – 

SUPERINTENDENT’S CONTRACT - First Reading 
             
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve the proposed amendment to Board 

Policy 2121 – Superintendent’s Contract? 
 
BACKGROUND: Board Policy 2121 is being updated to clarify the conditions under which 

the Governing Board may meet in closed session under the "labor 
exception" (Government Code 54957.6) of the Ralph M. Brown Act  

                                    to discuss superintendent contact, salary, or compensation paid in the form 
of fringe benefits. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the amendment to Board Policy 2121 – Superintendent’s 

Contract. 
2. Do not amend Board Policy 2121 – Superintendent’s Contract. 
3. Adopt a modified version of the amendment to Board Policy 2121 – 

Superintendent’s Contract. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of ____________, seconded by __________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 2000            Administration         BP 2121(a)  
              
 
Superintendent's Contract 
 
The Governing Board believes that the Superintendent’s employment contract should outline the 
framework through which the Board and Superintendent are to work together to achieve district 
goals and objectives.  When approving the Superintendent’s employment contract, the Board 
shall consider the need for stability in district administration and shall ensure the best use of 
district resources. 
 
(cf. 0200 – Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 2120 - Superintendent Recruitment and Selection) 
(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
 
The contract shall be reviewed by the district’s legal counsel and may include the following: 
 
1. Term of the contract, which shall be for no more than four years pursuant to Education Code 
35031 
 
2.  Length of the work year and hours of work 
 
3. Salary, health and welfare benefits, and other compensation for the position 
 
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 – Health and Welfare Benefits) 
 
4. Reimbursement of work-related expenses, including mileage reimbursement, consistent with 
Board policies, regulations, and guidelines applicable to other professional administrative staff 
 
(cf. 3350 – Travel Expenses) 
 
The contract may also address payment for professional dues and activities, the district’s 
provision of cell phones or other technological devices, and the Superintendent’s use of his/her 
personal vehicle. 
 
(cf. 4040 – Employee Use of Technology) 
 
5. Vacation, illness and injury leave, and personal leaves 
 
(cf. 4161/4261/4361 – Leaves) 
(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 – Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 
(cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 – Personal Leaves)  
(cf. 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5 – Military Leave) 
(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 – Family Care and Medical Leave) 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 2000            Administration         BP 2121(b)  
              
 
 
6. GThe general duties and responsibilities of the position 
 
(cf. 2110 – Superintendent Responsibilities and Duties) 
 
7. The cCriteria, process, and procedure for annual evaluation of and the Superintendent 

conditions for reemployment 
 
(cf. 2140 – Evaluation of the Superintendent) 
 
8. A statement that any subsequent increase in the Superintendent’s salary shall be at the sole 
discretion of the Board. 
 
9. A statement that there shall be no automatic renewal or extension of the contract, although 
the Board can enter into a new contract with the Superintendent prior to the expiration of the 
existing contract. 
 
10. Timeline for providing written notice to the Superintendent if the Board does not wish to 
enter into a new contract, which shall be at least 45 days in advance of the expiration of the term 
of the contract pursuant to Education Code 35031, and the responsibility of the Superintendent to 
remind the Board in a timely manner of the requirement to give notice. 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
11. Conditions and process for termination of the contract, including the maximum cash 
settlement that the Superintendent may receive if the contract is terminated prior to its expiration 
date. 
 
12. Matters related to liability and indemnification against demands, claims, suits, actions, and 
legal proceedings brought against the Superintendent in his/her official capacity in the 
performance of duties related to his/her employment. 
 
The Board mayshall deliberate about terms of the contract in closed session about the terms of 
the contract, except that salary or other compensation shall be discussed in public at a regular 
meeting. Discussions regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation may occur in 
closed session only as permitted under Government Code 54957.6 between the Board and its 
designated representative(s) (the "labor exception"), for the purpose of reviewing the Board's 
position or instructing the designated representative(s) prior to or during bona fide negotiations 
with the current or prospective Superintendent.  
 (Government Code 54956, 54957, 54957.6) 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 2000            Administration         BP 2121(c)  
              
 
The Board may consult with district legal counsel prior to holding a closed session with the 
designated representative(s) to discuss compensation to be paid to the current or prospective 
Superintendent. 
 
(cf. 9320 – Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 
 
Terms of the contract shall remain confidential until the ratification process commences.   
 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
The Board shall take final action on the Superintendent's contract in an open meeting, which 
shall be reflected in the Board's minutes.  Copies of the contract shall be available to the public 
upon request.  (Government Code 53262, 54957.6) 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Termination of Contract 
 
Prior to the expiration of the contract, the Board may terminate the Superintendent’s employment 
contract in accordance with law and applicable contract provisions. 
 
(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 – Termination Agreements) 
 
In such an event, any cash settlement that the Superintendent may receive upon termination of 
the contract shall not exceed his/her monthly salary multiplied by the number of months left on 
the contract or, if the unexpired term of the contract is more than 18 months and the contract was 
executed prior to January 1, 2016, no greater than the Superintendent’s monthly salary multiplied 
by 18.  For any contract executed on or after January 1, 2016, any cash settlement shall not 
exceed the Superintendent’s monthly salary multiplied by 12. (Government Code 53260) 
 
The cash settlement shall not include any noncash items other than health benefits, which may be 
continued for the same duration of time as covered in the settlement or until the Superintendent 
finds other employment, whichever occurs first. (Government Code 53260, 53261)  
 
However, when the termination of the Superintendent’s contract is based upon the Board’s belief 
and subsequent confirmation through an independent audit that the Superintendent has engaged 
in fraud, misappropriation of funds, or other illegal fiscal practices, no cash or noncash 
settlement of any amount shall be provided.  (Government Code 53260) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 2000            Administration         BP 2121(d)  
              
 
In addition, if the Superintendent is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of his/her office or 
position, he/she shall reimburse the district for payments he/she receives as paid leave salary 
pending investigation or as cash settlement upon his/her termination, and for any funds expended 
by the district in his/her defense against a crime involving his/her office or position.  
(Government Code 53243-53243.4, 53260) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
35031  Term of employment 
41325-41329.3 Conditions of emergency apportionment 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3511.1-3511.2 Local agency executives 
53243-53243.4 Abuse of office 
53260-53264  Employment contracts 
54954  Time and place of regular meetings 
54956 Special Mmeetings 
54957  Closed session personnel matters 
54957.1  Closed session, public report of action taken 
54957.6  Closed sessions regarding employee matters 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26 
105 Self-insured medical reimbursement plan; definition of highly compensated individual 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 4 
300gg-16 Group health plan; nondiscrimination in favor of highly compensated individuals 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS 
1.105-11 Self-insured medical reimbursement plan 
COURT DECISIONS 
San Diego Union v. City Council, (1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
57 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 209 (1974) 
 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Superintendent Contract Template, 2015 
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 
The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, 2003 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Association of California School Administrators:  http://www.acsa.org 
Office of the Attorney General, Department of Justice: http://caag.state.ca.us/ 
 
Adopted:  4-2-91 
Amended:  9-17-02, 9-16-03, 4-19-05, 3-20-12, 2-16-16 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.5.b. APPROVE AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 9321 – 

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS - First Reading 
             
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve the proposed amendment to Bylaws of the 

Board 9321 – Closed Session Purposes and Agendas? 
 
BACKGROUND: Board Bylaw 9321 updated to clarify that the Board may not meet in closed 

session under the  "personnel exception" (Government Code 54957) of the Ralph 
M. Brown Act to discuss or act upon any proposed change in compensation other 
than a reduction of compensation that results from the imposition of discipline. 
"Negotiations/Collective Bargaining" section revised to reflect that the Board may 
meet with the district's designated representatives in closed session under the 
"labor exception" (Government Code 54957.6) of the Ralph M. Brown Act to 
discuss salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe 
benefits to its represented and unrepresented employees, including the 
Superintendent. 

ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the amendment of Bylaws of the Board 9321 – Closed Session 
Purposes and Agendas. 

2. Do not approve the amendment Bylaws of the Board 9321 – Closed Session 
Purposes and Agendas. 

3. Adopt a modified version of the amendment to Bylaws of the Board 9321 – 
Closed Session Purposes and Agendas. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
  Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000         Bylaws of the Board         BB 9321(a)  
              
 
Closed Session Purposes And Agendas 
 
The Governing Board is committed to complying with state open meeting laws and modeling 
transparency in its conduct of district business.  The Board shall hold closed sessions only for 
purposes authorized by law.  A closed session may be held during a regular, special, or 
emergency meeting in accordance with law.  (Government Code 54956.5, 54957.7, 54962) 
 
Each agenda shall contain a general description of each closed session item to be discussed at the 
meeting, as required by law.  (Government Code 54954.2) 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
 
The Board shall disclose in open session the items to be discussed in closed session.  In the 
closed session, the Board may consider only those matters covered in its statement.  After the 
closed session, the Board shall reconvene in open session before adjourning the meeting, and, 
when applicable, shall disclose any action taken in the closed session, in the mannermatter 
prescribed by Government Code 54957.1. (Government Code 54957.7) 
 
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 
 
The Board shall not disclose any information that is protected by state or federal law.  In 
addition, no victim or alleged victim of tortious sexual conduct or child abuse shall be identified 
in any Board agenda, notice, announcement, or report required by the Brown Act, unless the 
identity of the person has previously been publicly disclosed.  (Government Code 54957.7, 
54961) 
 
(cf. 1340 – Access to District Records) 
 
A Board member shall not disclose confidential information received in a closed session unless 
the Board authorizes the disclosure of that information.  (Government Code 54963) 
 
 (cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
Personnel Matters 
 
The Board may hold a closed sessions under the “personnel exception” to consider the 
appointment, employment, evaluation of performance, discipline, or dismissal of an employee. 
Such a closed session shall not include discussion or action on proposed compensation except for 
a reduction of compensation that results from the imposition of discipline.  (Government Code 
54957) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000         Bylaws of the Board         BB 9321(b)  
              
 
(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 
(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
 (cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4215 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
 
The Board may also hold a closed sessions to hear complaints or charges brought against an 
employee by another person or employee, unless the employee requests an open session. Before 
the Board holds a closed session on specific complaints or charges brought against an employee, 
the employee shall receive written notice of his/her right to have the complaints or charges heard 
in open session if desired.  This notice shall be delivered personally or by mail at least 24 hours 
before the time of the session.  (Government Code 54957) 
 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 – Employee Notifications) 
 
The Board may hold a closed sessions to discuss a district employee’s application for early 
withdrawal of funds in a deferred compensation plan when the application is based on financial 
hardship arising from an unforeseeable emergency due to illness, accident, casualty, or other 
extraordinary event, as specified in the deferred compensation plan.  (Government Code 
54957.10) 
 
Agenda items related to district employee appointments and employment shall describe the 
position to be filled.  Agenda items related to performance evaluations shall specify the title of 
the employee being reviewed.  Agenda items related to employee discipline, dismissal, or release 
require no additional information.  (Government Code 54954.5) 
 
Negotiations/Collective Bargaining 
 
Unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties involved, the following shall not be subject to the 
Brown Act:  (Government Code 3549.1) 
 
1. Any meeting and negotiating discussion between the district and a recognized or certified 
employee organization 
 
2. Any meeting of a mediator with either party or both parties to the meeting and negotiating 
process 
 
3. Any hearing, meeting, or investigation conducted by a factfinder or arbitrator 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000         Bylaws of the Board         BB 9321(c)  
              
 
4. Any executive (closed) session of the district or between the district and its designated 
representative for the purpose of discussing its position regarding any matter within the scope of  
representation and instructing its designated representatives 
 
(cf. 4140/4240/4340 – Bargaining Units) 
(cf. 4143/4243 - Negotiations/Consultation) 
(cf. 4143.1/4243.1 - Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations) 
 
The Board may meet in closed session to review the Board’s position and/or instruct its 
designated representative regarding salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form 
of fringe benefits of its represented and unrepresented employees. Prior to the closed session, the 
Board shall identify its designated representative in open session.  Any closed session held for 
this purpose may include discussions of the district's available funds and funding priorities, but 
only insofar as they relate to providing instructions to the Board’s designated representative.  
(Government Code 54957.6) 
 
For represented employees, the Board may also meet in closed session to hear any other matter 
within the statutorily provided scope of representation.  (Government Code 54957.6)  
 
(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 
 
Closed sessions may take place prior to and during consultations and discussions with 
representatives of employee organizations and unrepresented employees.  For unrepresented 
employees, closed sessions held pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 shall not include final 
action on the proposed compensation of one or more unrepresented employees. (Government 
Code 54957.6) 
 
For represented employees, the Board may also meet in closed session regarding any other 
matter within the statutorily provided scope of representation. (Government Code 54957.6) 
 
The Board also may meet in closed session with a state conciliator or a mediator who has 
intervened in proceedings regarding any of the purposes enumerated in Government Ccode 
54957.6.   
 
Agenda items related to negotiations shall specify the name of the district's designated 
representative(s) attending the closed session.  If circumstances necessitate the absence of a 
specified designated representative, an agent or designee may participate in place of the absent 
representative as long as the name of the agent or designee is announced at an open session held 
prior to the closed session.  The agenda shall also specify the name of the organization 
representing the employee(s) or the position title of the unrepresented employee who is the 
subject of the negotiations.  (Government Code 54954.5) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000         Bylaws of the Board         BB 9321(d)  
              
 
Matters Related to Students 
 
The Board shall meet in closed session to consider the expulsion of a student, unless the student 
submits a written request at least five days before the date of the hearing that the hearing be held 
in open session.  Regardless of whether the expulsion hearing is conducted in open or closed 
session, the Board may meet in closed session for the purpose of deliberating and determining 
whether the student should be expelled.  (Education Code 48918) 
 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
 
The Board shall meet in closed session to address any student matter that may involve disclosure 
of confidential student information, or to consider a suspension, disciplinary action, or any other 
action against a student, except expulsion. If a written request for open session is received from 
the parent/guardian or adult student, it will be honored to the extent that it does not violate the 
privacy rights of any other student.  (Education Code 35146, 48912, 49070) 
 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 
(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
 
Agenda items related to student matters shall briefly describe the reason for the closed session, 
such as "student expulsion hearing," or "grade change appeal," without violating the 
confidentiality rights of individual students.  The student shall not be named on the agenda, but a 
number may be assigned to the student in order to facilitate record keeping. The agenda shall 
also state that the Education Code requires closed sessions in these cases in order to prevent the 
disclosure of confidential student record information. 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
Security Matters 
 
The Board may meet in closed session with the Governor, Attorney General, district attorney, 
district legal counsel, sheriff or chief of police, or their respective deputies, or a security 
consultant or a security operations manager, on matters posing a threat to the security of public 
buildings;, to the security of essential public services, including water, drinking water, 
wastewater treatment, natural gas service, and electric service;, or to the public's right of access 
to public services or public facilities.  (Government Code 54957) 
 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 3515 - Campus Security) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000         Bylaws of the Board         BB 9321(e)  
              
 
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 
 
The Board may meet in closed session during an emergency meeting held pursuant to 
Government Code 54956.5 to meet with law enforcement officials for the emergency purposes 
specified in Government Code 54957 if agreed to by a two-thirds vote of the Board members 
present.  If less than two-thirds of the members are present, then the Board must agree by a 
unanimous vote of the members present.  (Government Code 54956.5) 
 
Agenda items related to security matters shall specify the name of the law enforcement agency 
and the title of the officer, or name of applicable agency representative and title, with whom the 
Board will consult.   (Government Code 54954.5) 
 
Conference with Real Property Negotiator 
 
The Board may meet in closed session with itsthe Board's real property negotiator prior to the 
purchase, sale, exchange, or lease of real property by or for the district in order to grant its 
negotiator the authority regarding the price and terms of payment for the property.  (Government 
Code 54956.8) 
 
Before holding the closed session, the Board shall hold an open and public session to identify its 
negotiator(s) and the property under negotiation and to specify the person(s) with whom the 
negotiator may negotiate.  (Government Code 54956.8) 
 
For purposes of real property transactions, negotiators may include members of the Board.  
(Government Code 54956.8) 
 
Agenda items related to real property negotiations shall specify the district negotiator attending 
the closed session.  If circumstances necessitate the absence of a specified negotiator, an agent or 
designee may participate in place of the absent negotiator as long as the name of the agent or 
designee is announced at an open session held prior to the closed session.  The agenda shall also 
specify the name of the negotiating parties and the street address of the real property under 
negotiation.  If there is no street address, the agenda item shall specify the parcel number or 
another unique reference of the property.  The agenda item shall also specify whether instruction 
to the negotiator will concern price, terms of payment, or both.  (Government Code 54954.5) 
 
Pending Litigation 
 
Based on the advice of its legal counsel, the Board may hold a closed session to confer with or 
receive advice from its legal counsel regarding a pending litigation when a discussion of the  

 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000         Bylaws of the Board         BB 9321(f)  
              
 
matter in open session would prejudice the district’s position in the litigation.  For this purpose, 
"litigation" means any adjudicatory proceeding, including eminent domain, before a court, 
administrative body exercising its adjudicatory authority, hearing officer, or arbitrator.  
(Government Code 54956.9) 
 
Litigation is considered "pending" in any of the following circumstances: (Government Code 
54956.9) 
1. Litigation to which the districtBoard is a “party” has been initiated formally.  (Government 
Code 54956.9(a)) 
 
2. A point has been reached where, in the Board's opinion based on the advice of its legal 
counsel regarding the “existing facts and circumstances,”, there is a “significant exposure to 
litigation” against the district, or the Board is meeting solely to determine whether, based on 
existing facts or circumstances, a closed session is authorized.  (Government Code 54956.9(b)) 
 
Existing facts and circumstances for these purposes are limited to the following:  (Government 
Code 54956.9) 
 
 a. Facts and circumstances that might result in litigation against the district but which the 
district believes are not yet known to potential plaintiffs and which do not need to be disclosed. 
 
 b. Facts and circumstances including, but not limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, or 
transactional occurrence which might result in litigation against the district, which are already 
known to potential plaintiffs and which must be publicly disclosed before the closed session or 
specified on the agenda. 
 
 c. The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Tort Claims Act or a written threat of litigation 
from a potential plaintiff.  The claim or written communication must be available for public 
inspection. 
 
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 
 
 d. A threat of litigation made by a person in an open meeting on a specific matter within the 
responsibility of the Bboard. 
 
 e. 5. A threat of litigation made by a person outside of an open meeting on a specific 
matter within the responsibility of the Board, provided that the district official or employee 
receiving knowledge of the threat made a record of the statement before the meeting and the 
record is available for public inspection. Such record does not need to identify an alleged victim 
of tortious sexual conduct or anyone making a threat on his/her behalf or identify an employee  



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 
 

Series 9000         Bylaws of the Board         BB 9321(g)  
              
 
who is the alleged perpetrator of any unlawful or tortious conduct, unless the identity of this 
person has been publicly disclosed. 
 
3.      Based on existing facts and circumstances, the Board has decided to initiate or is deciding 
whether to initiate litigation. (Government Code 54956.9(c) 
 
Before holding a closed session pursuant to the pending litigation exception, the Board shall state 
on the agenda or publicly announce the subdivision of Government Code 54956.9 under which 
the closed session is being held.  If authority is based on Government Code 54956.9(a), the 
Board shall either state the title or specifically identify the litigation to be discussed or state that 
doing so would jeopardize the district's ability to effectuate service of process upon unserved 
parties or to conclude existing settlement negotiations to its advantage.  (Government Code 
54956.9) 
 
Agenda items related to "pending litigation" shall be described as a conference with legal 
counsel regarding either "existing litigation" or "anticipated litigation."  (Government Code 
54954.5)  
 
"Existing litigation" items shall identify the name of the case specified by either the claimant's 
name, names of parties, or and case or claim number, unless the Board states that to identify the 
case would jeopardize service of process or existing settlement negotiations.  (Government Code 
54954.5)  
 
"Anticipated litigation" items shall state that there is significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 
Government Code 54956.9(b) and shall specify the potential number of cases.  When the district 
expects to initiate a suit, items related to anticipated litigation shall state that the discussion 
relates to the initiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(c) and shall specify 
the potential number of cases. The agenda or an oral statement before the closed session may be 
required to provide additional information regarding existing facts and circumstances described 
in item #2 b-epursuant to items #2-5 above.  (Government Code 54954.5), Government Code 
54956.9(b)(3)(B-E)) 
 
Joint Powers Agency Issues 
 
The Board may meet in closed session to discuss a claim for the payment of tort liability losses, 
public liability losses, or workers' compensation liability incurred by a joint powers agency 
(JPA) formed for the purpose of insurance pooling or self-insurance authority of which the 
district is a member.  (Government Code 54956.95) 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000         Bylaws of the Board         BB 9321(h)  
              
 
Closed session agenda items related to liability claims shall specify the claimant's name and the 
name of the agency against which the claim is made.  (Government Code 54954.5) 
 
(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance) 
 
When the board of the JPA has so authorized and upon advice of district legal counsel, the Board 
may meet in closed session in order to receive, discuss, and take action concerning information 
obtained in a closed session of the JPA.  During the Board’s closed session, a Board member 
serving on the JPA board may disclose confidential information acquired during a closed session 
of the JPA to fellow Board members. (Government Code 54956.96) 
 
The Board member may also disclose the confidential JPA information to district legal counsel 
in order to obtain advice on whether the matter has direct financial or liability implications for 
the district.  (Government Code 54956.96) 
 
Closed session agenda items related to conferences involving a JPA shall specify the closed 
session description used by the JPA and the name of the Board Mmember representing the 
district on the JPA board.  Additional information listing the names of agencies or titles of 
representatives attending the closed session as consultants or other representatives shall also be 
included.  (Government Code 54954.5) 
 
Review of Audit Report from Bureau of State Audits California State Auditor’s Office 
 
Upon receipt of a confidential final draft audit report from the Bureau of State Audits California 
State Auditor’s Office, the Board may meet in closed session to discuss its response to that 
report.  After public release of the report from the Bureau of State Audits California State 
Auditor’s Office, any Board meeting to discuss the report must be conducted in open session, 
unless exempted from thate requirement by some other provision of law.  (Government Code 
54956.75) 
 
Closed session agenda items related to an audit by the Bureau of State Audits California State 
Auditor’s Office shall state “Audit by Bureau of State Audits California State Auditor’s Office.”  
(Government Code 54954.5) 
 
Review of Assessment Instruments 
 
The Board may meet in closed session to review the contents of any student assessment 
instrument approved or adopted for the statewide testing system.  Before any such meeting, the 
Board shall agree by resolution to accept any terms or conditions established by the State Board 
of Education for this review. (Education Code 60617) 



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 
 

Series 9000         Bylaws of the Board         BB 9321(i)  
              
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
Agenda items related to the review of student assessment instruments shall state that the Board is 
reviewing the contents of an assessment instrument approved or adopted for the statewide testing 
program and that Education Code 60617 authorizes a closed session for this purpose in order to  
maintain the confidentiality of the assessment under review. 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
35145  Public meetings 
35146  Closed session (re student suspension) 
44929.21 Districts with ADA of 250 or more 
48912 Governing board suspension 
48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures; hearings and notice 
49070 Challenging content of students records 
60617  Meetings of governing board 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3540-3549.3  Educational Employment Relations Act 
62520-627068  California Public Records Act 
54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act 
COURT DECISIONS 
Morrison v. Housing Authority of the City of Los Angeles Board of Commissioners, (2003) 107 Cal.Aapp.4th 860 
Bell v. Vista Unified School District, (2001) 82 Cal.App. 4th 672 
Fischer v. Los Angeles Unified School District, (1999) 70 Cal.App. 4th 87 
Furtado v. Sierra Community College District, (1998) 68 Cal. App. 4th 876 
Roberts v. City of Palmdale, (1993) 5 Cal.App. 4th 363 
Sacramento Newspaper Guild v. Sacramento County Board of Supervisors, (1968) 263 Cal.App. 2d 41 
San Diego Union v. City Council, (1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
94 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 82 (2011) 
86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 210 (2003) 
78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (1995) 
59 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 532 (1976) 
57 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 209 (1974) 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, 20039 
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 
The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, 20023 
LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATIONS 
Open and Public IIIIV: A User's Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, rev. July 2010 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Attorney General's Office:  http://www.caag.state.ca.ushttp://www.oag.ca.gov 
League of California Cities: http://www.cacities.org 
 
Adopted:  3-12-02 
Amended:  9-17-02, 3-22-05, 10-16-12, 2-15  



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: B.5.c. APPROVE AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 9222 – 

RESIGNATION - First Reading 
             
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve the proposed amendment to Bylaws of the 

Board 9222 – Resignation? 
 
BACKGROUND: Board Bylaw 9222 updated to clarify the effective date of a resignation of a 

member of the board, the need for the board to fill the vacancy by ordering an 
election or making a provisional appointment as appropriate, and the need for the 
resigning member to file a revised Statement of Economic Interest/Form 700. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the amendment of Bylaws of the Board 9222 –  Resignation. 

2. Do not approve the amendment Bylaws of the Board 9222 – Resignation. 
3. Adopt a modified version of the amendment to Bylaws of the Board 9222 –  

Resignation. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
  Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

   
Series 9000            Bylaws of the Board        BB 9222  
             
 
Resignation 
 
A Governing Board member of the Governing Board who wishes to resign from the 
Board may do so by  shall file ing a written resignation with the County Superintendent 
of Schools. (Education Code 5090) 
 
A copy shall be given  The resigning Board member shall also notify the Board and give 
a copy of his/her written resignation to the Board secretary. 
 
The written resignation is shall become effective when filed with the County 
Superintendent, except when a deferred effective date is specified in the resignation. 
(Education Code 5090) A Board member may not defer the effective date of his/her 
resignation for more than 60 days after filing after he/she files the resignation with the 
County Superintendent. (Education Code 5090, 5091) 
 
Once filed, A a written resignation, whether specifying a deferred effective date or 
otherwise, shall be irrevocable upon being filed. (Education Code 5090) 
 
Upon resignation, the Board member may A Board member who tenders his/her 
resignation with a deferred effective date shall, until the effective date of the resignation, 
continue to exercise all his/her the powers of the office, save that of voting for a except 
that he/she shall not have the right to vote for his/her successor in an action taken by the 
Board to make a provisional appointment, until the effective date of resignation. 
(Education Code 5091, 35178) 
 
 (cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
5090-5095 Vacancies on the board Definition (vacancy) 
5091 Special Election 
35178 Resignation with deferred effective date 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
1770  Vacancy on the board 
87300-87313  Conflict of interest code 
87500  Statement of economic interests 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Filling a Board Vacancy, rev. December 2010 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
 
Adopted:  11-6-84 
Amended:  9-11-90, 3-12-02, 9-17-02 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:     B.5.d. APPROVE AMENDMENT TO BOARD BYLAW 9270 – 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST - First Reading 
             
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve the proposed amendment to Board 

Bylaw 9270 – Conflict of Interest? 
 
BACKGROUND: Board Bylaw 9270 is revising Exhibit A – Designated Position to reflect 

current positions in the District.  Board Bylaw 9270 is being submitted to 
comply with Government Code 87306.5 which states that all Conflict of 
Interest Codes must be reviewed and amended as needed by local agencies 
even-numbered years.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the amendment to Board Bylaw 9270 – Conflict of Interest. 

2. Do not amend Board Bylaw 9270 – Conflict of Interest. 
3. Adopt a modified version of the amendment to Board Bylaw 9270 – 

Conflict of Interest. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
Board Action: On motion of ____________, seconded by ___________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000       Bylaws of the Board         BB 9270(a) 
              
 
Conflict of Interest 
 
The Governing Board desires to maintain the highest ethical standards and help ensure that 
decisions are made in the best interest of the district and the public.  In accordance with law, 
Accordingly, no Board member,s district employee, or other person in a and designated 
employees shall disclose any conflict of interest and, as necessary, shall abstain from 
participating in the decision. position shall participate in the making of any decision for the 
district when the decision will or may be affected by his/her financial, family, or other personal 
interest or consideration. 
 
(cf. 9005 – Governance Standards) 
 
Even if a prohibited conflict of interest does not exist, a Board member shall abstain from voting 
on personnel matters that uniquely affect his/her relatives. However, a Board member may vote 
on collective bargaining agreements and personnel matters that affect a class of employees to 
which his/her relative belongs.  Relative means an adult who is related to the Board member by 
blood or affinity within the third degree, as determined by the common law, or an individual in 
an adoptive relationship within the third degree. (Education Code 35107) 
 
A relationship within the third degree includes an individual's parents, grandparents, great-
grandparents, children, grandchildren, great-grandchildren, brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles, 
nieces, nephews, and the similar family of the individual's spouse/registered domestic partner 
unless the individual is widowed or divorced. 
 
The Board shall adopt for the district a conflict of interest code that incorporates the provisions 
of 2 CCR 18730 by reference, specifies the district's designated positions, and provides the 
disclosure categories required for each position. The conflict of interest code shall be submitted 
to the district's code reviewing body for approval, in accordance with Government Code 87303 
and within the deadline for submission established by the code reviewing body.  (Government 
Code 87303) 
 
Upon direction by the code reviewing body, the Board shall review the district’s conflict of 
interest code and submit any changes to the code reviewing body or, if no change is required, the 
Board shall submit a written statement to that effect.  (Government Code 87306.5).  
 
When a change in the district’s conflict of interest code is necessitated due to changed 
circumstances, such as the creation of new designated positions, changes to the duties assigned to 
existing positions, amendments, or revisions, the amended code shall be submitted to the code 
reviewing body within 90 days after the changed circumstances necessitating the amendments 
have become apparent.  (Government Code 87306) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000       Bylaws of the Board         BB 9270(b) 
              
 
When reviewing and preparing the district’s conflict of interest code, the Superintendent or 
designee shall provide officers, employees, consultants, and members of the community 
adequate notice and a fair opportunity to present their views. (Government Code 87311) 
 
(cf. 9320 – Meetings and Notices) 
 
Board members and designated employees shall annually file a Statement of Economic 
Interest/Form 700 in accordance with the disclosure categories specified in the district’s conflict 
of interest code.  A Board member who leaves office or a designated employee who leaves 
district employment shall, within 30 days, file a revised statement covering the period of time 
between the closing date of the last required statement and the date of leaving office or district 
employment. (Government Code 87302, 87500 87302.6) 
 
(cf. 4117.2,4217.2/4317.2 – Resignation) 
(cf. 9222 – Resignation) 
 
Conflict of Interest under the Political Reform Act 
 
A Board member, or designated employee or other person in a designated position shall not 
make, participate in making, or in any way use or attempt to use his/her official position to 
influence a governmental decision in which he/she knows or has reason to know that he/she has a 
disqualifying conflict of interest. A disqualifying conflict of interest exists if the decision will 
have a "reasonably foreseeable material financial effect," which is distinguishable from the effect 
on the public generally, on one or more of the Board member's, or designated employee,'s 
"economic interests," unless the effect is indistinguishable from the effect on the public generally 
or the Board member's or designated employee's participation is legally required.  or other person 
in a designated position, his/her immediate family, or any financial interest described in 2 CCR 
18700. (Government Code 87100, 87101, 87103; 2 CCR 18700-18709) 
 
A Board member, or designated employee, or other person in a designated position makes a 
governmental decision when he/she, is acting within the authority of his/her office or position., 
he/she votes on a matter, appoints a person, obligates or commits the district to any course of 
action, or enters into any contractual agreement on behalf of the district. (2 CCR 18704.2.1)  
 
A Board member who has a disqualifying conflict of interest on an agenda item that will be 
heard in an open meeting of the Board shall abstain from voting on the matter. He/she may 
remain on the dais, but his/her presence shall not be counted towards achieving a quorum for that 
matter. A Board member with a disqualifying conflict of interest shall not be present during a 
closed session meeting of the Board when the decision is considered and shall not obtain or 
review a recording or any other nonpublic information regarding the issue. (2 CCR 18702.1) 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000       Bylaws of the Board         BB 9270(c) 
              
However, a Board member shall participate in the making of a contract in which he/she has a 
financial interest if his/her participation is required by the rule of necessity or legally required 
participation pursuant to Government Code 87101 and 2 CCR 18705. 
 
Additional Requirements for Boards that Manage Public Investments 
 
Any Board member who manages public investments pursuant to Government Code 87200 and 
who has a financial interest in a decision shall, upon identifying a conflict or potential conflict of 
interest and immediately prior to the consideration of the matter, do all of the following: 
(Government Code 87105; 2CCR 187072.5) 
 
1. Publicly identify the each financial interest that gives rise to the conflict or potential conflict 
of interest in detail sufficient to be understood by the public, except that disclosure of the exact 
street address of a residence is not required.  
 
2. Recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the matter, or otherwise acting in 
violation of Government Code 87100.  Theis Board member shall not be counted toward 
achieving a quorum while the item is discussed.  
 
However, the Board member may speak on the issue during the time that the general public 
speaks on it and may leave the dais to speak from the same area as members of the public.  
He/she may listen to the public discussion and deliberations of the matter with members of the 
public.  
 
3. Leave the room until after the discussion, vote, and any other disposition of the matter is 
concluded, unless the matter has been placed on the portion of the agenda reserved for 
uncontested matters.  
 
If the item is on the consent calendar, the Board member must recuse himself/herself from 
discussing or voting on that matter, but the Board member is not required to leave the room 
during consideration of the consent calendar.  
 
4. If the Board’s decision is made during closed session, disclose his/her interest orally during 
the open session preceding the closed session. This disclosure shall be limited to a declaration 
that his/her recusal is because of a conflict of interest pursuant to Government Code 87100.  
He/she shall not be present when the item is considered in closed session and shall not 
knowingly obtain or review a recording or any other non-public information regarding the 
Board’s decision.  
 
(cf. 3430 – Investing) 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000       Bylaws of the Board         BB 9270(d) 
              
 
Conflict of Interest under Government Code 1090 - Financial Interest in a Contract 
 
Board members, employees, or district consultants shall not be financially interested in any 
contract made by the Board on behalf of the district, including in the development, preliminary 
discussions, negotiations, compromises, planning, reasoning, and specifications and solicitations 
for bids.  If a Board member has such a financial interest, in a contract made by the Board, the 
contract is void. the district is barred from entering into the contract. (Government Code 1090; 
Klistoff v. Superior Court, (2007) 157 Cal.App. 4th 469) 
 
A Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if his/her 
interest is a “noninterest” in which he/she has only a "remote interest," as specified defined in 
Government Code 1091,.5. One such noninterest is when a Board member’s spouse/registered 
domestic partner has been a district employee for at least one year prior to the Board member’s 
election or appointment. (Government Code 1091.5) if the interest is disclosed during a Board 
meeting and noted in the official Board minutes.  The affected Board member shall not vote or 
debate on the matter or attempt to influence any other Board member or district official to enter 
into the contract.  (Government Code 1091) 
 
In addition, aA Board member shall not be deemed considered to be financially interested in a 
contract in which his/her interest is a "noninterest" as defined in Government Code 1091.5. if 
he/she has only a “remote interest” in the contract as specified in Government Code 1091 and if 
the remote interest is disclosed during a Board meeting and noted in the official Board minutes.  
The affected Board member shall not vote or debate on the matter or attempt to influence any 
other Board member to enter into the contract.  (Government Code 1091) Noninterest includes a 
Board member's interest in being reimbursed for his/her actual and necessary expenses incurred 
in the performance of his/her official duties, in the employment of his/her spouse/registered 
domestic partner who has been a district employee for at least one year prior to the Board 
member's election or appointment, or in any other applicable circumstance specified in 
Government Code 1091.5. 
 
Even if there is no prohibited conflict of interest, a Board member shall abstain from voting on 
personnel matters that uniquely affect his/her relatives.  However, a Board member may vote, on 
collective bargaining agreements and personnel matters that affect a class of employees to which 
his/her relative belongs.  “Relative” means an adult who is related to the Board member by blood 
or affinity within the third degree, as determined by the common law, or an individual in an 
adoptive relationship within the third degree. (Education Code 35107) 
 
A relationship within the third degree includes the individual’s parents, grandparents and great-
grandparents, children, grandchildren and great-grandchildren, brothers, sisters, aunts and uncles,  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000       Bylaws of the Board         BB 9270(e) 
              
 
nieces and nephews, and the similar family of the individual’s spouse/registered domestic partner 
unless the individual is widowed or divorced. 
 
Common Law Doctrine Against Conflict of Interest 
 
A Board member shall abstain from any official action in which his/her private or personal 
interest may conflict with his/her official duties. 
 
Rule of Necessity or Legally Required Participation 
 
On a case-by-case basis and upon advise of legal counsel, a Board member with a financial 
interest in a contract may participate in the making of the contract if the rule of necessity or 
legally required participation applies pursuant to Government Code 87101 and 2 CCR 18708. 
 
Incompatible Offices and Activities 
 
Board members shall not engage in any employment or activity or hold any office which is 
inconsistent with, incompatible with, in conflict with, or inimical to the Board member’s duties 
as an officer of the district. (Government Code 1099, 1126) 
 
(cf. 4136/, 4236/, 4336 – Nonschool Employment) 
 
Gifts 
 
Board members and designated employees may accept gifts only under the conditions and 
limitations specified in Government Code 89503 and 2 CCR 18730. 
 
The limitations on gifts does not apply to wedding gifts and gifts exchanged between individuals 
on birthdays, holidays, and other similar occasions, provided that the gifts exchanged are not 
substantially disproportionate in value.  (Government Code 89503) 
 
In addition, the limitation on gifts does not apply to informational materials such as books, 
reports, pamphlets, calendars, and periodicals.  (Government Code 82028) 
 
Gifts of travel and related lodging and subsistence shall be subject to the current gift limitation, 
except when:as described in (Government Code 89506.) 
 
1. The travel is in connection with a speech given by a Board member or designated employee, 
provided the lodging and subsistence expenses are limited to the day immediately preceding, the 
day of, and the day immediately following the speech and the travel is within the United States. 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000       Bylaws of the Board         BB 9270(f) 
              
 
2. The travel is provided by a person or agency specified in Government Code 89506, including 
a government, governmental agency or authority, bona fide public or private educational 
institution, as defined in Revenue and Taxation Code 203, or nonprofit organization exempt from 
taxation under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
Gifts of travel exempted from the gift limitation, as described in items #1 and 2 above, shall 
nevertheless be reportable on the recipient's Statement of Economic Interest/Form 700 as 
required by law. 
 
A gift of travel does not include travel provided by the district for Board members and 
designated employees.  (Government Code 89506) 
 
Honoraria 
 
Board members and designated employees shall not accept any honorarium, which is defined as 
any payment made in consideration for any speech given, article published, or attendance at any 
public or private conference, convention, meeting, social event, meal, or like gathering, in 
accordance with law. (Government Code 89501, 89502) 
 
The term “honorarium” does not include:  (Government Code 89501) 
 
1. Earned income for personal services customarily provided in connection with a bona fide 

business, trade, or profession, unless the sole or predominant activity of the business, trade, 
or profession is making speeches. 
 

2. Any honorarium which is not used and, within 30 days after receipt, is either returned to the 
donor or delivered to the district for donation into the general fund without being claimed as 
a deduction from income for tax purposes. 

 
Legal References: 
EDUCATION CODE 
1006 Qualifications for holding office 
35107  School district employees 
35230-35240  Corrupt practices , especially: 
35233  Prohibitions applicable to members of governing boards 
41000-41003 Moneys received by school districts 
41015  Investments 
FAMILY CODE 
297.5 Rights, protections, and benefits of registered domestic partners 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 
1125-1129 Incompatible activities 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000       Bylaws of the Board         BB 9270(g) 
              
81000-91014  Political Reform Act of 1974, especially: 
82011  Code reviewing body 
82019 Definition, designated employee 
82028  Definition, gift 
82030  Definition, income 
82033  Definition, interest in real property 
82034  Definition, investment 
87100-87103.6  General prohibitions 
87200-87210  Disclosure 
87300-87313  Conflict of interest code 
87500  Statements of economic interests 
89501-89503  Honoraria and gifts 
89506  Ethics; travel 
91000-91014  Enforcement 
PENAL CODE 
85-88 Bribes 
REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE 
203  Taxable and exempt property - colleges 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
18110-18997 Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission, especially: 
18700-18707  General prohibitions 
18722-18740  Disclosure of interests 
18750.1-18756  Conflict of interest codes 
18702.5 Public identification of a conflict of interest for Section 87200 filers 
COURT DECISIONS 
McGee v. Balfour Beatty Construction, LLC, et al. (4/12/16, No. B262850) 
Davis v. Fresno Unified School District (2015) 237 Cal.App.4th 261 
Klistoff v. Superior Court, (2007) 157 Cal.App.4th 469 
Thorpe v. Long Beach Community College District, (2000) 83 Cal.App.4th. 655 
Kunec v. Brea Redevelopment Agency, (1997) 55 Cal.App. 4th 511 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (2009) 
92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 19 (2009) 
89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 217 (2006) 
86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 138(2003) 
85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 60 (2002) 
82 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 83 (1999) 
81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1998) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 320 (1997) 
69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 255 (1986) 
68 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 171 (1985) 
65 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 606 (1982) 
63 Ops. Cal.Atty.Gen. 868 (1980) 
 
Management ResSources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Conflict of Interest: Overview of Key Issues for Governingment Board Members, Fact Sheet, July 2010 
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS 
Can I Vote? A Basic Overview of Public Officials’ Obligations Under the Conflict-of-Interest Rules, 2005 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000       Bylaws of the Board         BB 9270(h) 
              
 
INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICATIONS 
Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Personal Financial Gain Laws, 2009 
Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Transparency Laws, 2009 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
Fair Political Practices Commission:  http://www.fppc.ca.gov 
Institute of Local Government: http://www.ca-ilg.org 
 
Adopted:  10-19-77 
Amended:  11-6-84, 9-11-90, 3-12-02, 9-17-02, 11-19-02, 11-14-06, 10-19-10, 9-16-14 

 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EXHIBIT 

 
Series 9000     Bylaws of the Board                   E 9270(a) 
              
 
Disclosure Categories  
 
Category 1: Broadest Disclosure (Schedules A-1, A-2, B, C, D and E)  
 

a. All sources of income, gifts, loans and travel payments; 
b. All interests in real property; and  
c. All investments or business positions in business entities. 

  
Category 2: Real Property (Schedule B)  
 
All interest in real property, including interest in real property held by business entities and trust 
in which the public official holds a business position or has an investment or other financial 
interest. 
 
Category 3: Land Development, Construction and Transaction (Schedules A1, A2, C, D and E) 
 
All investments, business positions and sources of income, gifts, loans and travel payments, from 
sources which engage in land development, construction, or real property acquisition or sale. 
 
Category 4: Procurement (Schedules A1, A2, C, D and E) 
 
All investments, business positions and sources of income, gifts, loans and travel payments, from 
sources which provide services, supplies, materials, machinery or equipment which the 
designated position procures or assists in procuring on behalf of their agency or department. 
 
Category 5: Regulation and Permitting (Schedules A1, A2, C, D and E) 
 
All investments, business positions and sources of income, gifts, loans and travel payments, from 
sources which are subject to the regulatory, permitting or licensing authority of, or have an 
application or license pending before, the designated positions, agency or department. 
 
Category 6: Funding (Schedules A1, A2, C, D and E) 
 
All investments, business positions and sources of income, gifts, loans and travel payments, from 
sources which receive grants or other funding from or through the designated position’s agency 
or department. 
 
Designated Positions  
 
Designated Position Disclosure Category  



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT 
 
Series 9000     Bylaws of the Board                   E 9270(b) 
              
 
Governing Board Members 1  
Superintendent of Schools 1  
Assistant Superintendent, Business and Fiscal Services 1  
Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 1 
Fiscal Services Director 1 
Curriculum and Instruction Director 1  
Educational Technology and Information Systems Director 1 
Pupil Services Director 1 
Early EducationPreschool Director 1 
Alternative Education Director 1  
Principals 1 
Assistant Principals 1  
Maintenance and Operations Director 1  
Program Specialist 1  
Dean of Students 1  
Athletic Directors 1 
Counselors 1 
Consultant 1 
Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 1 
 
Disclosures for Consultants  
 
Consultants are designated employees who must disclose financial interests as determined on a 
case-by-case basis by the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee's written 
determination shall include a description of the consultant's duties and a statement of the extent 
of disclosure requirements based upon that description. All such determinations are public 
records and shall be retained for public inspection along with this conflict of interest code.  
 
A consultant is an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, makes a governmental 
decision whether to: (2 CCR 187010.3)  
 
1. Approve a rate, rule, or regulation 
 
2. Adopt or enforce a law  
 
3. Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, application, certificate, approval, order, or 
similar authorization or entitlement  
 
4. Authorize the district to enter into, modify, or renew a contract that requires district approval  



 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT 
 
Series 9000     Bylaws of the Board                   E 9270(c) 
              
 
5. Grant district approval to a contract that requires district approval and in which the district is a 
party, or to the specifications for such a contract  
 
6. Grant district approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item  
 
7. Adopt or grant district approval of district policies, standards, or guidelines  
 
A consultant is also an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, serves in a staff 
capacity with the district and in that capacity participates in making a governmental decision as 
defined in 2 CCR 18704, subsections (a) and (b), 2.2 or performs the same or substantially all the 
same duties for the district that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding a 
position specified in the district's conflict of interest code. (2 CCR 18700.31) 
 
Adopted: 9-17-02 
Amended: 9-16-14 
 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: AUGUST 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:       B.5.e. ADOPT AND APPROVE AMENDMENT TO BOARD POLICY AND 

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 1230 – SCHOOL CONNECTED 
ORGANIZATIONS– First Reading  

             
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education adopt and approve the proposed amendment to 

Board Policy and Administrative Regulation - 1230 School Connected 
Organizations? 

 
BACKGROUND: Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 1230 updated to clarify the 

relationship between the district and a school-connected organization, such as a 
booster club, parent-teacher organization, or other nonstudent organization. 
Policy adds material regarding the establishment of such organizations as 
separate legal entities subject to their own bylaws and rules, delegates the 
responsibility to approve organizations' fundraisers to the superintendent or 
designee, and reflects legal requirement that donations and participation in 
fundraising activities be voluntary. Regulation adds authority of the district to 
revoke an organization's authorization to conduct activities in the district when 
necessary, and adds rules designed to maintain the organization's status as a 
separate entity from the district based on recommendations in the Fiscal Crisis 
and Management Assistance Team's guidebook updated in 2015. 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Adopt and approve the amendment to Board Policy - 1230 School Connected 

Organizations 
 2. Do not amend Board Policy - 1230 School Connected Organizations 

3. Adopt a modified version of the amendment to Board Policy - 1230 School 
Connected Organizations 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
Board Action: On motion of ______________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep.         



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 1000     Community Relations         BP 1230(a) 
              
 
School-Connected Organizations 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that parents/guardians and community members may wish to 
organize parent organizations and/or booster clubs for the purpose of supporting the district’s 
educational and/or extracurricular programs.  such as athletic teams, debate teams, and musical 
groups. The Board appreciates the contributions made by such organizations toward and 
encourages their interest and participation in supporting district activities and helping to achieve 
the Board’sdistrict’s vision for student learning and for providing all district students with high-
quality educational opportunities.  
 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Persons proposing to establish a The Board recognizes that school-connected organizations are 
separate legal entities, independent of the district.  However, in order to helpshall submit a 
request to the Board for authorization fulfill its legal and fiduciary responsibility to operate 
within the district or at a manage district school. operations, any  
 
A school- connected organization, including a booster club, parent-teacher association or 
organization, or other organization that desires to raise money to benefit any district does not 
include an associated student body or other student organization shall be submit a request for 
authorization to the Board, in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation.  In 
addition, the Superintendent or designee shall established and maintained as a separate entity 
from the school or appropriate internal controls for the relationship between school-connected 
organizations and the district. Each school-connected organization shall be subject to its own 
bylaws and operational procedures or to the rules or bylaws of its affiliated state or national 
organization, as applicable. 
 
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 
(cf. 1330 – Use of School Facilities) 
(cf. 3452 – Student Activity Funds) 
 
In addition, activities by school-connected organizations shall be conducted in accordance with 
The Board encourages school-connected organizations to consider the impact of fund-raising 
activities on the overall school and district program.  School-connected organizations shall 
consult with the principal to determine school needs and priorities.  Activities by school-
connected organizations shall not conflict with law, Board policies, administrative regulations, 
andor any rules of the sponsoring school. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 1000     Community Relations         BP 1230(b) 
              
 
(cf.  3554 – Other Food Sales) 
(cf. 5030 – Student Wellness) 
(cf. 6145 – Extracurricular and Co-curricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 – Athletic Competition) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish appropriate rules for the relationship between 
school-connected organizations and the district. 
 
A school-connected organization shall obtain the written approval of the Superintendent or 
designee prior to soliciting funds upon the representation that the funds will be used wholly or in 
part for the benefit of a district school or the students at that school. (Education Code 51521) 
 
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 
(cf. 3452 - Student Activity Funds) 
 
A school-connected organization may consult with the principal to determine school needs and 
priorities. 
 
Any participation in fundraising activities by students and their parents/guardians 
and/or any donation of funds or property shall be voluntary. (Education Code 49011) 
 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 
35160 Authority of governing boards 
38130-38138 Civic Center Act, use of school property for public purposes 
48931 Authorization for sale of food by student organization 
48932 Authorization for fund-raising activities by student organization 
49011 Student fees 
49431-49431.7 Nutritional standards 
49431 Sale of food to elementary students during the school day 
49431.2 Sale of food to middle, junior, or high school students 
49431.5 Sale of beverages at elementary, middle, or junior high schools 
51520 Prohibited solicitation on school premises 
51521 Fund-raising project 
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 
17510-1577510.95 Solicitations for charitable purposes 
25608 Alcohol on school property; use in connection with instruction 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12580-12599.7 Fundraisers for Charitable Purposes Act 
PENAL CODE 

 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 1000     Community Relations         BP 1230(c) 
              
 
319-329 Lottery, raffle 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 
15500 Food sales in elementary schools 
15501 Food sales in high schools and junior high schools 
15575-15578 Requirements for foods and beverages outside the federal meals program 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 11 
300-312.1 Fundraising for charitable purposes 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.11 Competitive food services 
220.12 Competitive food services 
COURT DECISIONS 
Serrano v. Priest, (1976) 18 Cal. 3d 728 
 
Management Resources: 
CDE LEGAL ADVISORIES 
1101.89 School District Liability  
FISCAL CRISIS AND MANAGEMENT ASSISTANCE TEAM PUBLICATIONS 2015 ASB Accounting Manual, 
Fraud Prevention Guide and Desk Reference "Hold Harmless" Agreements, LO: 4-89 
WEB STIES SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Office of the Attorney General, charitable trust registry: http://caag.state.ca.us/charities 
California State PTA: http://www.capta.org 
Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team (FCMAT); http://www.fcmat.org 
 
Adopted:  2-22-78 
Amended:  5-19-82, 1-8-91, 9-17-02, 10-21-03, 2-19-08 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 1000     Community Relations         AR 1230(a) 
              
 
School-Connected Organizations 
 
Persons proposing to establish aA school-connected organization’s shall submit a request to the 
Governing Board for authorization to operate within the district or at a districtthe school.  The 
request for authorization shall contain, as appropriate: 
 
1.  The name and purpose of the organization. 
 
2.  The date of application. 
 
3. Bylaws, rules, and procedures under which the organization will operate, including 
procedures for maintaining the organization’s finances, membership qualifications, if any, and an 
agreement that the group will not engage in unlawful discrimination   
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
4. The names, addresses, and phone numbers of all officers. 
 
5.  A list of specific objectives. 
 
6. An agreement to grant the district the right to audit the group’s financial records, at any time, 
either by district personnel or a certified public accountant, whenever any concern is raised 
regarding the use of the funds 
 
7.  The name of the bank where the organization’s group's account will be located and the names 

of those authorized to withdraw funds. 
 
8.  The signature of the principal of the supporting school. 
 
9.  The Pplanned use for any money remaining at the end of the year if the organization is not 

continued or authorized to continue in the future. 
 
10. An agreement to provide evidence of liability and/or directors and officers insurance when 
and in the manner as required by law. 
 
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 
 
Requests for subsequent Aauthorizations shall be annually submitted to the Superintendent or 
designee, along with a financial statement showing all income and expenditures from 
fundraisers. If theautomatically renewed each year. The Superintendent or designee proposes to  



 
OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

ADMINISTRATIVE	REGULATION	
	
Series	1000		 	 	 	 Community	Relations				 	 				AR	1230(b)	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 
deny the request for reauthorization, he/she shall present his/her recommendation to the 
Governing Board for approval.may recommend that authorizations be revoked by the Board if 
considered necessary. 
 
When deemed necessary by the Board orUpon consent of the Superintendent or designee, the 
authorization for a school-connected organization to conduct activities in the districts may be 
revoked at any time use the school’s name, school team’s name, or any logo attributable to the 
school or district. 
 
Each school-connected organization shall abide by the following rules: 
 
1. The organization shall not act as an agent of the district or school. 
 
2. The organization shall not use the district's tax-exempt status and identification number. It 
shall be responsible for its own tax status, accounting, internal controls, financial reporting, 
retention of records, and other operations. 
 
3. The organization shall use a separate name and logo. Any use of a name or logo a affiliated 
with the district, a district school, or a school team shall require the prior consent of the 
Superintendent or designee.  
 
4. Funds of the school-connected organization shall not be co-mingled with district funds, 
including associated student body funds. 
 
5. The organization shall not hire School-connected organizations are prohibited from hiring or 
directly paying any district employees.  If a school-connected Oorganizations wishes may make 
donations to pay for additional and/or extracurricular services, the person district to provide the 
services shall be hired through the district’s personnel department, provided cover the Board 
approves costs of additional employees, but only if such positions are approved in advance by 
the Boardposition.  At their discretion, employees may volunteer to perform activities for school-
connected organizations during non-working hours. 
 
(cf. 4127/4227/4327 – Temporary Athletic Team Coaches) 
 
Adopted:  9-17-02 
Amended: 7-07 


	Agenda 8-16-16
	B.1.a.1. Minutes of Regular Board Meeting 6-15-16
	B.1.a.2. Minutes of Special Board Retreat Meeting 6-26-16
	B.1.c.1. PO Coversheet 08 16 16
	B.1.c.2. PO Report 08 16 16
	B.1.d.1  College Contracts GRAND CANYON UNIVERSITY 2016
	B.1.d.2. College contract Grand Canyon University Agreement 
	B.1.e.1. VCOE Data Contract 08 16 16
	B.1.e.2. VCOE-OPUSD Escape Finance-HR System Agreement 08 16 16
	B.1.f.1.Transportation Agreement Tumbleweed 2016-17 08 16 16
	B.1.f.2. Transportation Contract 2016-17 Tumbleweed
	B.1.g.1. Piggyback Authorization SNS Dept 2016-17 08 16 16
	B.1.h.1. MOA Watershed Friendly Garden VC-OPHS 08 16 16
	B.1.h.2. MOA Water Friendly Garden OPHS 08 16 16
	B.1.i.1. Notice of Completion Proj 15-08F Maintenance Facilities 08 16 16
	B.1.j.1. Disposal of Surplus Equipment 08 16 16
	B.1.k.1. Quarterly Williams Complaints
	B.1.k.2. Quarterly Williams Report July 2016
	B.1.l.1. Board Report GVB SLO August 2016 
	B.2.a.1.Ratify Lobbying Consultant Agreement 08 16 16
	B.2.a.2. OPUSD GQHC Engagement Letter 06 21 16
	B.2.b.1. EPA Plan 2016-17 08 16 16
	B.2.b.2. EPA 2016-17 Spending Plan Form 08 16 16
	B.2.c.1. Proj 15-08C Tech Office Construction 08 16 16
	B.2.d.1. Proj 15-08C Tech Office Equipment and Furniture 08 16 16
	B.2.e.1. Notice of Completion Proj 15-08C Technology Facilities 08 16 16
	B.2.f.1. Ratify Construction Contract Proj 16-02R ADA Upgrades OPHS Gym 08 16 16
	B.2.g.1. Ratify Construction Contracts Proj 16-04R ADA Upgrades OHES 08 16 16
	B.2.h.1 Rocket Team Donations
	B.2.i. Ratify Construction Contract Proj 16-06R OPHS Parking Lot 08 16 16
	B.2.j.1. Ratify Construction Contracts Proj 16-07F MCMS Garden 08 16 16
	B.2.k.1. Ratify Construction Contracts Proj 16-10F BES Outdoor Classroom 08 16 16
	B.2.l.1. Measure C6 Tech PurchaseTechLite and Tech Learning Coach  iPad Carts 08 16 16
	B.3.a.1. Board Cover Sheet for Consultant Agreement- 2016-17
	B.3.a.2. Moore Consultant Agreement 08-16-16
	B.3.b.1.  Board Agenda Decl  of Need
	B.3.b.2. Declaration of Need Cl500
	B.3.c.1. Reclassification - Accounting Assistant II 08 16 16
	B.3.c.2. Accounting Assistant III JD 08 16 16
	B.4.a.1. Renewal of CSBA Membership and Education Allliance
	B.4.a.2. Renewal of CSBA membership invoice
	B.4.b.1. Board Mtg Schedule-Aug mtg
	B.4.c.1. Moral Imperatives and Goals Evaluation and Review
	B.4.c.1.1 2016-17TeachingandLearningwithGoalsDraft.docx
	B.4.c.2. 2016-17OrganizationandSharedLeadershipwithGoalsDraft 8.45.19 AM
	B.4.c.3. 2016-17FinanceBudgetandFacilitiesDraft
	B.4.d.1. Certification of Signatures 2016-17
	B.4.d.2. Certificate of Signatures 2016
	B.4.e.1 Approve Board Goals 2016-17
	B.4.e.2. 2016-17 Board Goals
	B.4.f.1. Nomination for CSBA Legislator of Year August 2016 
	B.4.f.2. Resol 16-17 -Nominate AM Legislator of Year
	B.5.a.1. Amendment Bd Pol 2121 Superintendent's Contract
	B.5.a.2. BP2121 Superintendent's Contract for review 8_16_16
	B.5.b.1. Amendment Bd Pol 9321 Closed Session Purposes and Agendas
	B.5.b.2. BB9321 Closed Sessions and Agenda-UPDATED
	B.5.c.1. Amendment Bd Pol  9222 Resignation
	B.5.c.2. BB9222 Resignation for Review 8-16-16
	B.5.d.1 Amendment Bd Pol 9270 Conflict of Interest
	B.5.d.2. BB9270 Conflict of Interest for review 8-16-16
	B.5.d.3. E9270 Conflict of Interest for review
	B.5.e.1 Amendment Bd Pol 1230 School Connected Organizations
	B.5.e.2. BP1230 School Connected Organizations
	B.5.e.3. AR1230 SchoolConnected Organizations



